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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMHRE

(For the year ended 31 December) (BiZ+=A=+—HIFE)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY AFEMBBEE
RMB’000 AREFT
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

—EB-=F ZEB-NFE —ZT-FHF T—RE ZT—tE

Revenue WA 4,150,509 5,011,426 4,182,049 5,239,564 5,675,386
Gross profit E7 988,400 1,049,024 884,383 1,134,710 1,138,857
Profit before tax BRI AT A 626,506 698,913 447,370 626922 270,378
Profit attributable to owners KARHEBA
of the Company FEAE A 490,587 584,269 355,986 501,961 143,797
Basic earnings per share (RMB)*  SREXAF (ARE)* 0.748 0.838 0.509 0.661 0.172
Diluted earnings per share (RMB)*  SREFRF (ARE)* 0.733 0.684 0.374 0.659 0.172
Non-current assets EREBEE 2,834,179 3,792,168  4,045360 4,783,195 4,699,411
Current assets mEBEE 3,466,554 4,416,582 5606612 6,206336 7,675,517
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 1,323,185 2,276,903 3,610,834 3,064,308 3,448,327
Current liabilities nBaE 2,378,436 2,791,255 2,540,015  3,725973 4,436,268
Net assets EEFE 2,599,112 3,140,592 3,501,123 4,204,250 4,490,333
e The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic and e T CE_T-AFEBREAREERT
diluted earnings per share for the years 2013 to 2015 have been adjusted and BB AR I F B E B AR A B R LA SRR
restated for the rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every five existing 2608 T BREGRHAEARB ARG IE
shares held by shareholders of the Company at the price of HK$2.60 per share. BRI G o EEERMETARRE
3l o
REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
A OF THE COMPANY
EAT) R AELET
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFIT
6,000,000 5,675,386 600,000 A

5,011,426 5,239,564 490,587 501,961
5,000,000 500,000
4,150,509 4,182,049

4,000,000 400,000 355986
3,000,000 300,000
2,000,000 200,000 143.797
1,000,000 100,000

0 0

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present China Singyes Solar
Technologies Holdings Limited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the overall business of the Group
continued to grow. The revenue (included tariff adjustment) was RMB
5,675,386,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.3%. The Board
recommended the distribution of a final dividend of HK$0.03 per share.

RENEWABLE ENERGY BUSINESS

As a major business of the Group, the revenue of renewable energy
business increased by 10.9 %, accounting for 62.1% of the total revenue
of the Group, of which EPC revenue increased significantly by 16.3% to
RMB2,588,200,000. In the year 2017, the Group has participated in the
photovoltaic poverty alleviation project in Shanxi, Hubei and Zhejiang.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group owned 463 MW photovoltaic power
station projects. The sale of electricity, including tariff adjustment, increased
by 74.6% to RMB 282,068,000.

CURTAIN WALL AND GREEN BUILDING BUSINESS

The revenue of curtain wall and green building business increased by 6.5% to
RMB2,101,300,000. In 2017, the Group participated in a series of influential
public construction, including Beijing New Airport, Hong Kong Xiqu Center,
Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, Hong Kong and Macao Frontier Port. With
the help of the professional platform of US-China Clean Energy Research
Center, the Group was widely recognized in the green building industry, and
participated in formulating numerous international and domestic industrial
standards.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

OVERSEAS MARKET

The Group’s overseas revenue continued to grow, which increased 8.3% to
RMB 542,989,000, and its proportion in total revenue raised to 9.6%. The
overseas market development throughout the years has gained great effect;
with newly added regions such as Oceania, Africa and the United States
contributed the overseas annual revenue apart from Hong Kong, Macao
and Malaysia. The export volume of curtain wall products has reached the
industry-leading level, and obtained higher market share in the Oceania
region. The promotion of intellectual micro-grid has become a proactive
demonstration in South Pacific.

In addition, the Group has successfully applied spin-off and listing of new
materials business on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, dedicating to become
the leading position in the industry of intellectual light-adjusting product

service provider.

FUTURE PLANS

The Group will focus on increasing the advantage in the technology of green
building industry, striving to be the leader in green building industry. We will
keep our advantages on photovoltaic system integration, and proactively
develop operation and maintenance of power station business, in order
to provide full range of services, that is development, construction, and
operation and maintenance of power station, to our customers. We will also
consolidate the overseas market, and do our utmost to become the largest
curtain wall processed products manufacturer in the world. Standing at the
starting point of the new era, the Group will uphold the business development
strategy of “Light Assets” and enterprise development philosophy of “Learning,
Innovating and Developing”, in a bid to contribute to the “building of
comprehensive green and low carbon economic system”, providing services
with quality and professionalism to customers worldwide.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEARRE

OVERVIEW

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective accountability. This
report outlines the principles and the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors consider that, for the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the Code, except
for the deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the Code as described below in the
section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” on page 13.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee in compliance with paragraph C.3
of the Code to oversee the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. It
has also established a nomination committee and a remuneration committee

with defined terms of reference.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance practices
of the Company to ensure formal and transparent procedures are in place to
protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices
adopted and observed by the Company from the listing date up to the date of
this report (the “Review Period”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREERWME

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
supervising and monitoring the performance of the senior management who
are delegated with the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Company. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including three executive
Directors, namely, Mr. LIU Hongwei, who is also the Chairman of the
Company, Mr. XIE Wen and Mr. Xiong Shi, two non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. CAO Zhirong and Dr. Li Hong and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Dr. WANG Ching, and
Dr. Tan Hongwei.

The Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over half
of the board members are non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made in the
best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
Further details of these committees are set out below on pages 15to 17.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound board level experience and expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. The Board is comprised of
members with extensive business, government, regulatory and policy
experience from a variety of backgrounds. There is diversity of nationality,
ethnicity, educational background, functional expertise and experience. A
Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERME

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc
meetings will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board
meeting. Reasonable notices will also be given to the Directors for ad-hoc
board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of

communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All the
Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for Board meetings.

Prior notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched to the Directors
setting out the matters to be discussed. At the meeting, the Directors were
provided with relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or a Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive
directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is maintained on the
website of the Company and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of 4 Board meetings. The
attendance of individual Directors at the board meetings and annual general
meeting are set out below:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREERWME

Board Meetings

Name of Directors

PN
-

Attendance
HEER
Annual

General Meeting Board Meeting

ESkE BREBEXE EZgEa
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. LIU Hongwei RIT 4 11 4/4
Mr. SUN Jinli (resigned on 20 July 2017) FRereits

(RZE—+F+ A= +HEE) 0/1 2/4
Mr. XIE Wen #OXEE 0/1 3/4
Mr. Xiong Shi (appointed on 1 December 2017) REIRSTHE

(RZE—+F TR —BEZME) N/A N/A
Non-executive Directors FBITES
Mr. LI Huizhong (resigned on 5 June 2017) TEREE

(RZZB—LFATHBHE) 0/1 1/4
Mr. CAO Zhirong EEELE 0/1 4/4
Dr. Li Hong (appointed on 5 June 2017) £ N

(RZZ2—tFE A RAEZE) N/A 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAERITES
Dr. WANG Ching I mEL 11 4/4
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SXERE 1/1 4/4
Mr. CHENG Jinshu (resigned on 5 June 2017) BefkE

(R=ZZ—tF ARBEHME) 0/1 1/4
Dr. Zhong Jishou (appointed on 5 June 2017 and ~ fP#=E+

resigned on 18 April 2018) (R=ZZ—tFAARREZRE
WRZZB—NEFMHA+/\BEHE) N/A 2/4

Dr. Tan Hongwei (appointed on 18 April 2018)

(R=—Z—N\FMWA+N\BEZT) N/A N/A



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEARRE

SKILLS, KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND
ATTRIBUTES OF DIRECTORS

All Directors of the Board had served in office during the period under review.
Every Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their understanding and
commit to high standards of corporate governance. The executive Director
brings his perspectives to the Board through his deep understanding of the
Group’s business. The non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience, understanding
of local and global economies, and knowledge of capital markets to the
Group’s business. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable continuous professional development programmes for all Directors to
hone and refresh their knowledge and skills.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is required
to undertake an induction program to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of his duties and responsibilities. The induction program
includes an overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Board meetings’ procedures, matters reserved to the Board,
an introduction of the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and
duties, relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the Board
and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings with senior
officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways
of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHRE

The company secretary of the Company maintains records of training

attended by the Directors. The training attended by each Director during the

Year is tabulated as follows:

Training Records

ARABZARMERFEEHE
RER » RERHFER

HEIRC R

FolZ Rk o

EJ‘IZ‘\@R%Z@JQDT :

Name Type of trainings Training matters
®a EallER EIEIE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(MisE1) (M33E2)

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. LIU Hongwei (Chairman) 2T S () a,b i i v
Mr. SUN Jinli (resigned on 20 July 2017) FRereits

(RZE—tF+AZTHEHE) a,b i, ii, iii, iv
Mr. XIE Wen &SRR b i, i, iii, iv
Mr. Xiong Shi (appointed on 1 December 2017) RERSTHE

(R=Z—LF+-A—AEEMT) a,b i, i, iii, iv
Non-Executive Directors FRITEE
Mr. LI Huizhong (resigned on 5 June 2017) TeRiE

(RZZB—LFARHBHE) a,b i, i, iii, iv
Mr. CAO Zhirong BERRELE b i, i, i, iv
Dr. Li Hong (appointed on 5 June 2017) £ N

(RZZ—EF A ARAEEE) a,b i, i, iii, iv
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAERITES
Dr. WANG Ching T RiEx a, b i, i, dii, v
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SKEFE b i, i, il iv
Mr. Cheng Jinshu (resigned on 5 June 2017) b s

(R=—ZE—+FNARAHMT) ab i, i, i, iv
Dr. Zhong Jishou (appointed on 5 June 2017 and ~ {P#SEL

resigned on 18 April 2018) (R=ZZ—tF A RREZE

WRZE—NFOA+N\BEHE) ab i, i, i, iv
Dr. Tan Hongwei (appointed on 18 April 2018) EREE LT

(RZZE-N\FHA+/\BEZEE) N/A N/A
Note 1: FIEEL :
a attending seminar or training session a HERE g SIS g ®
b self-development and updates relating to general economy, business b EBRENMEARELE XBBR - ES

development, director’s duties and responsibilities, etc.

Note 2:

i corporate governance

ii regulatory compliance

iii finance

iv management and operation

R EMETE -

MoaE2 -
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ii VEIREST
ii g3

iv BRI



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEARRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Hongwei, the Chairman of the Group, is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, ensuring that all material issues are
decided by the Board in a conducive manner. Mr. Liu Hongwei is also
responsible for running the Group’s business and effective implementation
of the strategies of the Group. The Company is aware of the requirement
under paragraph A.2.1 of the Code that the roles of chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. Nevertheless, the Board considers that the combination of
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company as the Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Group. The Board is of the view that this structure
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership, which can facilitate
the formulation and implementation of its strategies and decisions and enable
it to grasp business opportunities and react to changes efficiently. Moreover,
the Board considers that the sufficient measures have been taken and it will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management. As such, it is beneficial to the business prospects of the Group.
Therefore Mr. Liu Hongwei is performing the roles of both Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company possess a wealth
of professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have played a
significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and
their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they
bring an impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategy, performance and
control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of Shareholders are taken into consideration,
and the interests of the Company and its shareholders are taken into account
in all business decisions. The Company has received the annual confirmation
signed by each independent non-executive Director to acknowledge their
respective independence. After prudent enquiry, the Board is of the view that
each of Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Dr. WANG Ching, and Dr. Tan Hongwei
maintains the independence as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

ZF—tFEFR PRERXAHERMERER AR

EFREITHAER

Bt AREER  ARAEEFEM
EZENAMENR  BERMEEATHAES
SRR A RIELIRE - BIAT#%
ETF A BANEEEBTHEEA R AR E R
BHEW - ARABDEEER - BRETRIFEA21
RZRE  ERETRERNACESY - T
EHE—ALEE - AT AREFSETEY
RERNTEAREEENTIESRE  HES
ERRBIFETREAINBBEAMA—TE
FEERSHRANNTEREWE 2 M
BT - EEERAURBRARERHET
BAM—EHEE  BHERKROHTRE
B+ AR BIF AR AN = R K 1 B fE
EREL I EFTERRCERENE
i BESIASHINESSRERERE SR
B T - B BRI ASERNEBAR o
It BUAT 4 SE A AT FESRTTHAREL

BIEHITES

AABIABYIFATESIABEENER
BRABLEELR EAEFRRHEEEN
BR - REEBREBUMNHE  EEFETP
BEEEENAG CEFENRRLBRE
= o FRIREARNDAIRMG - FEREE - &
SHEREAEER - EFSNRR - BUI
HITESRARRNERRE  XENEERR
HBIER - At RROFAEMNRDEES
B TEEBARPIEBERAR R REBIR
BFER « RABEWEIRBILIFMITESE
RREE BB N FERR - KEEER
% BEFERR ZRBEE  ERELINE
HEE TR ETRAEI SRR ERNBL
1 o
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All independent non-executive Directors of the Company will review, on an
annual basis, any decisions in relation to new business opportunities referred
to the Company. As at the date of this report, there is no new business
opportunity introduced to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
Throughout 2017, no claim had been made against the Directors and the
officers of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr. Xie Wen, the executive Directors of the Company
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a specific term of
three years commencing 13 January 2012, and will be automatically renewed
for another three years upon expiry. Mr. Xiong Shi was appointed as the
executive director of the Company for three years from 1 December 2017.

Mr. Cao Zhirong and Dr. Li Hong, the non-executive Directors of the
Company, had entered into service contracts with the Company for a specific
term of three years from 1 September 2012 and 5 June 2017, respectively.
Their service contracts will be automatically renewed for another three years
upon expiry.

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Dr. Wang Ching, the independent non-
executive Directors were appointed for a term of three years from 19
December 2008. Dr. Tan Hongwei, the independent non-executive director
was appointed for a term of three years from 18 April 2018. Their service
contracts will be automatically renewed for another three years upon expiry.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

ARRMABEBLIFNITESHEBFEMME
AR T AR RRF B M ELHANRE o RA
WEBRH - AEERAREIHOREH

EREREE 2 BIERME R

g

AARDHEEEA G H S OERITEME
E=ZNEABEBEEE ZAETRRZH - R
T—+F  UEHARAEZRERBERD
EHERR -

I -EERERESE

RRREPITER R E R EED R
RABRILRGEH  FHE T —F—A
T=RREEE/=F  LHRERF BRI
BH=%F - ARRPITERRRLENESH
Tt EF+-A—HE - AH=F-

ARRPFTERESREERFRELOHE
RABRILRGEH - AORIE—T——F
NA—RAR-ZE—tFXAEERE  RH=
F o RENRBE BN ERR BB SINED
=

BBEUIFPTERZZ KB EERTERELNE
HH—FTN\F+_A+NAE  RE=F-
B FRTEEEAFELNERH TN
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with Rules 3.21 to
3.23 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting process and
internal control procedure of the Group, to review the financial information
of the Group and to consider issues relating to the external auditor. The
Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. Cheng Jinshu
(resigned on 5 June 2017) and Dr. Zhong Jishou (appointed on 5 June 2017
and resigned on 18 April 2018), Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2017
and for the year ended 31 December 2017, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and the system of internal control.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee held
2 meetings.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit
Committee’s meetings:

RAFESF EHARAE 321 £3.23 R ~FA
FECIFMRTE RBEER_TTN\F+=
AT BBBNRERKIERZZES - 8%
ZEENTEREREEARENYBRER
BRAEBEERRF  BHARENTBER -
NRZRBRIMNEZBMNEE - BZEEE
HEZBVENTER(AMEREL - FokE
EERBEHEE(RZE—LFARAE
) RpgESET(R_T—+tFARBE
ZEXR =T —NFHAT/\BEE) 485K
EREEGNEFRIKELE - EREES
EEMHASERE—_T—+tFA=THIER
BARBE_Z—+F+_A=1T—HILFE
WEFE B mE - AEERASTTRAILER
R—ENIBEIERL -

No. of Audit Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HEBITEREEE
BE: ERERE -
YICK Wing Fat, Simon (Chairman) K3 (FE) 2/2
WANG Ching F R 2/2
CHENG Jinshu e ] 1/2

(from 1 January 2017 to (H=Z—+tF—A—H=Z

5 June 2017) —E—EFXARA)
Zhong Jishou (from 5 June 2017 s (AT —tF~ARAR

to 18 April 2018) —\FEmA+NAR) 1/2

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be viewed on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

E?ﬂ ﬁiﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂ%&ﬁ o B
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with paragraph B.1 of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy for remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors.
The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, including three
independent non-executive Directors and the Chairman of the Board, namely,
Mr. Cheng Jinshu (resigned on 5 June 2017) and Dr. Zhong Jishou (appointed
on 5 June 2017 and resigned on 18 April 2018), Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon,
Dr. Wang Ching and Mr. Liu Hongwei. The Remuneration Committee is
chaired by Mr. Cheng Jinshu (resigned on 5 June 2017) and Dr. Zhong
Jishou (appointed on 5 June 2017 and resigned on 18 April 2018).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting to assess individual performance of the Directors and review
the remuneration packages and overall benefit of the Directors.

The following table shows the attendance and members of the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2017:

FWNESE

RNAFETTFTREBLENERT - REEER
—ZTN\F+Z AT NABBORE KL
MWEEE - FTHEEeNEEBERKEALRA
EEREREEABNTEG - ARRHIE
R EH B R ERFSERENIZF &
EBEEMEEENTMNEN mESFSELE
BER FHEEeHNMKE (BIE=(E
SEMTESRESEEFE) MK - AIESH
EERZZ—tFANARBET)  HES
BE(R—ZE—tFXARAEZAIR=-F
—N\FMA+NBET) - HKEEE TR
BT REAHERE - HINEBESHREHI kit
(R—ZE—+EXARREE) RIhESIE L
(RZZE—+tFNARREZTIR TN
FOA+N\BBE)EEERE -

BE_Z—tF+A=+—HIFE - HH
ZEERITREE  MNHMEEFZEARR
REHNEEFHM TR L EREN -

TEHIBE-_T—+E+-A=+—BILE
EHMEZEEXBHFEERNER -

No. of Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HiE  SBTHEmMESE
BE: EERARE -
Cheng Jinshu (Chairman) B (£E) 1/1
(from 1 January 2017 (A=ZE—tF—A—H=
to 5 June 2017) —T—+FARH)
Zhong Jishou (Chairman) IS (£/E) N/A
(from 5 June 2017 to 18 April 2018) (H=ZE—tFARHZE
—E—-NFMA+ANAH)
YICK Wing Fat, Simon K EE 1/1
WANG Ching F = 1/1
LIU Hongwei 24T 4 1/1

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details
of which can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange.

FHZEeRRH AR ERETERE - HM
ZEGZEAMBEFBERNERNBERE
A - BB AT AR B KB R A uh b
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with
Recommended Best Practices of paragraph A.5 of the Code. The primary
duties of the Nomination committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board on a regular basis and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes. The Nomination Committee
consists of five members, including three independent non-executive
Directors and two executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Xie Wen,
Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. Cheng Jinshu (resigned on to
5 June 2017) and Dr. Zhong Jishou (appointed on 5 June 2017 and resigned
on 18 April 2018). The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hongwei.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and approval
of such nomination by the Board, The Nomination Committee will evaluate
potential candidates by considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting. The following table shows the attendance and members of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2017:

“T—tEFR PEEELGRERMTERARA

REEE

B}

AREETTREASRNEZEZETROR
EBRBEEER _TTN\F+_ATNABEE
BHORBERKIRREE S - REZEENE
ZRAREHRIEETSNRE  RERA
ﬁJZ AR ERBERNESNESSRHEZ

REZBEHRRAMKE (BB =B
%ﬂﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ&%ﬂﬁ%%)%ﬂ& * BNBIAT 4 55
B BIXEE - EREL - BxEELE EE

WEEM-ZT—EFNALBEHE) RiF#
SEL(R-B—tFNALREEEIR

- NFEMNA+N\BEE) -
ATHEST TS o

cIRELBEME

REEFEEORELZ ESHAIMERERIA

THWER - WAEFSRT BBIIARS

}E%?iAﬂﬁ%FEﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁim FERE SR ~ (@
BREEERBESZRARHRENETHS -

F—tHF+A=1T—HLFE &%
BITIREGH - TREJBE_F—t
A=t HUIFERAZEEKEHFE

IS \I

B o B
£ m

RN

i

No. of Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held:

HE BITREES

Directors: =
: EREMREL :
LIU Hongwei (Chairman) B4 (F/) 11
XIE Wen @ X 1/1
WANG Ching F R 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon K 1/1
CHENG Jinshu e 1/1
(from 1 January 2017 (A=ZZ—+tF—A—H=Z
to 5 June 2017) —E—tFXARA)
ZHONG Jishou = N/A

(from 5 June 2017 to 18 April 2018) (H—ZE—+FARHZEC
—N\FMA+NAR)

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details of which
can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

RELZEGRREHARERBITERE - 2%
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is
responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each meeting of the Board or
the Board committees including any dissenting views expressed by the
Directors, which should be available to all Directors for inspection. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. All agenda, relevant materials and document are required to be
sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
meetings of the Board committees. It is the responsibility of the Company
Secretary to send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the Board or the
Board committees are also required to be sent to all Directors for record. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as well as internal
codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Finance Department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
the preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies,
disclosure requirements under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in
the annual and interim reports to the Shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.

ATHE

ARBlzraAwE(ARAREDAERES
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BERBONSRI MG ERZKG
EBHM - BE_T—tFt-A=t—BLF
BEN,/ERZ kGBSO ERNT

Auditor’s Remuneration

The audit committee of the Board is responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
authorized external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors. The Company engaged Ernst & Young as
its external auditors, and also engaged Ernst & Young in connection with the
comfort letters and other assistance in respect of the issue of senior notes.
Details of the fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young during the year ended 31

December 2017 are as follows:

Audit service
— Interim review and annual audit

— Interim review and annual

2R
- P EAREBI M EERT

- PRI RHERR AR A A

RMB8,730,000
ARH 8,730,000 7T
RMB1,680,000

audit of China Singyes New R E EEET AR# 1,680,000 70
Materials Holdings Limited ([HZEFAMEL])
(“Singyes New Materials”)

Non-audit services L BURTE

— Tax service - ISR HK$195,500

195,500/ 7T

— Professional services fee —- B REENM R RMB400,000
in relation to the spin-off ZHEEREER AR# 400,000 7T
of Singyes New Materials

— Agreed upon procedures - WHNEITES RMB200,000
on offshore bonds issuance K EREF AR # 200,000 7T

=— Review on financial impact on - BERAN T EREY B E RMB380,000
adoption of new AR¥ 380,000

accounting standards




20

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREERWME

Internal control and risk management

The Group appointed Shinewing Risk Services Limited to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2017. The Group is also in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control manual to further enhance its internal control
and risk management system.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for the
Group’s system of internal control and risk management as well reviewing its
effectiveness an on-going basis, and, in particular, considering the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, training programmes and budget. The
Board will conduct periodic review, at least annually, which cover all material
aspects, including financial, operational, risk management functions and
is in compliance with all relevant regulations and endeavor to enhance the
internal control and risk management measures of the Group. Such systems
are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2017, which were prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 87 to 95.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective and on-going
communications with Shareholders and continues to act in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps Shareholders and
investors informed of its business performance and strategies by adopting
a transparent and timely disclosure policy which complies with the Listing
Rules and provides all Shareholders equal access to such information. The
Company also publishes all documents on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) also provides a
forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the Shareholders directly.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer questions
during the AGM. Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and
related papers were posted to Shareholders for their consideration at least 20
clear business days prior to the AGM.

At each general meeting, the chairman of the meeting proposes individual
resolutions in respect of each substantially separate matter. All matters at
the Company’s general meetings are resolved by poll and the procedures for
conducting a poll will be explained at the meeting. Independent scrutineer
will be engaged to ensure all votes at general meeting are properly counted.
Poll vote results will be posted on the websites of the Company and HKEX in

a timely manner.

AGM proceedings and policies regarding Shareholders’ communication of the
Company are continually reviewed in the light of corporate governance best
practices.

ZF—tFEFR PRERXAHERMERER AR
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Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirements under Paragraph O of the Code which is effective from 1 April
2012.

(a)  Convening of general meeting on requisition by shareholders

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Company’s registered
office in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton,
HM11, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108,
31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three (3) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions
of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

R HERIHER

ATHINARRBRBIETH (BT ——F
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(b)

(c)

EERRE

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any number
of the shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company, or not less
than one hundred of such shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting any
statement of not more than one thousand words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all the
requisitionists must be deposited at the Company’s registered office
in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31/F,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board on the secretary of
the Company, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the enquiries.

(b)

(c)
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INVESTOR RELATION

During the period under review, there had been no significant change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

GOING CONCERN

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

The Company has been introducing, and continues to introduce, measures to
comply with the former and revised Corporate Governance Code. Enhancing
corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with
the Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange but about promoting
and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. During the period
under review, the Board considered the following corporate governance
matters:

(i) review of the compliance with the Code; and

(i)  review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk management
systems of the Group through the Audit Committee.

The Board considered the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2017 are effective and
adequate. We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our
current practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
developments. Any views and suggestions from our shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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ABOUT ESG REPORT
Introduction

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
illustrates the principles and implementation of corporate citizenship in
renewable energy field of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”, “we” or “us”). The ESG report elaborates various works of
the Group supporting the principles of sustainable development in 2017
and its performance of social governance. For the information of corporate
governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 7 to

24.

Scopes of Report

The ESG report covers the Group’s principal businesses in Mainland China.
The ESG report illustrates the overall environmental and social policies of the
Group, including the environmental performance key indicators of principal
subsidiaries located in Zhuhai-Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology
Co., Ltd., Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Co., Ltd., and Singyes Energy-
saving Technologies Co., Ltd. (collectively the “Zhuhai Base”). The Group will
continue to review its performance on environmental and social aspects, and

consider covering more businesses in the ESG report in the following year.

The period covered by the ESG report is consistent with the financial
statements of the Group, from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.

Reporting Guide

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the China Electricity Industry Development Report (2017) of
China Electricity Council, as well as the Calculating Method for Greenhouse
Gases Emission and Reporting Guide published by the National Development
and Reform Commission.
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Participation of Stakeholders

The ESG Report was prepared with the participation of colleagues in various
departments, giving us a clearer picture of the current development level on
environmental and social aspects. The information collected is the summary
of the works of the Group related to environmental and social aspects in 2017
and the basis for our short and long term sustainable development strategy.

Information and Feedback

For more detailed information about the environment and corporate
governance of the Company, please refer to our official website (http://www.
singyessolar.com) and annual report. We highly value your opinions for this
report. If you have any opinions or suggestions, please feel free to contact us
by:

Tel: (86) 756-691 6666
Email: ir_sye@zhsye.com

ABOUT OUR PHILOSOPHY ON ENVIRONMENTAL
AND SOCIAL

The Group strives to provide high and new technologies for energy
conservation, environmental protection, and new materials, and has been
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 2009. The businesses
of the Group comprise five scopes: (i) design, manufacture and installation
of conventional curtain walls and green building construction; (ii) design,
installation and operation of solar projects; (iii) manufacture, sale, research
and development of renewable energy goods; (iv) manufacture, sale and
installation of new materials; and (v) provision of construction design services.
We have two production plants in Mainland China and have offices in Hong
Kong, Macao, Singapore, Malaysia, etc.
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We have shown our dedication to the goal of transforming every building into
mini power plant, with a will to become a global leading provider of clean
energy application system. By utilising the advantage of our existing building
curtain wall business and technology, we continuously conduct research
and development on enhancing the synergy between the clean-energy
technology and energy-saving building knowledge, which support the future
development of ecological construction and low-carbon economy. “People
oriented, Growth with Technology” is the foundation and motto of the Group.
The Group is committed to creating a favorable circumstance for caring for
the environment, caring for the community and caring for our employees.
With the foundation of scientific and technological capabilities, the Group
has continuously upgraded the service qualities of new energy, energy
saving, environmental protection and new materials to achieve satisfaction
among customers. “Harmonious Growth, Joint Development” is the principle
and belief of the Group. We are dedicated to achieve harmonious and joint
development of our nature, society, human and business and established
the concept for the development of integrity management, law compliance
and scientific management. We will keep paying back to the society with our
pioneering and aggressive spirit, and our effort in industrial development as
always. We will also protect the natural environment, share fruitful enterprise
growth with employees, and build more harmonious, civilised and progressive
society.

ENVIRONMENTAL CARE
Green Industry

The Group witnesses the worsening problems of global warming, and the
threat of climate to human beings. As an environmental friendly enterprise,
the Group has shown our dedication to the goal of transforming every
building into mini power plant, promoting emission reduction form source
and enhancing energy efficiency to improve environment, cherish the blue
sky and lead the low-carbon economic development. Over the years, we have
constantly promoted and improved solar technology, as well as growing with
the photovoltaic industry, motivating the photovoltaic industry to develop.
The Zhuhai Base has proactively participated in the following industrial
conference or forum in order to motivate the industrial development:
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o The 13th Five-Year National Major Research and Development
Program “Heating Air-Conditioning Solution and Corresponding System
for Yangtze River Basin Constructions” Annual Progress Meeting
and Demonstration Meeting for the First Demonstration Project

Implementation Plan

o The 13th Five-Year National Major Research and Development
Program “Heating Air-Conditioning Solution and Corresponding System

for Yangtze River Basin Constructions” Project Technical Seminar

° “Sino-European Ecological City Exchange Camp” Forum

o “One Belt and One Road” Photovoltaic Industry Development Summit

o Zhuhai City Prefabricated Building Design Technical Guide Kick-off

Meeting

o Renewable Energy Industry International Cooperation Seminar 2017

° Solar Power Expo Distributed Optoelectronic Building Application

Development Forum 2017

o Optoelectronic Building Committee Technical Experts Seminar

o Guangdong Social Science Academic Annual Meeting 2017 “Enhancing
Quality and Savings, and Improving Supply Quality” Theme Exchange

Meeting

o The 8th China-US Energy Efficiency Forum

o International Electro Technical Commission Photovoltaic Energy System
Standards Committee (IEC/TC82) 2017 Conference and Working

Group Meetings

o International Organization for Standardization Building Glass Technical

Committee (ISO/TC160)2017 Annual Meeting
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Besides promoting the use of solar technology, we proactively regulate
green buildings to ensure a higher specification for the sustainability of
the buildings. We expect that from the aspects of material supply and
environmental protection, together with the establishment of standard
measures, to achieve our final objectives of avoiding squandering resources,
reducing the production of raw materials of photovoltaic components, and
reducing the secondary environmental pollution. Apart from being the
lead author of “Key of Preparation and Review on Zhuhai Green Building
Construction Drawing Design Document” 2017, which published by Zhuhai
City Housing and Urban Planning and Construction Bureau, the Zhuhai Base
has also participated in editing and writing the following standards in this year
which published by the national or local institutions:

° National Standard — GB/T 33295-2016 Technical requirements of
domestic solar water heating systems with collectors on the facade or

balcony of building

° National Standard — GB/T 34327-2017 Terminology for curtain wall
° National Standard — GB/T 34337-2017 Photovoltaic vacuum glass

° National Standard — GB/T 33766-2017 Technical requirements for
independent energy of solar photovoltaic system

o Guangdong Province Standard — Guangdong 16J/140 Solar Energy
Building Integrated Photovoltaic
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Green Products

Coal, oil and other fossil fuels not only are non-renewable resources, but
also generate carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases and waste during
combustion. On the contrary, solar energy is a renewable and inexhaustible
resource. Solar energy is also a clean energy, and its utilisation will not
emit greenhouse gases which intensify greenhouse effect. Therefore, we
vigorously promote the development of solar technology. With the concerns
that solar energy may cause visual pollution in city, we proactively develop
Building Integrated Photovoltaic (“BIPV”) Technology, by using photovoltaic
components as building materials. BIPV application has to be incorporated
into the overall design of building, rather than only a simple combination
of solar photovoltaic components and buildings. It is necessary to consider
various functions and utilizations of building and is an attempt to form new
architectural design ideas and energy-saving building methods. BIPV is not
only for the effect of beautifying the building, but also for the realizations of
shading insulation, heat preservation, energy saving and the reduction of
energy consumption inside the building.

In addition, we also advocate green definition of building, i.e. the
conservation of land, water, energy and material. Pursuant to the principle
of “Passive Priority, Active Optimization”, with the goal of “Ultra-low Energy
Consumption”, we aim to create low-carbon energy-saving building with
rational planning and design at early stage and effective control and
management at later stage, on the basis of high performance maintenance
structures (high visible light transmittance, low shading coefficient), and
supplemented by applying various types of ventilation technology, considering
external shade and ventilation of photovoltaic power generation technology,
and combining with building intelligent control system, etc. Zhuhai Singyes
Green Building Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, is the
chairman of the Chinese Enterprise Committee of US-China Clean Energy
Research Center- Building Energy Efficiency (CERC-BEE) consortium. The
Group actively participates in the activities of the consortium and adheres
to active and productive joint technology development, application and
promotion with its members on the platform of the consortium. In this year,
the Zhuhai Base has participated the following conferences which were held
by CERC-BEE:

GEER

BR - mE AR BT BE - B8k
MG BIRIEREL AL R E REBME
B o MR KIGRER R BARIR - R A&
Rz T - KEGaEE 2 —EFZER - AKX
GRS ELEBRERENBIHREERE -
Bt REBERNHEBKBERERMAOER -
BABBENTS - KB BEEKB RS
2 AUEMBEEERCNEE BN
(BIPV) » B FARTT 1B R EEM £ - BIPVEY
JERUAMAZRENERRT TN
KT EZENG LN - ERFBHATER
ENERINGEEAMER - TER TR EEERTE
SRR L - BIPV MEB R(LESE
BER - BAIAZEILESRR - BRRRAR
R OB EEYNEEEIREFE

Brit 2o - BPITMREH R EER THEHE
& - BDEfkh - &K - BPRE - BT - R [ ENE
% E8EML]RAE - KRRl BE
= STERBAIHENEEHREIRTURESS
BUEHERR - RS kLR (SR
KBS - KBRS ERE) BEM - BUSER
HBBREAT « Z RINER LB R A LR EE
Bl - AR AR B RS T8 KA BN Y
2o BME TS BEFEELARAR AR
RAEDZERBSMAP ORENH R
(CERC-BEE) R A XL B X BN - A%
B —BERIGSHERASN SR - WEH
B BT & FHEpk B BRI - BHKN
BB & BT - ERFIHELIE - AFE -
PRGEM 2 ML T CERC-BEE B2 5% ¢



ZF—tFEFR PRERXAHERMERER AR

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - B RERHRE

° China-US Clean Energy Research Center Saving-Energy Buildings
2nd Phase Project “Clean Zero Energy Consumption Key Technology
Research and Demonstration” and Mission 4 “Research on Key
Technologies of On-line Adjustment and Data Mining in Building
Energy System” Kick-off Meeting

° China-US Clean Energy Research Center Clean Zero Energy
Consumption Building Demonstration Technological Sharing Meeting

In recent years, amidst the advancement of urbanisation and industrialisation
in Mainland China, the conflict between rapid economic development and
energy shortage and environmental deterioration has become increasingly
prominent. We believe that the important purpose of green building
development is to integrate new energy into building, through technological
innovation, to reduce the cost of green building so that it is accessible to
ordinary people. Therefore, we promote the development of energy-saving
and environmental industry in green building, distributed energy resources
and other aspects to make greater contributions to clean energy. The Group’s
exploration and development in photovoltaic industry have gained supports
and recognisation from authoritative bodies and professional platforms
within the industry. In this year, the Zhuhai Base has obtained the following
qualifications and awards:
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Awards Presenters Date of award
FREsRIR ARBEEE i EAERTE
Top Ten Famous Brand Award 2017 China Green Building and Energy-Saving 10 September 2017

in China Green Building Materials and
Equipment Industry

2017 RIS BRI SR ABT T3

TREL MR

Most Popular Brand Award 2017 in
China Green Building Materials and
Equipment Industry

2017 R EIAR B IEM BB TEE
BEARMEE

2017 Zhuhai City “Building Party and
Encouraging Innovation”Techonology
Competition (Innovation Group)

2017 xR [ i S| SRAIFTEES) |
BHRE (BIFT4E)

Creative Innovation Festival “Architecture
and Urban Development” Best Popularity
Award in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Bay Area

N[ Bl B Al 5Tk 5

[ T R | SlE AR

Professional Council, China Green Ecological
Intellectual City Industrial Network,
Guangdong Building Energy Conservation
Association, Green Building Materials and
Engineering Professional Council
PRGCEEEMEEXEZEE  FEHZE
SRREBHMERSE BREEEDRHS
GERMETREEXEEE

China Green Building and Energy-Saving
Professional Council, China Green Ecological
Intellectual City Industrial Network,
Guangdong Building Energy Conservation
Association, Green Building Materials and
Engineering Professional Council
TRAGERERMEEXEZE Y  PEHLE
ERREBHMERY  EREEESEHE
FEEMBTIREXZES

Chinese Communist Party Zhuhai
City Committee Member Organization
Department, Chinese Communist Party
Zhuhai City Non-public Economic
Organization and Social Organization
Committee

RHRFEMERBSMEGE  PHRRETIELE
i BEEBMT 2EBTIERES

Delta-Bridges Media, Sino-Singapore
Guangzhou Knowledge City, Sino-Singapore
Guangzhou Knowledge City International
Innovation and Venture Base
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BIFRBIRTEI R i

201749 A10H

10 September 2017
201799 A10H

28 September 2017
201799 A28H

10 November 2017
2017411 A10H
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Treasure the Resources

We not only put effort on environment in our business, but also proactively
step towards low-carbon lifestyle in our operation. The Group has put
numerous environmental-friendly elements in our property design. One of
our office buildings - Research and Development Building of Singyes Solar
has fully considered the application environment of passive technique, and
combined active technique to enhance the applicability of the building,
adopting 36 green building energy-saving techniques in total, and has passed
the evaluation, being awarded the highest level certificate in China green
building-Certificate of Green Building Design Label with Three-star Rating.
Research and Development Building of Singyes Solar adopts human-induced
lighting, air conditioning, and fresh air triple control technology, taking
information technology as carrier, positioning through microwave technology,
and integrates building intelligent control system, to integrate the control of
lighting, air conditioning, and fresh air with people’s indoor activity, achieving
the situation of “Turn on when people are present, turn off if absent”,
avoiding unnecessary energy consumption and achieving interactions
between people and internals of buildings. Apart from utilising photovoltaic to
generate electricity in order to reduce greenhouse gases emission, Research
and Development Building of Singyes Solar has also adopted evaporative
condensation heat recovery fresh air unit. Apart from using photovoltaic
power generation to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, Research and
Development Building of Singyes Solar also adopts an evaporative condensing
total heat recovery fresh air unit to recover the cooling capacity of exhaust
air to save resources. Our Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Industrial Park
adopts photovoltaic power generation technology and energy comprehensive
management technology, and has become a demonstration project for
distributed power plants and smart micro grids. In addition, the staff quarters
in Zhuhai Base also use the building integrated solar thermal technology, by
combining the solar and thermal system with building construction to provide
employee with hot water, heating and air conditioning, etc., in order to reduce
our demand for thermal power and lessen environmental pollution.
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The Zhuhai Base did not generate waste water during the production
process, and the domestic sewage was directly discharged into the municipal
pipe network. In the test in July of this year, the water pollutants of the
domestic sewage in the Zhuhai Base reached the discharge requirements
of the DB4426-2001 Guangdong Provincial Local Standard “Water Pollutant
Emission Limit”. In order to save water, Research and Development Building
of Singyes Solar uses a standard water-saving sanitary appliance to reduce
its water consumption to meet the normal use of functions to save water
resources. The Research and Development Building of Singyes Solar also
employs a wet pond method to store rainwater. It normally plays a normal
landscape and leisure function, and plays a function of regulating and storing
in the event of heavy rain.

We regularly carry out employee education for the promotion of energy
saving, requiring employees to save resources, and following the “Say No
to Waste” system to minimize unnecessary energy usage. We implement
responsibility and penalty policies in respect of office equipment, such as
air conditioning, and computer, specifically for employees who do not switch
off air conditioning or computer after work. In order to avoid the additional
resource consumption caused by the facility failure, we will carry out repairs
immediately after discovering any failures. To encourage employees to
actively propose measures that have a positive impact on the environment,
we recognize and reward employees who have made reasonable suggestions
to achieve resource conservation goals. In response of material use, the
Group avoids excess inventory by conducting material usage assessment.
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In the year, the energy consumption of Zhuhai Base is as follows: REE WEEMEREELNT ¢
Indicator 2017
BE 2017
Direct and indirect energy consumption(MWh) B MEEEReREE OkRE) 6,232
Total energy consumption per square meter FEHKEAEBEEERARE (TRE/FHK)
of floor area (kWh/ m?) 58.04
Consumption of non-renewable resources(MWh) TR B EREEE OKRE) 857
Energy consumption for generating electricity(MWh) FORIEEFERNE ) OREE) 5,304
Energy consumption of self-generated electricity(MWh) BITHEMNERREE KRR 71
Total water consumption(m3) BIEKE (LK) 186,110
Recycling amount of rainwater(m?) KERE (Z75K) 1,645
Water consumption per square meter of floor area(m3/m?) & KEEEREKE (LK FhHXK) 1.75
Consumption of cardboards(tons)! MERFERE ()! 30
Consumption of paper and paper packaging materials(tons) #& & #4AE REEHAHE B E (1K) 3
.. o
Emission Management HRmEE

The Research and Development Building of Singyes Solar uses solar energy FRAGREAEENBAGRETHE - FTE
to generate electricity. The green electricity generated can replace traditional ENRBBNIEREROANEE, FHI K
thermal power generation, reduce emissions of sulfur dioxide, nitrogen NEBRIEEEN QN - AE/IWEER
oxides, and greenhouse gases from the thermal power generation process to MEoRZREE - EREHORSNE R - A=
achieve low-carbon emission reductions and improve air quality, mitigating ERER  BNRKE({ - BE2017F12A
climate change. As of December 31, 2017, the total capacity of the Research 318 1E MRAGREMBENBEAEENS
and Development Building of Singyes Solar was approximately 71 MWh. 7TIREE o BEAMRERLLE - HE R
Compared with domestic coal-fired power plants, this is equivalent to a DHISOME ALK - 28 TR _ALH - 26T
reduction of approximately 59 tons of carbon dioxide, 28 kg of sulfur dioxide, RRB(CHN6 T e EEH -

26 kg of nitrogen oxides and 6 kg of soot emissions.

I Due to the variety of packaged products, it is not possible to calculate the amount of packaging materials per unit products.
IEHpRERESE  WELSTENERBREMBRE -
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In addition to saving energy and water, we have taken different measures
to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group during its
operation. In transportation, we encourage employees to replace unnecessary
overseas business trips with video conferences. If the business travel is
unavoidable, we encourage employees to use direct flights to reduce the
carbon emissions from each flight. We also manage the carbon emissions
from our fleet. We will regularly maintain the fleet and prohibit the idling of
the engine so as to reduce the energy wasted on wasting vehicles. By renting
electric commuter vehicles, we also indirectly reduce air pollution caused
by fuel vehicles and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Due to the use of
the Group’s fleet, the Zhuhai Base discharged 460 kg of nitrogen oxides, 1
kg of sulfur dioxide and 35 kg of suspended particulates during the year.
Furthermore, we have planted trees in our office areas to increase our ability
to absorb carbon dioxide and reduce the net increase in greenhouse gases.
During this year, the greenhouse gas emissions and emission reductions at
the Zhuhai Base are listed below:

BT B RIREIR R K - BRAMTIERECN B B9 FE e
BAOREEESENRMESENAERE © £
b RPSEEBEIURAGEREIELE
BBINAT o BEREISIRIT A& R - B
BB T A EMMIE LR A & RARIT 5 B iR
PERR - BPIIP A BB EROIRGEN - BMEE
HMAEBGETRE - WEIL)RESBEE - L
WAREBMERNER - BAHEAEHED
B RMTEEROOMES B ERTR
WIEEREREBHNE - AFAAEEE TS
B - BRBEMAERFEHMT 460 TRASA(
Y 1T RS &35 T RERY - b
BMERAEAEERA - SRk = At
WREvee ) - WM ERERESHFIL N o KNG
B RGEMARZE RIBEENE SR EET
[

Indicator 2017
BE 2017
Total emission of greenhouse gases(tons) BERBEHNE (M) 50,325
Total greenhouse gases emission per square FEAAEARENEERESEE (B, FhX)
of floor area (tons/m?) 0.47
Direct emission(Aspect 1) B (E@E—) 47,338
Indirect emission(Aspect 2) s (BE ) 2,796
Indirect emission(Aspect 3) s (EE=) 191
Avoided total greenhouse gases emission BRAGEEETHPREREHNES ()
through generating electricity by solar power(tons) 59
Avoided total greenhouse gases emission through FRFEARNKERAGEEREREHNEE (TR)
using rainwater recycling system(kilogram) 605
Avoided total greenhouse gases emission BREEEAECREREHNEE (TR)
through planting trees(kilogram) 1,472
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Waste Management R EE

The Group’s operations tend to be paperless. We encourage employees to use AEBRNEEBRERL  BMEEEIFERA
email for internal and external communication. We use office automation (OA) B EFETRETIING B - WERRAA
system for notifications, transfer applications, holiday applications and other &)1t (Office Automation * 4% OA) R & #E1T

administrative procedures as paperless office we encourage employees to BAN - FERE  REARBETEEF - LAE
use e-mail for internal or external communication, and promote double-side BEACPH AR BZR - BIREAISCHER

printed internal documents to fully utilize paper. We also require employees EEITH - RRARMAE - ROMERKET
to collect recyclable and non-recyclable wastes. The Group will transfer the ¥ A] BRI A e ] BRI A R R 1T
recyclable waste to recyclers, and non-recyclable waste will be processed by B - AEEBATEIKREEY SR HEKRE
a qualified waste disposal company. Zhuhai Base did not produce hazardous BRIE - TRl U EEEMR A E BRI RERE
waste during the year. During this year, the amount of non-hazardous waste NERIE o INEEMAERFE LA EETRE

generated at the Zhuhai Base is as follows: ZY o AFE  WEEMESCBEEVEN
™
Indicators 2017
BE 2017
Total amount of non-hazardous waste handled REABERARIEENEZEZEYEE ()
by accredited company (tons) 83
Total amount of non-hazardous waste handled BEAKEAMBERHABREERN 0.77
in an accredited manner per square meter BEEENRE (TR, FHK)

of floor area(kilogram/m?)
Total amount of recycled waste(tons) BRI ER B E () 423
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PEOPLE ORIENTED
Attracting Talents

We believe that employees are the foundation of scientific management as
well as the core competence of the Group. We recognise the importance
of nurturing talents, and we are dedicated to building a love and caring
environment for our employees. Our business philosophy fully exemplifies
our respect for employees and our exploration of employee’s potentials.
According to our annual recruitment plan, we adopt ways such as On-site job
fairs, online recruitment, internal recommendation, and campus recruitment
to absorb talents. All applicants shall attend interviews conducted by
department of human resources and department head. During recruitment,
the Group offers equal opportunity for all applicants, regardless of their
gender, nationality, family role. The Group strictly abides with Provisions on
the Prohibition of Using Child Labor; we avoid hiring child labor by checking
identity certificate and confirming the age of applicant. Before employment,
employee must sign labor contract, in which the job description, insurance
and benefits, working and holiday hour are stated, in order to avoid forced
labor of any form. If there work overtime, the overtime work must be opened
to negotiation, and if employees need to work overtime, overtime work must
be agreed upon and compensation should be made in overtime paid or
compensatory time, and relevant laws and regulations should be complied
with, with a view to preventing forced overtime work.

Employee Benefits

The Group strictly abides with laws and regulations related to employees’ right
and benefits, for instance, Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, and Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China. We regularly formulate a remuneration
system which is competitive in market according to the remuneration level of
the same industry in the same region and the Group’s business performance.
We will also adjust employees’ performance bonus and annual bonus in
accordance with the results of employees’ regular performance assessment.
The Group adopts a 5-day 8-hours working condition, and offers various
holidays to our employees, such as annual leave, marriage leave and
paternity leave. Apart from fixed remuneration, monthly performance bonus
and annual bonus, we also provide our employees with different benefits.
Besides statutory benefits and insurance, we will also offer body examination,
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marriage gift, festival gift, and children education gift to our employees.
In respect of personal situation, the Group arranges various subsidies to
our employees, including technical subsidy, transportation subsidy, and
accommodation subsidy. In order to encourage employees to work long
term in the Group, we provide annual service allowance for employees who
have joined the Group over one year. Apart from monetary support, we pay
more attention to their spiritual satisfaction. The Group believes that mutual
communication is the most crucial factor to increase sense of belongings,
and also beneficial to increase employee’s satisfaction on work and efficiency,
so as to decrease the turnover rate. The Group has established appropriate
channels for employees and senior management to communicate; the
department of human resources will collect employees’ opinion and
suggestion, and tackle the problem together with other department heads,
improving the relationship between employees. In a bid to improve the
Group’s operation, we will arrange a face-to-face meeting with the employees
who have resigned, in order to know the reason behind their departure;

moreover, we will pay the remaining wages to them on time.

Health and Safety

The Group sets up the idea of “Life First, Safety First” and strictly abides
by the requirements of the Occupational Health and Safety Management
System (GB/T 28001-2001) of Mainland China to protect the safety of
employees as the core belief. We also provide annual medical examinations
for employees. We care employees’ safety and health, and identify, evaluate
and control the hazards in various production activities and the occupational
health and safety deficiencies of the Group that may lead to accidents,
improve production condition and working environment. We regularly inspect
employees’ exposure to occupational hazards to ensure that employees work
in a safe environment. In response to the possibility of an accident, we have
developed an emergency plan. In order to improve the emergency personnel’s
ability to properly handle accidents in an emergency and to improve the
emergency plan; we have also conducted regular drills and review the drill
results. We understand that there is a close relationship between the safety
of equipment and the safety of employees. To this end, we not only provide
occupational protection facilities and protective equipment, but also remind
employees of the safety measures that need to be taken when using the
equipment. At the same time, we also clearly state methods for occupational
health and safety control. For example, employees are required to check the
equipment daily before operation to ensure the equipment is well maintained
and kept in a normal working conditions, and being capable to operate stably.
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In addition to being equipped with safety protection facilities, the Group
actively carries out publicity and safety training for its employees in order
to enhance employees’ self-protection awareness and capabilities. Bulletin
boards are set up inside the factory building, which announces the rules
and regulations, operating procedures, emergency rescue measures for
occupational hazards, and detection results of occupational hazards related
to occupational hazards prevention and control. We also make sure that
all equipment operation and maintenance personnel are well trained,
while project managers, construction quality and safety inspectors, special
operators, chemical management, etc. also are required to report duties
with licenses in accordance with the requirements of national laws and
regulations. In order to enhance the safety awareness of employees, we
provide trainings for special positions and provide safety tertiary education
for new employees and regular trainings on occupational safety education
for all employees. We conduct questionnaire survey for the participants to
continuously improve our training effectiveness. We will continue to analyse
and improve the safety management of our employees.

Employee Development and Training

Considering that we have to build an outstanding team and stretch their
potential in line with the long-term development of the Group, we provide
clear promotion path as well as training for our employees. Employees can
be promoted through three career development paths, including technical
path, management path and operating path, each of development career can
be subdivided into more professional development. No matter it is technical,
management or operating path, employees shall enjoy the corresponding
benefits as long as the same level, including salary income, benefit, spiritual
honor, etc. The decision of promoting employees is fair and open, among
which no discrimination against employees is practiced. Whenever there
is a job vacancy, we will consider promoting internal excellent employee
according to his/her annual performance assessments results, granting
recognition to our employee’s effort and contribution.
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With a view to growing together with our employees, we provide our employees
with various training besides induction training. We have established an
internal lecturer team to provide internal training for our employees, and also
hired professionals to train our employees. We are committed to improve the
production techniques, design method, management ability, and equipment
maintenance ability of our employees, offering chances to employees to let
them perform better in his/her professional field, thus raising the professional
status of the Group. We have organized the following training program this

year:

° Technical training for workers

o Design principal for calculation of curtain wall structure and steel
structure

° Abnormal curtain wall design and precautions

° Related knowledge training of engineering adjustment center

o Case studies of construction

o Construction, contract, labor service, industry and commerce and
other related laws and regulations training

Some of the trainers shall pass the training assessment before receiving
the qualification and working permit, in order to ensure that employees
understand the content of training. We will continue to improve the training
quality of employees by assessing the training results. In order to improve
employees’ operational techniques and offer technique show to employees,
we have organized a “Singyes Solar (Zhuhai Base) 2nd Labor Technique
Competition for Workers” this year.
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MUTUAL DEVELOPMENT WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Cooperation with Suppliers

The Group expects to have long-term cooperation with suppliers to joint
sustainable development and take initiative of innovation. The Group
has been conducting public bidding procurement in an open, fair and
honest manner as competitive principle. During the selection process of
suppliers, we will give priority to suppliers who have obtained certifications
such as “ISO9001 Quality Management System Certification”, “ISO014001
Environmental Management System Certification”, and “OHSAS18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management System Certification” to ensure
that the suppliers have sufficient support for product quality, environmental
protection, energy saving, emission reduction, and occupational safety and
health. The Group will also conduct site visits to some suppliers’ factories and
conduct field sampling inspections to ensure that its production equipment is
qualified, personnel and facilities are adequate, and the production process
and products meet the national quality standards. For qualified suppliers,
we will continue to supervise and inspect their products and services. We
also regularly update our list of major suppliers, and we will periodically
evaluate suppliers’ performance of agreed terms, and take them as a basis
for selecting suppliers and improving supplier management.

Products and Services

The Group places considerable value on the quality of products, we have
established a system for product inspection and project acceptance. We have
achieved a comprehensive quality control in the production process. We have
carefully designed the process of import processing inspection, production
process inspection and finished product inspection, and employed third-
party accredited testing centers to test the physical properties of some
products to ensure that the products meet the quality requirements. During
the construction process, we inspect the key processes according to the
requirements of the construction drawings, and inspect the construction of
the project regularly, and conduct regular quality inspections every quarter.
We will also conduct inspection after the construction is completed. If the
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owner discovers any quality problems after using, we take related measures
based on the extent of the substandard impact or the potential impact. We
also identify the resources, raw materials, equipment, spare parts, semi-
finished products, finished products and engineering inspection status for
the project to trace the quality of the project and the safety quality of the
products.

Maintain Business Ethics

The Group has always respected the privacy and intellectual property rights
entrusted to individuals by the law, and strictly protected the personal data
of customers and our intellectual property rights. We enter into confidential
agreements with employees and provide monthly confidential subsidies to
employees to ensure that the information of customers will not be leaked
out. In addition to irregularly conducting information security education and
training, we also set up a mechanism for information management authority
auditing and information security management to ensure data security. We
signed confidentiality agreements with suppliers and customers to strengthen
the protection of business secrets and safeguard the legal rights of both
parties. During promotion and sales, the Group complies with the Advertising
Law of the PRC and other relevant laws and regulations, and strives to
provide accurate information on publicity materials and prohibit employees
from making any false, misleading or inaccurate statements in any form
of marketing activities. The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Patent Law of the PRC and the Trademark Law of
the PRC to protect intellectual property rights. New patents authorized by the
Zhuhai Base in this year are listed as follows:

° Solar forced cooling wave fin heat pump
o Adjustable water curtains across the aquifer

° Dimming glass fixed doors for metro screen doors multimedia systems

Adjustable flat tube heat transfer module soldering fixture device
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Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to preventing the occurrence of corruption. We have
adopted a clear avoidance system, prohibiting direct leadership relationships
among employees who have husband and wife relationship, immediate
family relationship, three generation collateral relatives and other close
family relationships. Moreover, we clearly stipulate that employees should be
honest, loyal to their duties, and shall not abuse their official powers to seek
any improper benefits. We sign an Integrity Agreement with our customers to
enhance their mutual legal awareness of business operations and integrity,
improve self-discipline and self-supervision mechanisms, and create a law-
abiding, honest, efficient and clean working environment to prevent the
occurrence of violations of law and discipline. We strictly abide by laws and
regulations concerning the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

HARMONIOUS SINGYES

While pursuing business development, the Group has spared no effort to
contribute to the community and the industry. Apart from participating in
different industry conferences and involving in the formulation of industry
standards, we also cooperated with different agencies to promote the
development of the industry and share the results of our research and
development. This year, we cooperated with Sun Yat-sen University to
research the topic of “Key Technology and Product Development of New
Flexible Liquid Crystal Dimming PET Functional Films” and jointly studied
projects of the 13th Five-Year national key research and development
projects with different organizations. To promote the extensive exchange of
green building technologies, we invited different external agencies to visit.
During the year, we received more than 50 external agencies, for example:

o Huanggang Huaya Zhongzhou Furnace Co., Ltd.

o Beijing Normal University- Hong Kong Baptist University United
International College

o Zhuhai City Women Federation
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - B RERHRE

° Beijing Institute of Technology, Zhuhai Department of Energy and
Power Engineering

° The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Henan
Province

As an enterprise with social responsibility, the Group actively supports young
students, helps those in distress, utilizes our technological achievements to
promote public welfare development, and brings solar technology to people
in remote areas. During this year, the Group jointly established a 10MW
photovoltaic project in Nanhe Village with Zhuhai Provincial Special Fund
for Poverty Alleviation and Zhuhai Municipal People’s Congress Standing
Committee, and actively implemented accurate poverty alleviation strategies.
The project adopts a complementary agriculture and light industry model,
which solves local employment problems, drives local economic development,
and promotes the poverty-stricken households with labor in Nanhe Village to
get out of poverty. In this year, the Group held a public welfare event for poor
children in Sichuan Ganzi and sent a batch of caring materials and holiday
greetings to poor students in Litang County and Daocheng County in Ganzi
Prefecture.

In the past, the Group had organized donations for Yushu, Wenchuan, and
Ya'an earthquakes, donated solar water heating systems in Daofu County,
Ganzi Prefecture, Gansu Province, donated a solar streetlight to Mengcun,
Lantian County, Shaanxi, and also donated books to the Wenta Primary
School in Yangjiang City, and donated to the mentally handicapped students
of Zhuhai Qianshan Middle School, and participated in Zhuhai Carnations
single-parent families social welfare activities. The Group is courageous to
take on social responsibility and tirelessly give back to the society through
industry development.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a professional renewable energy solution provider and building
contractor. Our main businesses are design, fabrication and installation
of curtain wall, green building and solar projects. Solar projects included
Building Integrated Photovoltaic System (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar
system and ground mounted solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”); we also
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of renewable energy goods. Our
BIPV system involves (i) the integration of photovoltaic technology into the
architectural design of buildings and structures and (ii) conversion of solar
energy into electricity for use. Our system allows the electricity generated
from solar panels to be connected to the power grid of a building and the
electricity generated from sun power will be consumed simultaneously. No
extra electricity storage cost is required. In addition, we also engage in the
production and sale of renewable energy goods, including smart grid system
and solar thermal system. In 2011, we also started a new business called
Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO”) business or “New Material” business. Leveraging
on our track record and extensive experience in our curtain wall business, we
will further strengthen and develop our renewable energy business in respect
of BIPV systems and renewable energy goods. Apart from the above, we also
provide engineering design services and engage in the sale of curtain wall
materials. Our Group will endeavour to continue our focus on solar business.
In the long run, we will aspire and strive to grow into an enterprise with a

focus on renewable energy business.
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Curtain wall and green building business

A stable grow has been noted in curtain wall and green building business.
Revenue (including curtain walls and green building and sale of conventional
goods) grew by RMB128.8 million or 6.5%. Business inside Mainland China
remains steady while business in the overseas market maintained a strong

grow.

Solar EPC business

We are a one-stop solution provider in Solar EPC, the year-to-year solar EPC
revenue recorded a stable growth, revenue grew by RMB362.6 million or
16.3% compared with the year 2016.

The Group has firstly entered into the Solar EPC market in China in 2007,
because of the strong support by the Golden Sun Demonstration Project
(“Golden Sun”), our Solar EPC business recorded a significant growth
over the past few years. Looking ahead into 2018, China’s solar industry is
transforming from utility-scale development to distributed solar and poverty
alleviation. As one of the leaders in solar EPC area, we are also shifting in
these areas. Currently, we have already secured certain sizable poverty
alleviation projects in provinces in the central part of China. Apart from solar
EPC, we also hold solar farm projects in Guangdone and Northwest China.
Solar farms in Guangdong are able to bring stable cashflow to the Group. The
grid curtailment for solar farms in Northwest China became less significant
compared with previous years, in addition, most of our grid-connected
solar farms in these areas have already been included in the 6th batch of
government subsidy program. The long receivable problem has significantly
be improved.
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Development of renewable energy goods

Apart from solar EPC, we also produce different kinds of renewable energy
goods. Renewable energy goods include solar photovoltaic materials and
solar thermal products. Solar thermal products include air-source heat
pump, solar heat collectors and solar heating system. Our long-term strategy
is, through our innovative research and development team, to diversify the
application of solar, and to widen the solar application in different area, like
rural application and irrigation.

Self-developed solar projects

At 31 December 2017, the Group had 320 MW grid-connected power
stations and 67.4 MW projects awaiting for grid-connection. In the future,
the Group will consider investment opportunities in solar power stations in
provinces with high electricity demand, for example Guangdong province,
given that the solar farms there have not encountered any curtailment in
electricity generation.

Overseas business opportunities

Overseas revenue grew by RMB143.7 million or 36.0%, it contributed
approximately 9.6% of the Group’s total revenue (2016: 7.6%). Apart from
Hong Kong, Macao and Malaysia, the Group also expanded its business in
the Oceania, Africa and United States.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW EF5 R4 F5 DR
Revenue PN

The following table set out the breakdown of revenue: TRINTBASEE

2017 2016
—F—tF —E—RF
RMB million RMB million
ARBEET ARBEET
Curtain walls and green buildings Bl ki EEE
— Public work /N 499.7 237.3
— Commercial and industrial -Im 855.8 1,173.0
— High-end residential -EEEE 320.3 213.6
1,675.8 1,623.9
Solar EPC AI58E EPC
— Public work - RETE 603.0 16.2
— Commercial and industrial -1 1,985.2 2,209.4
2,588.2 2,225.6
Total construction contracts EEASRIAE 4,264.0 3,849.5
Sale of goods BEmiEE
— Conventional materials —fE5M R 412.2 335.3
— Renewable energy goods Al A ARLIRE @ 745.6 882.3
— New materials R ALZLEs 115.8 90.9
Total sale of goods EmEE R 1,273.6 1,308.5
Sale of electricity, including tariff adjustment & /1$5% - B IEE[E AL 282.0 161.6
Rendering of design and other services AR R E A RS 13.3 13.2
Rendering of operation and RAETT R MRS
maintenance service 9.2 —
5,842.1 5,332.8
Tariff adjustment BEEL (166.7) (93.2)
Total revenue FEN N 5,675.4 5,239.6
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Gross profit and gross profit margin EMRENZE
2017 2016
—F—tF —E—RF
RMB million %  RMB million %
AREEHER AREBEHET
Construction contracts BEAR
— Curtain walls and green buildings ~— —%1% R4k B 234.3 14.0 260.6 16.0
— Solar EPC - KF58EEPC 649.5 25.1 579.2 26.0
883.8 20.7 839.8 21.8
Sale of goods BmiHE
— Conventional materials —EEie 98.9 24.0 55.9 16.7
— Renewable energy goods - BAERRE R 87.4 11.7 196.8 22.3
— New materials B EE 45.1 38.9 356 39.2
231.4 18.2 288.3 22.0
Sale of electricity, including BHHEE - BIEEE/H
tariff adjustment 182.1 64.6 92.6 57.3
Rendering of design and MR R E MRS
other services 3.0 22.6 7.2 545
Rendering of operation and RHET REERS
maintenance service 5.2 56.5 > —
Total gross profit and gross profit BENREN=E -
margin including tariff adjustment BIEEE R 1,305.5 22.3 1,227.9 23.0

The Group’s revenue (including electricity tariff adjustment) increased by
RMB509.3 million or 9.6%, from RMB5,332.8 million in the year 2016 to
RMBb5,842.1 million in the year 2017. Gross profit (including electricity tariff
adjustment) increased by RMB77.6 million or 6.3%, from RMB1,227.9
million in the year 2016 to RMB1,305.5 million in the year 2017.

AEBHBA(REEEFE) B=-F—X
F 1 A R #5,332,800,0007T 3 i A B ¥
509,300,0007C89.6% E - T —LtFEMAR
& 5,842,100,000 7T  EX| (B FEEEWEL) B
—T—NFERARE 1,227,900,000 T A0 A
R #77,600,0007T86.3% 2T —+tFH A
¥ 1,305,500,000 7T °
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1) Curtain wall and green building 1) BiERGEEE
Revenue from curtain wall and green building business reached EREGOEREBENRAEARK
RMB1,675.8 million, representing an increase of RMB51.9 million or 1,675,800,0007T * #tk — = — N F i
3.2% compared with the year 2016. I AREE 51,900,000 78 3.2% °
The increase in revenue was because of the recovery of construction W ASE T R PR B K BE B M IR SR 1T 2
industry domestically inside Mainland China. 8% -
2) Solar EPC 2) KIBEEEPC
Revenue from solar EPC amounted to RMB2,588.2 million, X 5 BEEPCH) 8t A B A R ®
representing a strong growth of RMB362.6 million or 16.3% from 2,5688,200,0007C * B —F — ;N F 813
RMB2,225.6 million reported in the year 2016, while gross margin B A R 2,225,600,000 7T 38 18 & A
for the sector remained strong at 25.1% (2016: 26.0%). R #362,600,0007C816.3% * A58

EPCHER R MEIFAS - B25.1% (=
T—XNE 1 26.0%) °

3) Sale of goods 3) ER#HE
(i)  Sale of conventional materials accounted to RMB412.2 million, i) EHEVMHEHEETEARARE
up RMB76.9 million or 22.9% driven by the strong growth in the 412,200,000 © % )8 4T B
overseas market. BEYLRAMIEE  EMARE

76,900,000 7T3% 22.9% ©

(i) Sale of renewable energy goods recorded a decrease of (il HBAREAEERKELREEPCER KL
RMB136.7 million from RMB882.3 million in the year 2016 KIGaEEB L 2B AREERZE
because the Group has spent relatively more resources in solar R AIBARREREERSER
EPC projects and solar farm operations. ZE—RFM AR 882,300,000

TOR A AR 136,700,000 7T ©



52

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

(iii)

(iv)

New Material business represented sale of Indium Tin Oxide
(“ITO") film and its products. ITO film can be processed into
touch-screen ITO film and switchable ITO film, while the
switchable ITO film can further be processed into smart light-
adjusting glass and smart light-adjusting projection system. ITO
film and smart light-adjusting products are relatively new to
the consumers in China and therefore, the market penetration
is currently quite low. Riding on the increasing sales volume
generated by our Group’s successful marketing strategies,
revenue surged by RMB24.9 million or 27.4% and gross margin
remained high at 38.9% (2016: 39.2%).

The following table sets out the Group’s self-invested solar power
stations as at 31 December 2017.

(iy FMHEBKREEESRHE/IY
(ITO)BEBEREER - ITOEE
RAI TR AR F ITOZ B IR &
AIFAEFITOZERE - MAIFHETITO
BEERHE— SIS AN

ZF - ITOE

BEREREEAREMHIERS

REHB - Bt MHL2EXRR

BFRRTRIE o BEBEAEEA I 8

FREE A HETEIE I - WA

F+ A R # 24,900,000 7T 8% 27.4%

REFEREHRHIBINE(ZT

— N 139.2%) °

nes

W R B R AR

(iv) TREINAEER-_ZF—LF
TZA=tT—HBTRENKE

Pending grid
On-grid connection In-progress Total
#48 kgt TR wst
Location MwW Mw MW MW
25 JKET kT K JKEL
Guangdong province EBEA 170.5 13.9 75.6 260.0
Northwest China AR B Pt Ef 113.0 53.5 — 166.5
Golden Sun/Distributed Power LA, DB 34.5 — — 34.5
Overseas PEZIN 2.0 — — 2.0
320.0 67.4 75.6 463.0

The Group’s accumulated on-grid capacity increased from 270.7 AEBNERAHERER T —X~F+=A
megawatts (“MW”) at 31 December 2016 to 320.0 MW at 31 =+—HM270.7 KR ([JKE )1
December 2017, which comprised of 34.5 MW Golden Sun or F+-A=+—HH3200kKE ' B#34.5)K
distributed power stations, and 283.5 MW ground-mounted solar R KBk n M\ Bl & 283.5 K FLibmE A5
farms inside Mainland China and a 2 MW solar farm overseas. BEE I R — BR8N 2 KL K5
The sale of electricity, including tariff adjustment, therefore, It BEAEE(REEERHI)BZZE—RF
increased by 74.5% to RMB282.0 million in the year 2017, from AR 161,600,000 T 11 74.5% E =T —+

RMB161.6 million in the year 2016.

& AR 282,000,000 7T ©

25—

=

BeEuh ©
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Revenue and gross profit contribution from different business REFABREXBESHBARER :
sectors:

Revenue split (including tariff adjustment) WA (BT EEHE)
2017 2016
—T—tE —E2-RF
RMB million %  RMB million %
AREEHERT ARBEET
Conventional business? [EESE A 2,101.3 36.0 1,972.4 37.0
Renewable energy business? Al BARLRER? 3,625.0 62.1 3,269.5 61.3
New material business LR e 115.8 1.9 90.9 1.7
5,842.1 100.0 5,332.8 100.0
Gross profit split (including tariff adjustment) EFFD (BIFEERHL)
2017 2016
—T—tF ZE—RF
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEERT AREBETT
Conventional business! [EEES A 336.2 25.8 323.7 26.4
Renewable energy business? Al A EIREETS 2 924.2 70.8 868.6 70.7
New material business MRS 45.1 3.4 35.6 29
1,305.5 100.0 1,227.9 100.0
1 Included curtain wall and green building construction contracts, sale of L PEREBRGERESRE  HEERMER
conventional materials and rendering of design and other services. IR AT R E MR -
2 Included solar EPC construction contracts, sale of renewable energy goods, 2 BREANGREPCEEAR  HEFERE
rendering of operation and maintenance service and sale of electricity and tariff m o REETREERBRHEE N REE

adjustment. AL ©

53
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Other income and gains

Other income and gains mainly represented deferred income released,
interest income on retention money, gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment and government grants. The amount dropped by 26.4% to
RMB178.9 million in the year 2017 mainly because of the drop in the gain
on disposal of solar farms during the year.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB26.2 million or 20.3%.
The increment was mainly caused by the increase in freight costs and rental
expenses, and other business related expenses.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses slightly increased by RMB7.1 million or 2.0%.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly represented the bank charges and fair value loss
and the loss on settlement of derivative financial instruments. The increase
in other expense was because the increase in fair value loss and also the
increase in loss on settlement of derivative financial instruments.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB253.3 million or 68.8% mainly
because of the increase in interests on bank and other loans and the interest
in senior notes. It also included approximately RMB137.9 million of loss on
redemption and RMB22.5 million of loss on repurchase of convertible bonds.

AU B W 2

Htw AR EEZABEIELERE - ERE
FEWA « HEWE - WE REREOUE R
[ e &ML 264%E_FT—tFAR
# 178,900,000 TH = ZRARFRNHE LS
BE B AR AT RN o

HERSHMAX

$HE Mo 8 R 2 18 0 A R # 26,200,000 7T 3%
20.3% ' ENEERRNEBNMES AT KHA
MR -

1TBIR

17 BB 2 BE 42 n A R 7,100,000 7T 3
2.0% °

HAthpA

HAX T RERTRERITESBRTANA
FEBBREERK - RSN ARIT
EERT AN FEBEENNEEIRRIEM
PREL

ELi={o%: 3

7N £2 [ B & K AN 3 N A R #E 253,300,000 7T
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REFZEBEOFSILMAE - EANBFEHOHA
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Income tax expense FreBiZ

Income tax expense during the year included RMB136.7 million of taxation RAFE FEEHAXBEREHEEIHAR

charge and RMB16.8 million of deferred tax credit. For the year 2016, 136,700,000 RIELEH IBEE 2 AR

it included RMB112.6 million of taxation charge and RMB1.8 million of 16,800,000t - —ZE—~F - FIBHHAIE

deferred tax charge. FEFRIE ST AR 112,600,000 7T & IE {57 18
¥ AR 1,800,0007T ©

The taxation charges mainly represented the income tax provision for MIEZ HEEZIEPBIARENB AR TS
subsidiaries inside Mainland China. No deferred tax charges on dividend o REBRWEFEHERERIRMAFEAK

withholding tax based on 5% of the net profits in the operating subsidiaries PR IENB A RAF 5% T ER R ETEIN
located inside Mainland China were provided for both years. FHERERERAY -

Healthy current ratio EE o

The current ratio being current assets over current liabilities, was 1.73 as at MEL X (BIRBEERAREBEERNLR)

31 December 2017 (2016: 1.67). RZE—tEF+-_A=+—HAL73(=Z
—RF:167)

Trade receivables/trade and bills payables turnover days FEWEE S RRIETEHE SMIBERERE
mAEe

At 31 December At 31 December
2017 2016
R-T—t%F RZE—RF
+=A=t-B +-A=+-H

Turnover days Days Days
A#Ee H H
Trade receivables FEWE 55008 206 181

Trade and bills payables FET B 5 50E K B 2% 106 99
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Trade receivables turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade receivables, net of impairment, for the
year divided by the revenue during the year and multiplied by the number of
days during the year. Trade receivables turnover days at 31 December 2017
was 206 days. Trade and bills payables turnover days is calculated based on
the average of the beginning and ending balance of trade and bills payables
for the year divided by the cost of sales during the year. Trade and bills
payables turnover days at 31 December 2017 was 106 days.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s primary source of funding included receivables from
construction contracts and material sale, as well as income from electricity
sale. In order to meet the expanding plan, the Group has completed certain
fund raising activities during the year.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy level in
order to support the growth of our business. Gearing ratio, represented by
consolidated net borrowings (total of bank and other loans, bank advances
for discounted bills, convertible bonds and senior notes minus cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposits) to total equity at 31 December 2017 was
90.0% (2016: 83.0%).

With the existing cash resources and available banking facilities obtained
from its bankers, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its
commitments and working capital requirements.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures of the Group amounted to RMB359.6 million for the
year (2016: RMB1,155.6 million) and were mainly for the construction of
self-invested solar farm, factory premises and plant and machinery.

FEN & 5 R IE A B Ty IRIE S AW E 5 R
KV FEH R FRAESRHFIEIRIRE - FRIAF
WA BRINFANBHEE - BREFR
BEEHR _ZE—tF+-A=1t—RHAK206
B - BN E S A RENREEE R DREF
MR8 5308 R BN SRR F 1) N F R AR
BFIE - BRAFAHERATE - BNES
RERENEBEREAR-_E—+F+-A
=+—HA106H -

RBELRUBER

AEEESNTBERBEREREEEAR R
HHHEMEKEIE - URKRBEEHHEHK
A BIAERE  FAXEECTRET
BEEY -

REBARE R EEB B RREREBRK
o UEREBER - EABBLERERE
EBEFHE(RRITREMER - BIRBIERRIT
BEX - MRESRBEZBRZAERR SR
ReEEMRERFHR) B AERERE R
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Borrowings and bank facilities

The outstanding borrowings comprised bank and other loans of RMB2,704.1
million with effective interest rates ranging from Hong Kong Inter Bank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) + 0.95% to HIBOR + 4% for property mortgage
loan and revolving loans in Hong Kong and London Inter Bank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR") + 1.5% to LIBOR + 3.75% for syndicated loan and term loans in
Hong Kong. Interest rates for domestic loans inside Mainland China were
ranging from 2.60%-9.07%.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s principal businesses are located in Mainland China and most
of the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s assets are
denominated in RMB. On the other hand, part of the loans of the Group are
raised in Hong Kong and they were denominated in USD or HKD. As at 31
December 2017, foreign currency debts mainly included USD 420 million
senior notes, USD33 million of syndication loans, HKD250 million of senior
notes and HKD300 million of bank and other loans.

Any material fluctuation between HK$, USD and RMB may bring significant
impact to the Group’s financial position. As a results, the Group had entered
into certain cross currency swap and interest rate swap contracts with banks
to hedge against the risk of increase in interest rate as well as the risk on
currency fluctuation.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
and other receivables, and other financial assets represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Substantially
all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Mainland China, which management believes are of
high credit quality.

BERRITER

AEEEBEERERTREMERARE
2,704,100,0007C * BB ERBERKRE
RERME @+ BERMENTEBRITRERS
E([EBRITRAERSE]) IN0.95% EFH
RITRAERERMA% B BREERRE
HERME @ ERNEARBRITRAZERFEE
(IMRBIRITRIZEFR LX) IN1.5% EMBUERTT
RIEFEEMI.75% - REKEERHFEN
F2.60% £ 9.07% °

e LB

REBEZEEBUNPEARERASBI RS
ARKEETT - AEBMAIDEEAARES
B B—FHE AXENIHERNREES
EWAETHKABLINE  RZE—+F+=
A=+—H ' JMNEEREZ 8 420,000,000
EILELZE - 33,000,000 TIREER -
250,000,000 7% 7T & 4 5= #& & 300,000,000 7%
TLIRITREMERK ©

BT - ELRARE 2B EFREAKB AR
HARKENPHEHRNERERTE - At - K
SEBRRITRI VS ERNEER R E AL
AR 2= 38 0l e e EH R B R o

R

RekReEEY  BRGER  BEEZFR
REMEWFIANE M S REENREERR
AEBEMAXRSREEERNERSEER
o BEEBRAZHRE LR SETEYHER
ERSEAREEERZNTBEAREAL S @K
BRA -



58

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W&

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties and
its associates. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

As at the end of the report period, the Group had certain concentration of
credit risk as 7.5% and 19.5% (2016: 8.3% and 26.4%) of the Group’s trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers, respectively. All of these customers have good credit quality by
taking into account of their credit history, a long-term business relationship
has been established by both parties. The Group has delegated a team which
is responsible for determination of credit limits and monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up actions will be implemented to recover overdue debts.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the settlement
from customers and the payment to vendors.

Dividend

The Directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of HK$0.03 per
share (2016: HK$0.07 per share). The actual dividend payout ratio in each
year will depend on the actual performance of the Group, the general industry
and economic environment.
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Closure of register of members

The register of members will be closed from Wednesday, 23 May 2018
to Monday, 28 May 2018, both days inclusive. In order to entitle to the
attendance of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all
share transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 21 May 2018.

The Company’s register of members will be closed from Friday, 1 June
2018 to Monday, 4 June 2018 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrars and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22 Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 31 May 2018.

Cheques for final dividend (subject to approval in the annual general meeting
mentioned above) will be dispatched to the shareholders of the Company on
or before Friday, 27 July 2018.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had about 2,500 employees. Employee
salary and other benefit expenses maintained at similar level at RMB281.6
million in the year 2017 compared with RMB268.1 million in the year 2016.
The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees, which will be reviewed regularly every year. Apart from
provident fund scheme (according to the provisions of Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes for Hong Kong employees) or the state-managed retirement
pension scheme (for Mainland China employees) and medical insurance,
discretionary bonus are also awarded to employees according to the
assessment of individual performance.
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The table below sets forth information regarding our Directors:

TREINBHEEENER

Name Age Position 2 Fih 52

Liu Hongwei 54 Chairman and executive Director BATHE 54BR FERPTES
Xie Wen 52 Executive Director B o 52m% BITES

Xiong Shi 54 Executive Director R R 54BR WITES

Cao Zhirong 44 Non-executive Director BEE  44m% JEITES

Li Hong 53 Non-executive Director = kK 53m% FEMITES
Wang Ching 63 Independent non-executive Director F R 638 BN IEHITES
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 60 Independent non-executive Director SK% 605 B IEHITES
Tang Hongwei 58 Independent non-executive Director EHA 58m BUIFHITES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Liu Hongwei aged 54, is the Chairman and an executive Director of our
Company.

He joined our Group since August 1995. He is responsible for the formulation
and execution of our Group’s overall business strategies and policies as well
as the overall management of our Group. Mr. Liu has more than 12 years’
experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than 16 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial University, now
known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in inorganic materials
engineering, Mr. Liu worked at a state-owned glass manufacturing enterprise,
Shaanxi Glass Factory, as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1991, Mr.
Liu was the director of production department at another glass manufacturing
enterprise, Zhuhai Glass Factory. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Liu Hongwei was
the manager of the operation department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass.
In 1995, Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass jointly established Zhuhai Singyes
Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Singyes”, formerly known as
Zhuhai Singyes Curtain Wall Engineering Co., Ltd) with Zhuhai City Township
Enterprise. Since November 2003, Mr. Liu has been an executive Director
of our Company. From August 1995 to October 2007, Mr. Liu was appointed
as Zhuhai Singyes’s general manager, taking charge of general supervising
and controlling on technologies. In December 2000, Mr. Liu was certified as
a Level 1 Project Manager by the Guangdong Province Construction Bureau.
In January 2001, Mr. Liu was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of
construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau.
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In 2003, Mr. Liu became an adjunct professor of Wuhan University of
Technology. In August 2004, Mr. Liu was appointed as one of the experts to
the Standardisation Technical Committee of the PRC Ministry of Construction
for Curtain Walls, Doors and Windows. Mr. Liu is currently a member of the
Standing Committee of the Zhuhai Municipal People’'s Congress of the PRC
Mr. Liu is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Xie Wen aged 52, is our executive Director.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for supervision at
our work-sites and research and development of BIPV technologies. Mr.
Xie has more than 16 years’ experience in curtain wall engineering sector.
Mr. Xie graduated from Zhengzhou Textile Engineering College majoring in
mechanical engineering (textile machinery) in 1987. From 1987 to 1994,
Mr. Xie worked at the Equipment Energy Team in Hunan Shaoyang No. 2
Textile Machinery Factory. Mr. Xie joined Zhuhai Singyes in August 1995
as a project manager, responsible for the development and management
of business projects of Zhuhai Singyes. From January 2003 to September
2007, Mr. Xie was the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, in charge
of technical guidance and supervision at various worksites. In October 2007,
Mr. Xie became the general manager of Zhuhai Singyes. In December 2002,
Mr. Xie was certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of
Construction. In June 2004, Mr. Xie was certified as a senior engineer in
respect of machinery by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. In
February 2008, Mr. Xie was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry
of Construction. Mr. Xie is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which
is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Xiong Shi, aged 54, is our executive Director and also a member of the
Remuneration Committee. He joined the Group in August 1995, and has
been responsible for the research and development of technology and
construction of enterprise culture. He has more than 13 years’ experience in
the solar photovoltaic application sector and more than 16 years’ experience
in the curtain wall engineering sector. From November 2001, Mr. Xiong
assumed the position of Chief Engineer of Zhuhai Singyes until August 2007.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xiong was the manager of the safety glass
quality testing department at Zhuhai Singyes from 1988 to 1995. He also
worked as a technical officer at a state-owned glass manufacturing enterprise,
Xiangfan City Glass Factory, from 1986 to 1988. Mr. Xiong was certified as a
Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction in December
2000. He was further certified as a senior engineer in respect of construction
materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in December 2001.
In December 2007, Mr. Xiong was also registered as a Level 1 Constructor
by the PRC Ministry of Construction. Mr. Xiong obtained a bachelor’s degree
in engineering from Wuhan Industrial University, now known as Wuhan
University of Technology, majoring in inorganic materials engineering in July
1986 and further obtained a EMBA degree from Sun Yat-sen University
in 2003. Mr. Xiong is currently the president of Zhuhai Building Energy
Conservation Association, the council member of Zhuhai New Energy Smart
Grid Industry Alliance Association, and the expert of Zhuhai Construction Bid
Evaluation Database.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Cao Zhirong aged 44, is our non-executive Director. He joined our group
in September 2009. Currently Mr. Cao is Director of BNP Paribas Equities
(Asia) Limited Shanghai Representative Office. Previously he worked at ICEA
Capital Limited and Wing Lung Finance Limited and has approximately 15
years of experience in investment bank. Mr. Cao obtained a master degree in
business administration from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.
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Li Hong, aged 53, is our non-executive Director. She is a professor at
the State Key Laboratory of Silicate Materials for Architectures at Wuhan
University of Technology and a doctoral supervisor. She is currently a
council member of the Special Glass Committee of the Chinese Ceramic
Society, a council member of Hubei Ceramic Society and a member of
the Home and Industrial Glass Technology Sub-committee of the National
Technical Committee on Industrial Glass and Special Glass of Standardization
Administration of China. Dr. Li graduated from the School of Materials Science
and Engineering of Wuhan University of Technology (formerly known as the
Silicate Materials Engineering Department of Wuhan Industrial University)
with a bachelor’s degree, a master’'s degree and a doctoral degree. Dr. Li has
over 30 years of experience in the teaching and research in respect of special
glass materials, optoelectronic materials and their application and thin film
materials and technology.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Ching, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company in December 2008. Dr. Wang has near 20 years’
managerial experience in investment banking, securities, treasury and asset
management in the United States, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. He
was the president of Investment and Proprietary Trading Group for Jih Sun
Financial Holding Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the managing director of JS Cresvale
Securities International Limited, the managing director of SinoPac Securities
Asia Ltd. in Hong Kong, SEVP of SinoPac Securities Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the
director of Investment Banking Department at Standard Chartered Bank
Hong Kong and the associate director of Bear Stearns & Co. Inc., New York
and Hong Kong. Dr. Wang currently is the managing director of Shanghai
International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd., a licensed corporation
registered with Honk Kong Securities and Futures Commission. He is also
the executive director of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited, an investment fund company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 770). Dr. Wang obtained his master degree in business administration
from the University of Houston and Ph.D. in finance from Columbia University
in the city of New York.
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Yick Wing Fat, Simon, aged 60, is our independent non-executive director
and chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Yick holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, majoring
in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in
England. Mr. Yick has over 30 years of experience in audit, direct investment,
investment banking and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Yick also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (both
are listed on the Stock Exchange). Since August 2015, Mr. Yick has been
appointed as independent non-executive director, convener of the nomination
committee and member of the strategy committee and the audit committee of
Chengdu Xingrong Environment Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.

Tan Hongwei, aged 58, is our non-executive Director and also a member of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee and the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. He is a professor and a doctoral supervisor at the
School of Mechanical and Energy Engineering of Tongji University, a doctoral
supervisor at the School of Architecture and Urban Planning of Tongji
University and the interdisciplinary doubleengaged responsible professor
at the United Nations Environment Programme-School of Environmental
Sustainability of Tongji University. He is also the key researcher of Climate
Change Key Laboratory, the core member of the first class academic peak
team (building technology) of Tongji University, the deputy director of the
Tongji University Green Building and New Energy Research Center, and
the director of the Tongji International Green Industry Innovation Center. Dr.
Tan graduated from the Department of Architecture of Tokyo University with
a doctoral degree in 1995. Dr. Tan has over 18 years of experience in the
teaching and research in respect of energy-saving building technologies,
application technology of renewable energy in buildings, building energy
efficiency supervision platform technology, urban low-carbon energy planning
technology, urban construction environment technology and other fields.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Zhuo Jianming, aged 57, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
He has approximately 14 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering
sector. He joined our Group as project manager in February 2000. From
January 2001, Mr. Zhuo assumed the position of deputy general manager
of production of Zhuhai Singyes. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhuo was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction
in March 2002. Mr. Zhuo obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering and
construction from Xi’an Jiaotong University in 1983.

Zhao Feng, aged 52, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes since
August 2007. He is also a director of Zhuhai Singyes. He joined our Group
as a sales and marketing manager in December 2002. He has approximately
12 years of experience in the construction sector and approximately 11
years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Zhao worked as an engineer of Hubei Province Shashi
Construction Materials Scientific Research Institute from 1987 to 1995. Mr.
Zhao was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of construction materials
by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in December 2004. Mr.
Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
materials science in July 1987. Mr. Zhao became the general manager of
Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Co., Ltd, and responsible for managing its
daily operation.

Zhang Chao, aged 45, is the operating general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
Mr. Zhang joined our Group in December 2002 as the manager of the
business department of Zhuhai Singyes. He has approximately 12 years of
experience in the construction sector and approximately 11 years’ experience
in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Zhang graduated from Qigihaer
Railway Transportation Employee University majoring in industry and civil
construction in July 1995. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang worked as a
construction budgeteer at Heilongjiang Province Hei He City Railway (Group)
Company from 1995 to 2002. In January 2006, Mr. Zhang was certified as
a constructor by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. Mr. Zhang
was also certified as a National Construction Appraiser by the Construction
Department in 2003 and construction engineer by Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in 2005. In December 2007, Mr. Zhong was registered as a constructor by
the PRC Ministry of Construction.
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Luo Duo, aged 39, is the chief engineer of Zhuhai Singyes. She joined
our Group as a designer in July 2001. She has approximately 12 years of
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Ms. Luo worked as the
vice-director of design institute of Zhuhai Singyes from November 2004 to
December 2006 and the director of design institute from January 2007 to
January 2008. In February 2008 she was appointed as the chief engineer
of Zhuhai Singyes. Ms. Luo was certified as a Class 2 Registered Structural
Engineer by the PRC Ministry of Construction in January 2005. Ms. Luo
was certified as a Plan-Design Engineer by the Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in February 2008. Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’s degree in Construction
Engineering from Qingdao Construction Engineery College in July 2001.

Liang Bingqiang, aged 40, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes
and responsible for the development of the overseas market. He has more
than 13 years of experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. He joined
our Group as a designer in April 2002. Mr. Liang worked as the director
of design department of Zhuhai Singyes Beijing representative office from
July 2004 to July 2006 and he worked for Zhongshan Shengxing Curtain
Wall Company Ltd from August 2000 to March 2002. In August 2006, he
was appointed as the manager of the photo-electricity business department
of Zhuhai Singyes. In April 2008, he was appointed as the deputy general
manager of Singyes Renewable Energy. Mr. Liang was certified as an
Assistant Engineer by the Zhongshan Personnel Bureau in October 2001.
Mr. Liang was certified as a Construction Design Engineer by the Zhuhai
Personnel Bureau in January 2006. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in construction engineering from Tianjin Institute of Urban Construction in
July 2000.

E% "395% 0 RINBEEMATER - KR
—FEAMAREBEERED o WRH
H%I&v?i%%’&ﬁﬁﬁ I2FRR - BLLtH-F
EOFE+—AE_TTF+ - AEEKREE
ERERBRATE A —TTLFAE-T
ENF-AREREEERARBEIE - N
ZTNF_A GRZEIA/WERRETE
fh - BRITR _TTRE— AP IL‘“*B%
AR AEMAEIRRM - BXEIRN-TT
FZRAEIRET AERET RS *EXEJFIE
B R-TT—F+ A BRIREFEEET
RERERTIRBTE -

RIHSE - 4057 RMEBEERIGKIE B8
BRBINTIS - BWREBLIEREEF L3
FRR - BR_TT_FMOANMATKEEE
RETRD - RAEEAZTTNF LA :?:_22/\
F+ABREHREREL TRRINBEBET L
7% E/\_gggi)\ﬁﬁizﬁgiifﬂbﬂﬁp
m,\%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ AT RZEERFN
{)S?ZgiEﬁﬁxiEli%ﬁﬁ%i‘%ﬁ%&@ o B
:ﬁﬁ)\imﬂ R R RIREIE
RIE o %%Eﬁ\_gg F+ARPILTAS
BRI AEIREM RS F—H
FHBIRET AE R RRERT T2 -
RETTTF+ AR GERER W TR SR
BRYTRETIRELEM0 -



ZF—tFEFR PRERXAHERMERER AR

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREER

YU Chon Man, aged 40, was appointed as the co-chief financial officer of the
Group in October 2016, he has been the qualified accountant and company
secretary of our Company since 2008. He is responsible for financial
reporting and general investor affairs of our Company. He has approximately
16 years of experience in financial accounting. Mr. Yu is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining us,
he had approximately seven years of working experience with international
audit firms and was mainly responsible for financial auditing, internal control
reporting and compliance advisory. He graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a bachelor’'s degree (Hons) in accountancy in
2001.

Mr. Yu also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman of
audit committee of Time2U International Holding Limited (stock code: 1327).

Mr. Guo Yangyang, aged 34, was appointed as the co-chief financial officer
of the Group in October 2016. He graduated from the accounting discipline
of the China University of Mining and Technology in June 2005, and is
an intermediate accountant. Since joining the Group in July 2006, he has
worked as a manager in the Company’s financial planning department
and accounting and auditing department. He was appointed as the chief
accountant and deputy financial controller of the Company in January 2011.
He has over 10 years of financial and accounting experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY

YU Chon Man, is our company secretary. For further details regarding Mr.
Yu, please see the paragraph headed “Senior Management” above.

RER 0 RZZE—R"FE+AEBZHER
AREMFEERYBEE - KB _TT/N\FET
RERNBRAERGHEAFARNMWE - WEER
RAMBHRRE—RREERE - BRYBHE
AOEBEENICFRLR REERBTEG
MAEEBRBFARSMASEREE
RIMAKREKER - REBH 7 FRERETE5
PRIV - TEABMKER - NEEER
ERARER - BR T FEENEFERE

TRE BESHERESLE -

RELTERERROIRBERZERER QR (R
RER - 1327) BUIFRTEF RELERES
EE

BIBBRE 345 R-T-R"FTAEZ
ERAKEZHEERMTE - WX _FFh
FRARERTEBRERBEHEEE /P
MEEE e BZTERFLAMAREEIA
X BEARRFEMBHREAZEDL
B RN —T——F - ABRZERAAFEE
FHED N B TS BIARE: - MBS SR T EER AT

ATHE

REGEERRRBRAWE - BHERLEN
E—THE FRHLXEREEAR] —

B e



68

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEEREE

The directors (the “Directors”) of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 24 October 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.
The Company has established a principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and was registered with the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as an oversea company under Part
Xl of the Companies Ordinance on 29 August 2008. Mr. Yu Chon Man has
been appointed as the authorised representative of the Company for the
acceptance of service of process and notices on behalf of the Company in
Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Bermuda, the operation of the
Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution comprising
a memorandum of association and the bye-laws.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
professional renewable energy system integrator and building contractor, it is
principally engaged in the design, fabrication and installation of conventional
curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included building integrated
photovoltaic (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar system and ground mounted
solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”). The BIPV system involves (i) the
integration of photovoltaic technology into the architectural design of buildings
and structures and (ii) conversion of solar energy into electricity for use. In
addition, the Group also engages in the production and sale of renewable
energy goods, including smart grid system, and solar thermal system. The
Group’s principal operating market is in Mainland China.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s top five customers are the main contractors of various public
or commercial BIPV or curtain wall or solar form investors. In aggregate, the
largest and top five customers contributed approximately 12.1% and 27.8%
of the Group’s total revenue in 2017 respectively.

The Group currently outsources part of the construction works for various
sub-contractors in the PRC, as well as sourcing PV penal, aluminium and
glass from suppliers inside the PRC. In 2017, the top five suppliers include
material suppliers and sub-contractors, sub-contracting fees paid or material
purchase to its largest and five largest suppliers were about 6.5% and 18.6%
of the Group’s total cost of sale in 2017 respectively.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries which principally affect
the results as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
Company’s and the Group’s financial positions as at the same date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 96 to 280. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of
HK$0.03 per share (2016: HK$0.07 per share).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 100 to 101 of the annual report and in note 35 to the financial
statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Final dividend amounting to RMB20,916,000 was declared by reduction
in distributable reserve. As at 31 December 2017, the Company's reserves
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
applicable law of Bermuda, amounting to RMB32,913,000.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2017 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and equipment
are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 33 to the financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of the
Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last 5 financial years is set out on page 4 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Hongwei

Mr. SUN Jinli (resigned on 20 July 2017)

Mr. XIE Wen

Mr. Xiong Shi (appointed on 1 December 2017)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Huizhong (resigned on 5 June 2017)
Mr. CAO Zhirong

Dr. Li Hong (appointed on 5 June 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. WANG Ching

Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon

Mr. CHENG Jinshu (resigned on 5 June 2017)

Dr. Zhong Jishou (appointed on 5 June 2017
and resigned on 18 April 2018)

Dr. Tan Hongwei (appointed on 18 April 2018)

Mr. Sun Jinli has resigned as an executive director of the Company with
effect from 20 July 2017 in order to devote more time to perform his duties
as the executive director of China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Li Huizhong has resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 5 June 2017 due to his own
business and other commitments. Mr. Cheng Jinshu and Dr. Zhong Jishou
has resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 5 June 2017 and 18 April 2018 respectively due to their own
business and other commitments.

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Liu
Hongwei, Mr. Xie Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi, Dr. Li Hong, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yuck
Wong Fat, Simon and Dr. Tan Hongwei are required to retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Each of the above Directors will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management members
of the Group was based on their individual performance as well as market
trends and practices. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2017 were within the following bands:

FrENER

AEBZEERESREBREKE 2 HBIKETD
RIBEERRRUARTHBE B TIAE
Rl BEZHMFB RN GEE M BRRM T
87 °

REBEZZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE ' X
NEREERE(TEREES) 2HMN FRIA
THE -

Number of
Senior Management

Bands giE BREEERE
RMB100,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR# 100,001 TTE AR % 1,000,000 7T

RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR# 1,000,001 7t AR 2,000,000 7T

RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR# 2,000,001 7tE A R 3,000,000 7T

Total: = X1 10

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of 3 years, which is renewable automatically for successive
terms of 3 years each commencing from the day immediately after the expiry
of the then current term of the appointment unless terminated by not less than
3 months’ notice in writing served by either party. Each of the non-executive
Directors were appointed for a term of three years, which is renewable
automatically for successive terms of 1 year each commencing from the
day next after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment unless
terminated by not less than 2 months’ notice in writing served by either party.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term
of three years which is terminable by either party by giving the other party not
less than 2 months’ prior notice in writing. None of the Directors has a service
agreement with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company and by reference to the remuneration policies of other
companies in similar capacity and the experience of the directors.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of
Directors (the “Board”) may at its discretion, offer eligible persons (being any
Director or employee (whether full-time or part-time), consultant or advisors
of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible Persons”) who the Board may in its
absolute discretion select to subscribe for such number of Shares as the
Board may determine at a subscription price determined in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Group and for such other purposes as the Board may
approve from time to time.

Total number of Shares available under the Share Option
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 36,500,335
shares, representing 4.38% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
date of this report. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
exercise price of and/or the number of Shares subject to the outstanding
Share Options are required to be adjusted as a result of a rights issue in
July 2016. In accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the supplementary guidance issued by the Stock Exchange on 5 September
2005 regarding adjustment of share options under Rule 17.03(13) of the
Listing Rules, the exercise price of and the number of Shares subject to the
outstanding Share Options granted on 23 July 2009, 10 October 2011 and
22 May 2015 have been adjusted with effect from 20 July 2016:
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On 5 April 2017, the Company granted 12,000,000 share options at a
exercise price of HK$3.55 per share.

RZF-—tHFWOARA ARAFAERH
12,000,00017 BE 2 - 1T{EE A& 3.557%
5T o

Before Adjustments After Adjustments
R R FEIE
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
subject to the subject to the

Exercise price

outstanding
Share Options

Exercise price

outstanding
Share Options

per Share BRExR per Share BRExR
Date of grant Bk ITERREZ Bk ITERREZ
=i B TiEE BHEE fT{EME BHEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
23 July 2009 —ETNFtA=+=H 3.58 11,214,000 3.56 11,242,404
10 Oct 2011 —ET——F+A+H 2.68 7,200,000 2.67 7,231,599
22 May 2015 T—HFRA=-1+=H 11.70 6,000,000 11.65 6,026,332
5 April 2017 —tFMARA 3.55 12,000,000 N/A N/A

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Person in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1.0% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Persons and his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting and the number and
terms (including the subscription price) of such options being fixed before
such general meeting and other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.
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Time of exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The Board is currently unable to determine such minimum
period. The date of grant of any particular option is the date on which the
offer relating to such option is duly accepted by the grantee in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the offer in whole or in part by the
grantee (or his personal representatives) before its expiry by giving notice
in writing to our Company stating that the option is to be exercised and the
number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised provided that the number
of Shares shall be equal to the size of a board lot for dealing in Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof. Such notice must be
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
the Shares in respect of which the notice is given. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from
the date of grant. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme by Shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.

Price of Shares

The subscription price for a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of
the option) shall be such price as the Board shall determine, save that such
price must not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer to grant
option (provided that the new issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before the listing of the shares
where our Company has been listed for less than five business days as at
the date of offer to grant option); and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A
consideration of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of an offer of the grant
of an option.
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Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event
no further option will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and options
granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

There was no exercise of any conversion or subscription rights under any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted at
any time by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2017.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 8 August 2014, the Company issued 930 units of 5% convertible bonds
due 8 August 2019 with a nominal value of RMB930,000,000. The Company
repurchased face value of RMB6,000,000 of CB for a consideration of
USD837,000 in 2015.

During the year, the Company repurchased face value of RMB108,000,000
of the CB for a consideration of USD16,135,000 and redeemed face value
of RMB720,000,000 of CB for a consideration of USD107,251,000. As at
31 December 2017, 96 units of the convertible bonds with face value of
RMB96,000,000 were outstanding.

The salient terms and conditions of the CB are as follows:

(i) Interest rate

The Company shall pay an interest on the CB at 5.0% per annum.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Conversion price

The CB will be convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares at the
initial conversion price of HK$16.11 per share, subject to adjustments.
Amongst others, consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital distribution, rights issues of
shares or options over shares, rights issues of other securities, issues at
less than the current market price, other issues at less than the current
market price, modification of rights of conversion etc., other offers to
shareholders, change of control and other usual adjustment events.
The conversion price may not be reduced so that the conversion
shares would fall to be issued at a discount to their par value. The
conversion was adjusted from HK$15.72 to HK$15.41 during the year
due to cash dividends paid.

Maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased and cancelled,
the Company will redeem each of the CB at the US Dollar equivalent of
the RMB principal amount on 8 August 2019.

Redemption at the option of the Company
The Company may:

(1)  Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to
the bondholders, at any time after 8 August 2017 but not less
than 14 days prior to the maturity date redeem the bonds in
whole but not in part at a redemption price at the US Dollar
equivalent of the RMB principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest to such date; provided that no such redemption
may be made unless the closing price of the shares (translated
into RMB at the RMB: HK$ fixed rate as set out in the terms and
conditions of the CB) for 20 out of 30 consecutive trading days
ending on a date which is no more than three stock exchange
business immediately prior to the date upon which notice of
such redemption is given, was at least 130%. of the conversion
price then in effect (translated into RMB at the RMB: HK$ fixed
rate as set out in the terms and conditions of the CB); or
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(v)

(vi)

(2)  Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 90 days’ notice
to the bondholders and the Trustee (which notice will be
irrevocable), the Company may at any time redeem all, but not
some only, of the bonds for the time being outstanding at the US
Dollar equivalent of the RMB principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest to such date provided that prior to the date of
such notice at least 90%. in RMB principal amount of the bonds
originally issued have already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

Redemption at the option of the holders

The Company will, at the option of the holder of any CB, redeem
all or some only of such holder’'s CB on 8 August 2017 at the US
Dollar equivalent of the RMB principal amount. Face value of
RMB720,000,000 was redeemed at the option of the holder during the

year.

Redemption of delisting or change of control

Following the occurrence of a change of control (means when Mr.
Liu Hongwei cease for any reason to be the majority shareholder of
the Company or any other events lead to the significant change of
the ownership structure of that the Company, “Change of Control”)
or delisting of the Company (including suspension of trading of the
Shares on the stock exchange for a period equal to or more than
20 consecutive trading days) (the “Relevant Event”), the holder will
have the right to require the Company to redeem all, or but not some
only, of such holder’s CB at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date fixed for
redemption.

(v)

(vi)
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their respective associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any
rights or options to acquire Shares or debentures during the year ended
31 December 2017.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save for the Rights Issue disclosed above, the Company and its subsidiaries
did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of the Company during

the year.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which (i) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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i% = *& =]
Company/name
of associated
corporation Number of Approximate %
Name AT Capacity Type of interest shares of shareholding
i 24 EEERE S5 HEZER I8 E RIEEE DL
Mr. Liu Hongwei Company Interest of a controlled Long 313,176,750 37.55%
AT HEST ¥iN/NE] corporation ! R
R AE R
Company Beneficial interest ? Long 1,379,120 0.16%
Vi N/NE] B kA
Sub-total: Long 314,555,870 37.71%
Nt KA
Mr. Xie Wen Company Beneficial interest ? Long 1,386,056 0.17%
# XA AT B 2 &E
Dr. Wang Ching Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 120,526 0.01%
T REL+ RAT] i 2 A
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, ~ Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 241,053 0.03%
Simon ¥iN/NC]| B 2 £
GBS
Notes: MI3E
1. These 313,176,750 Shares are held by Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. whose share 1. 313,176,750 %17 A Strong Eagle Holdings
capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei. Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be Ltd. 5 A - 1 B 4T 4 5t A& % A Strong Eagle
interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO. Holdings Ltd. 4% 2 53% - RiFEF L HAE
W1 BIA AL ERBRRRZERDTHESE
f‘% o
2. Such interests represent the options of the Company held by the relevant 2. ZEEDAERESIITENARTIERE -

director.
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF FERFENRIG - HEK D RE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES, KN RER

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as the Directors are aware, save as disclosed RZE—+tF+_A=+—H  BESFHE
above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief executive B X BEEIN - UTATSHERE (W IERD
of the Company) who have interest or short positions in the shares and RESHEETHAE) RARTIRG RIEH
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be & - A B RERIRIRE F M EENE
kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company 336 IFEFEMNELMOERKEE + HIRE
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who BHRHEBGHEXVEE 2 23982 5A
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value MARAREEZERIORE  HEEKEEE
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at B W HRSRER AT IS S T E AR S B H AL
general meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each KE AT ZRRRE LIRE 2 EER RN E
of such persons’ interest in such securities, together with any options in BE10% A EfEm - UEZRFEALTEBRZ

respect of such capital, were as follows: ERFUMACEREE  ERBAZEREY
R 2 AEARERRAERT -

Capacity/nature Approximate %

Long/short of interest Number of shareholding

Shareholder position S of shares IRHERE Y

B&E R E8 R KRBEE =574

Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. ! Long position Beneficial owner 313,176,750 37.55%
®rAE EmBEAA

1 Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. is owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Sun Jinli, Mr. Xie 1. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. % Bl f3 % 4T 4 5t
Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi and Mr. Zhuo Jianming as to 53%, 15%, 13%, 10%, and 9% £ BREERE - JIXEE  BRREARE
respectively. A AEHEAES3% ~15% ~13% ~10% &

9% HIFR A o
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NON-COMPETITION

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is actual
or potential conflict in interest.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2017.

No contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by our controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2017.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No transactions as set out in the “Related party transactions” in note 41 to
the financial statements are subject to the reporting, announcement and/or
independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Byelaws,
or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Upon
the enquiry made by the Company all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 19 December 2008 with
terms of references adopted on 19 December 2008 in compliance with the
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the audit
committee are the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman
of the audit committee. The audit committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication between other directors, the external auditor and the internal
auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, external
and internal audits and such other financial and accounting matters as the
Board determines from time to time. The audit committee is to assist the
Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as may be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee has
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. For further details of the audit committee and other
committees of the Board, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” from pages 7 to 24.
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KEY FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The key financial and business performance indicators comprise profitability
trend and gearing ratio. Details of profitability analysis are shown in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report. Details
of gearing ratio analysis are shown in Note 46 (Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies) to the Financial Statements in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social governance
essential for creating a framework for motivating staff, and contributes to the
community in which we conduct our businesses and creating a sustainable
return to the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has implemented energy saving practices in its offices and
premises where applicable. The Group also plans to upgrade its air-
conditioning and electricity systems to achieve the energy saving and
provision of clear air to workplace where possible.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its long-term goals and development.
To maintain its brand competitiveness and market status, the Group
aims at delivering consistently high standards of quality in the service to
its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and procedures,
and members of the senior management are delegated with the continuing
responsibility to monitor adherence and compliance with all significant legal
and regulatory requirements. These policies and procedures are reviewed
regularly. As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material aspects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key stakeholders
which comprises employees, customers and shareholders.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Groups’ human resource management
is to reward and recognize performing staff by providing a competitive
remuneration package and implementing a sound performance appraisal
system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and
progression by appropriate training and providing opportunities within the
Group for career advancement.

Customers

The Group has the mission to provide excellent and creative customer service
whilst maintain our long-term profitability, business and asset growth. Various
means have been established to strength the communication between the
customers and the Group in the provision of quality customer service towards
market penetration and expansion.

Shareholders

One of our corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate value to
shareholders. The Group is poised to foster business developments for
achieving the sustainability of earnings growth and rewarding shareholders by
stable dividend payouts taking into account capital adequacy levels, liquidity
positions and business expansion needs of the Group.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited by
Ernst & Young which will retire, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
LIU Hongwei

Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 April 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B A2 EN RS

e

Ernst & Young LK RN SETSFT Tel B &E: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower < f 7 e =
EY 1 Tim Mei Avenue BEEPRAEER Fax{&H: +852 2868 4432
§j'( Central, Hong Kong FPERE2218 ey.com

To the shareholders of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Singyes
Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 280, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
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BEREE
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ZBxgsamaEEs (TR - RABL
REEE @ WERMERETRIETEMBE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter

is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RERER

MREZFRSRERMNEXAE - RAH
APGEUMBBRRCECRRERZER &
LRI AR A M MARERETERLIY
RERNS S THEITRIZN - BT LS
BERUEFBNER - RAE TS —FRER
ZH R AMAE IR M B AL R E R -

BMEBITARSRSE [RBE B R A M 5H
RAEAENEME] —HMENEE - BREABZ
FRENEE - Bt - BHPINEREEATR
FELT4R & B T R A SE AR IR AL i B0 AT ik
RO - BHPIBRREFNERBERENT
FENEF - BB NGRS FEHRRN
BB RIRHER -
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Key audit matter

FASEEREIN

Construction contracts revenue recognition

BEEE IR A TR

The Group derived a significant portion of its revenues from
construction-type contracts that were accounted for by applying
the percentage-of-completion (POC) method. The POC method
involved the use of significant management’s judgement
and estimates including estimates of the progress towards
completion, the scope of deliveries and services required, total
contract costs, remaining costs to completion and total contract
revenues. In addition, revenue, cost and gross profit realised
on such contracts can vary from the Group’s original estimates
because of changes in conditions.
EEENRBHWARERERAESEOWA - BERRE
REMAERIASLEAR BRIBSESPLEREERSE
RAE R s BEMGETIER  INOEERFAER
% HBERKAE  TIMEHRTRARE R AL 1t
Sh BEERZMA - AR A BIR & EF IR AT 88 AR
HEMEEEERE TR -

The disclosures about construction contracts revenue
recognition are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

B RES RN RERN BB IR A M ISHmKMT 2.4
321 -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

SR ERESZPRINMAEEN

Our audit procedures included:

B ERIZF BRI

assessing the controls over construction contract
revenue recognition, cost forecast and progress billing
process:

ilﬁ%%@é\ FEWARER « ATERI R A ERRIBIR T
3|

reviewing the individually significant construction
contracts and the progress billings accepted by related
customers :
FHENBERBEEERUNLEERPERNESEE
==

checking significant cost incurred to the delivery and
acceptance notes signed by the customers :

BRERXNEENEARTAREFPEENEIER

comparing the forecast results of each significant
contract to its actual results and assessing the historical
accuracy of forecast prepared by management :

& ERELNRTERIZEE M E B EEVELL BUA R4
IR B AR B e TROR 6 R 52 B

discussing the progress of construction contracts with
project-in-charges :
HTREE A RELESRANER

recalculating the percentage of completion of the
significant construction contracts and the provision
required for the loss contracts :

BV EEREESRRTLIA D LA RASEEE R
ST ARV

performing physical inspection of the significant
constructions ; and

HERNARATEHRE : &

assessing the disclosures regarding the revenue
recognition of construction contracts in the consolidated
financial statements.

MG A B RE N MRS AR AR RS -
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Key audit matter

FASEEREIN

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

JEWE S RA B EFHE

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables before impairment
amounting to RMB3,384,921,000 were material to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The assessment of
impairment provision for trade receivables involved significant
management’s judgement including their assessment of
customers’ financial positions and expected future cash flows
from customers.

RZE—+F+A=+—8 " BEANEKZEZIRIESEA
R¥3,384,921, 000 THE SR B FE M BREAMSBERX -
EWE SRR ERET P REXRERENHE - B1F
BENEEFPHMBARRREFPHTEHRKRBER o

The disclosures about the impairment assessment of trade
receivables are included in notes 3, 22 and 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

B ARWE 5 FIBRENEREH NG S SRR M T
3:22K46 -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RS EEERESZPRINMAEEN

Our audit procedures included:

HPWERIEFBEE
° checking the ageing analysis of accounts receivable by
customer;

RER P RBIRFH KRR DT

° checking the debtors’ historical payment patterns and
the bank receipts for the payment received subsequent
to year end;
ZREBBANBENFER AR FEREREIN AR
TR ¢

° checking the evidence including correspondence with
the debtors for the latest progress of the outstanding
amounts and credit status of these debtors by performing
company search; and
RERERE - BERERANERY - TRAEESRE
WBITEE N RBBNTARTER T BZEEBANGE
AR - &

° assessing the disclosures about the Group’s exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.
AHhARE B mAR N A A EHERNE SRR AR

& o
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

ZF—tFEFR PRERXAHERMERER AR

FHRMEHBEH

BERRESAHEMENER - HWEHERE
FHRAMER REPHREREFHRULE D
EVAZ BB R E BRI

EEHGANBEROERL TRER A
B BERTERABREAMRANEDL
o

REZEAVBHRERMT - BEFNEMLLHE
HER - RIEWBRT - EEEMBERES
BIREMEBMR LB S ER BT PR
BREEBARNT » RECFHEARHERRM -
HENEBEFDHTHIE  IREFR/EME
HEERHERRL BEEFEREAWEE -
UM E @ BEEFREEMEER -
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AR EFAREREER G AR EEN
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

EREGRMBHRRE EAREREEG
BEEERBELENRE S - THEERBR TRE
HFEKEABNER  URERFERER
SEER  BIFERREZFEREREBR
HIFLLEE - ARIEABERNERTER -

ERZBEMHERAREEBETEEEEEY
BREBIENEE -

ZH M ERGSMBRRAIE
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EENER  EHRAMBRRBEEELE
£l KR S 8E BR M A B0 (R B KB SRR
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BE - RPONBEERE-NN\—FERERF
FEENVKRERZBRRRFE - MALTAMEE
B o P FA AR S H) R SE A (AT
ATBERFREEE -

AERBEDKTHRE - ETERERES
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional EERBEBEEAETESNNIEZ—
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We EEAFENE - TEEAFTEETRERE
also: IREEREE - BEN

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the B FE G R G SRR M BUAR &

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

M MERFEERERBANERR - &
TR %uﬁifb{ﬁ%;ﬁiﬁ %
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

o  FHESRAMBRXR(BEREER)ME
BIHmITA - BEEAT  UREAER
BREERBAARRBBRZMNER -
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s HERKBYZHARENEAFBEEEE A S

report is Leung Wai Lap, Philip. PRI °

Ernst & Young RS ETEIEFEER
Certified Public Accountants HEDE AT

Hong Kong BBk

28 March 2018 —E-N\F=A=+)N\H
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Year ended 31 December 2017 #E T —+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—ET—tF —E—XF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AREFx AREFT
REVENUE 9N 4 5,675,386 5,239,564
Cost of sales SHERKRAR (4,536,529) (4,104,854)
Gross profit EH 1,138,857 1,134,710
Tariff adjustment EEMEL 4 166,682 93,224
Other income and gains E WA RS 5 178,887 243,076
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAX (155,265) (129,029)
Administrative expenses THFEX (363,190) (356,112)
Other expenses HEiAx (76,428) (15,984)
Finance costs BEERLAR 6 (621,333) (368,028)
Share of losses of associates DMEE L A REIE (13,059) (23,260)
Fair value gains on conversion AR B S E RN
rights of convertible bonds NFEWE 29(b) 15,227 48325
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A F 7 270,378 626,922
Income tax expense PSR i 10 (119,972) (114,373)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EX 3 FoE 150,406 512,549
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hip2mihis (E518) :
INCOME/(LOSS):
Other comprehensive income to be SRERFEEN
reclassified to profit or loss NEEEENEMEZE
in subsequent years: W
Available-for-sale investments: AMRHERE ¢
Changes in fair value N EEE 2,882 =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBmRkEAEERER

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—T—tE —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfaE AREFT ARETFT
Other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be & HRBEEFEEFH B
reclassified to profit or loss in EERMEMEE
in subsequent years: Wz, (F518) -
Exchange differences on translation of MBS RRAIE R ZE5E
financial statements 110,479 (82,218)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FEFEHMOE2E
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR Yeis  (518) 113,361 (82,218)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEREWIEE
FOR THE YEAR 263,767 430,331
Profit attributable to: LAR AT ER)
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE N 143,797 501,961
Non-controlling interests FEIERE R 6,609 10,588
150,406 512,549
Total comprehensive income attributable to: A T~ AT fE(R 2 E UL ZEAEZE ¢
Owners of the Company RATEB A 257,902 419,743
Non-controlling interests IR R 5,865 10,588
263,767 430,331
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ARAFEERESFEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF FEIG SR ZR T
THE COMPANY
Basic - HAR 12 RMBO0.172 RMBO0.661
AR#®0.1725T AR#0.661 7T
Diluted - 88 12 RMBO0.172 RMBO0.659
AR#0.1725T AR#0.659 7T
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e AR AR

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—XF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitEE AREBTR AREETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI BB R iE 13 4,283,977 4,363,547
Investment properties "EME 14 75,183 68,150
Prepaid land lease payments TR T AR E IR 15 198,964 203,001
Intangible assets mEE 16 2,815 3,105
Payments in advance FES R 17 18,645 9114
Investments in associates REEZE RN TIRE 18 (1,443) 11,126
Deferred tax assets FEERRIBEE 31 49,051 32,288
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 19 57,569 80,512
Pledged deposits T 24 14,650 17,352
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 4,699,411 4,788,195
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories e 20 111,803 182,600
Construction contracts BEAM 21 976,179 710,543
Trade and bills receivables e E 5 50 A N R IR 22 3,751,855 3,373,065
Prepayments, deposits and TERIE -~ 5] R EMEUREIE
other receivables 23 952,651 871,083
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmI A 27 = 22,961
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 208,234 =
Pledged deposits HEPIFR 24 472,372 365,879
Cash and cash equivalents Re MR EEY 24 1,202,423 680,205
Total current assets M EERE 7,675,517 6,206,336
CURRENT LIABILITIES Pt )=
Trade and bills payables JERNE AR ENRE 25 1,294,073 1,345,952
Other payables and accruals fmﬂ’iﬁﬁlﬁw’é%ﬁklﬁ 26 549,511 510,622
Bank advances for discounted bills EELQKTJ%ZE B3 42(a) 13,722 144,949
Interest-bearing bank and other loans MTE'&ETT&E@%T%’( 28 1,265,188 1,148,300
Tax payable FERTATISEL 40,741 21,939
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMTA 27 34,005
Senior notes BEEE 30 1,239,028 554,211
Total current liabilities BB EREE 4,436,268 3,725,973
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

2017 2016
—F—tF —ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfaE AREFT ARBEFTT
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 3,239,249 2,480,363
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEERTEBER
LIABILITIES 7,938,660 7,268,558
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 29 80,819 719,216
Senior notes BEER 30 1,677,498 216,792
Interest-bearing bank and other loans W BERITREMEK 28 1,438,922 1,769,970
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE 31 86,860 86,360
Deferred income EIEW 32 164,228 271,470
Total non-current liabilities JEmE A ERE 3,448,327 3,064,308
Net assets BEFE 4,490,333 4,204,250
EQUITY EATEE AELER
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Issued capital BEITRA 33 55,785 55,785
Reserves et 35 4,345,753 4,086,037
4,401,538 4,141,822
Non-controlling interests FEIERR LS 88,795 62,428
Total equity s 4EER 4,490,333 4,204,250
Mr. Liu Hongwei Mr. Xie Wen
EIFE:S 73 #;ISAE
Director Director
5% BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEREDE

Year ended 31 December 2017 #E T —+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN 2PN
Difference
Availgble- arising from
for-sale change
investment  Statutory Safely of non-
Share revaluation resee  Enterprise Share fnd  Exchange controling
Issued ~ premium reserve* fund*  expansion option surplus— fluctuation interests” Non-
captal  account*  Contributed i fund*  resene®  resene’  resene’  Refaned  FEARE controling Total
8% B suplst  LERE i % ERE %Ef Ei  opoft §88E Toldl  inferests equiy
Br  BER SAER ERRE REES  BRED: WE RHER FBER REEN: LEE & HEhEs  EREE
RMBO00  RMBOOO ~ RMBOO0  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB0O0  RMBIOOO
ARETT ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR \RETR ARETR
(note 33) (note 35(a)) ~ (note 35(b)) ~ (note 35(c))  (note 35(d))
(333) (HisE3ola)) (HisE3olo)) (MsE3oic))  (Wisk3s(a))
At 1 January 2016 RZF-~E-A-A 46443 580564 21,057 (5228 181380 81428 34,05 - (420) 2509731 29483 342462 76501 3501123
Proftfor the year REEHA s = = = = S . 2 ) o AI%L 1058 51250
Other comprehensive oss for the year: ~ AEREM2EEE:
Exchange diferences on HENERRNELZE
translation of financil statements - - - - - - - - By 5 - By - (829
Total comprehensive income for the year  XEE2ERGAR - - - - - - - - (88 501%! - 419783 10588 430331
Acquistion of non-controling WE-RHEAAN
interests o a subsidiary SER - - - - - - - - - - B2 B2 BL78 (40000
Transfer fom retained profits EpaREET - - - - M0 1B - - - 11y - - - -
Issue of shares (nofe 33) Bk (3 3) 9302 30207 - - - - - - - - - 3148 - 3143
Share ssue expenses (note 33) BRhRER (W R) - (81 - - - - - - - - - B8 - (B8
Equity-setled share opfion et by e
anangements (note 34) (Kit3s) - - - - = - 1B = = = R 1777 - 1B
Capital contrbution rom non-controling - HEATEERBRAILE
shareholders of a Subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 6,219 6,279 6,617 128%
Establishment for safetyfund RURRESRHGE
surplus resenve - - - - - - - 08077 - (8o - % e =
Utlisaton of safey fund surplus resere. - BIFZ2EEBREE - - - - - - - (6807 -8 = - - -
Final 2015 dividend declared BER-E-1ERERE - - (17469 = - - - - - = - (17469 - (17469)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AETZAZ+-R 578 876818 3588 (5228 218790 93,151 45828 - (136509 29259 21040 414182 62428 4204250
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

REREEmEER

Year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=T—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHEAEL
Difference
Available- arising from
forsale change
investment Safety of non-
Share revaluation  Statutory  Enterprise fund  Exchange controlling
premium reseve* resene  expansion option surplus  fluctuation interests* Non-
Issued  account*  Contributed [ fund* fnd*  reseve®  resewe*  resenet  Retained ISR controlling Total

cpital - BB suplst tHERE fivd 28 BRE w242 ER  opofs  BEEHE Total  interests equity
BEfRE  HER SRR EERE  BREEY BRER G REGE RERR REEN s O
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETL ARMTR ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR ARRTR  ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR  ARETR

(note 33) (note 35(a)) ~ (note 35(b) ~ (note 35(c))  (note 35(d))
(Hzt33) (Mgt 35()) (WisE350)) (HiE35(c)) (MEE35(d)
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-A-A 55,785 876,818 3,588 (5,228) 218,790 93,151 45,828 - (136,509) 2,962,559 21,040 4,141,822 62,428 4,204,250
Prftor ey BERH . . . . - . - . BTN o BI9T 6609 150406
Other comprehensive incomel(loss) ~ AFREMZE
forthe year W/ (E8) -
Changes in far value of TREERENAT
avalable-forsle 2 NRHE
investments, ne of fax - - - 2823 - - - - - - - 2,823 59 2,882
Eichange diffrences on RERRRNEL 2R
translation of financial tatements - - - - - - - - 1182 - - 11,82 (803) 110479
Total comprehensive income for the year  REF2 TS 5 = 5 2823 = 5 5 - 111,282 143,797 - 257902 5865 263,767
Acaquistion of non-contrling WEHBLRN
interests of a subsidiary SRR - - - - - - - - - - (9162 (9162  (28170) (37,332)
Transfer from retained profits ahaRBEd - - - - 414 16430 - - - (70,544) - - - -
Equity-setled share option RrEEERET S
anangements (note 34) (M=34) - - - - - - 14,140 - - - - 14,140 - 14,140
Deemed partal disposal of interest ~~ {EFDHEF W%
in a subsidiary (note 37) I3 - - - - - - - - - - 47511 47511 48,422 95,933
Captal contibution rom HRARE “Mﬁﬂﬁﬁ
anon-controling Shareholder
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 250 250
Transfer to confrbuted surplus™* A DNt - (80,000) 80,000 - - - - - - - - - - -
Establishment for safetyfund RURRESRHRE
surplus reserve - - - - - - - 71,956 - (71,95) - - - -
Utisation o safey fund HERRECRRGR
surplus reserve - - - - - - - (71,956) - 71,956 - - - -
Final 2016 diidend declred BEE-EERdRE - - (50679) - - - - - - - - (50675) - (50675)
At 31 December 2017 e o s g 95785 796818 32913 (2405 272904 109,581 59,968 - (25227) 3035812 65,389 4401538 88,795 4490333
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * REEETBRAERAN - ZEHBERERE
RMB4,345,753,000 (2016: RMB4,086,037,000) in the consolidated statement i AR ¥ 4,.345,753,000 L ( Z T — X
of financial position. AR 4,086,037,0007T) ©
**  Pursuant to a resolution passed at the general meeting held on 5 June 2017, an * RBER_ZT—tFENARARITZRERE
amount of RMB80,000,000 was transferred from the share premium account tﬁi@Zﬁ%ai% » —% AR ¥ 80,000,000 7T
to the contributed surplus. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a ZHREEHBROEREREEHRSG - R
company may make distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed BERE-—NN\—FREE ' AREIAIES

surplus under certain circumstances. FESR T ABABERMERRIEL DR ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

SERIRER

W/
Year ended 31 December 2017 #E T —+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AREFx AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING FETHELENRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax FR BRI 3 A 270,378 626,922
Adjustments for: BATIEB EL A%
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - BB REREITE
and equipment 13 177,677 151,275
Depreciation of investment properties WEMENE 14 1,494 557
Amortisation of prepaid land TEfT Tt A0 E IR S
lease payments 15 3,896 2,133
Amortisation of intangible assets mILAERE 16 964 936
Impairment loss on trade receivables EUWE 5B REEE 22 5,151 21,390
Share of losses of associates DR N EEE 18 13,059 23,260
Loss on settlement of HEETESRT AR
derivative financial instruments 518 7 12,036 6,960
Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative MTESRMTAENATE
financial instruments B8, (W) 27 56,966 (22,961)
Fair value gains on conversion AT E S E IR
rights of convertible bonds N ERE 29(b) (15,227) (48,325)
Equity-settled share option expense EAEE 2 AR R 34 14,140 11,773
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment BEEEEE e 5 (59,309) (146,002)
Unrealised foreign RERIMNE W5 F 58
exchange gains, net (48,427) (4,888)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HRNBARZ
&8, () 36 (16,007) 8
Interest income from available-for-sale A EEETAER
debt instruments FLE U A 5 (3,471) (1,413)
Interest income FEUA 5 (41,881) (26,066)
Deferred income released to B EBRMIELERA
profit or loss 5 (14,346) (19,830)
Finance costs B E R A 6 621,333 368,028
978,426 943,757
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD, () 70,797 (89,429)
Decrease/(increase) in construction BEARRL,(3E)
contracts (265,636) 216,955
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEUN B 558 K PR U R IR N (372,944) (1,088,094)
Increase in prepayments, deposits FERFIA - FTe
and other receivables A SR TEIE N (231,238) 76,226
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B E S5 R BN RIE
bills payables 2, G ) (37,524) 442,449
Increase in other payables At FE A 5RE K PR AT RS N
and accruals 152,512 43,086
Income tax paid B ATSH (117,933) (103,362)
Net cash flows from KETESEENRSRE
operating activities 176,460 441,588




“T—tEFR PEEELGRERMTERARA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
meRERER

Year ended 31 December 2017 &=

ZE—AFTA=T—HLEFE

2017 2016
—F—tF —E—REF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfaE AREFT ARETFT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BEFHELANRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of BEMXE  BENMEEEE
property, plant and equipment (415,895) (949,294)
Purchase of intangible assets BEmEE (682) (593)
Payment for prepaid land lease payments  #t¥E A& FKIE 2 (3% (6,131) (109,498)
Proceeds from disposal of HEBREE ZATSHIEA
intangible assets - 51
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBR 107 64,701
Purchase of available-for-sale investments B & AJ fit %&ﬁ (184,757) (27,243)
Purchase of equity interest in an associate & & — B = N A1 AI AL A HE2S (490) (39,130)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE - WENREER 2
plant and equipment FTiS#E 180,399 146,528
Settlement of derivative financial instruments #&& T4 & @t T A (12,036) (6,960)
Advance of loans to third parties and ME =7 k—RHE AR
an associate Bz B8R - (275,060)
Repayment of advance from third parties %fﬁﬁﬁﬁm 83,588 =
Receipt from maturity of pledged deposits #1702 EAFR 1S 70 IA 813,553 1,186,542
Placement of pledged deposits T?)\?‘EETEW_ITA (920,141) (1,050,858)
Deposits received for disposal HEMRBARAMBIES
of subsidiaries 26 4,500 22,434
Interest received BUF B 23,385 10,781
Interest received from available-for-sale A EES T AT BUA
debt instruments 3,471 1,413
Receipt of government grants for B - BB K&
property, plant and equipment SR R BUT i B = 888
Net cash flows used in investing activities & & /ZEFTAMIR S RS F58 (431,129) (1,025,298)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REFHELENHSRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRM TS 5R0E - 311,413
Share issue expenses BTN B - (5,817)
Proceeds from listing shares of a subsidiary B ARIRMD EHRIFTSRIE 37 103,580 =
Payment of transaction costs R B R TRG ETH
related to listing shares of a subsidiary RHEARZ TR 37 (7,647) -
Net proceeds from issue of senior notes BITEBAEBBHRIEFE 2,788,809 =
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling ~ HtUc s — RSB A =7 FEIE A%
interests of a subsidiary Wz 2 R (37,332) (40,000)
Payment for repurchase FEE AT AR E S 2 R
of convertible bonds (108,000) -
Payment for redemption FE [ AT AR E A 2 (3K
of convertible bonds (720,000) -
Repayment of senior notes fgf‘im?J%ZEi% (560,000) -
Capital contribution from B A RIEHERIR R L E
a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary 250 12,896
Proceeds from bank and other loans ERIT R B B FRETS TR 1,445,661 1,419,822
Repayment of bank and other loans EBEBRTREMER (1,653,541) (1,168,823)
Proceeds from bank advances BRI EIR IR TE R ATS R
for discounted bills 13,722 144,949
Repayment of bank advances BIRRIRIRITERCEE
for discounted bills (144,949) (251,699)
Payment of other financing costs ST E AR AR A (8,073) (9,459)
Dividends paid BETAE (50,675) (17,469)
Interest paid BFE (283,043) (259,355)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEERHELENR S REFE 778,762 136,458
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
meRERER

Year ended 31 December 2017 #E T —+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AREFx AREETTT
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH  IR&RIRSZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS whn, (BY)iFE 524,093 (447,252)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHZ2BeRESEEY
beginning of year 823,065 1,265,303
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREHHTLE  FH
changes, net (4,671) 5,014
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBRERBEEED
AT END OF YEAR 1,342,487 823,065
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND IR&RIRSZ BT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B e MIRITEETT 24 1,075,016 328,205
Non-pledged time deposits with BSERE A A B DR =16
original maturity of less than three Az B REBER
months when acquired 127,407 352,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated R BARRERAZRY] RS
in the statement of financial position RIReEEBY 24 1,202,423 680,205
Time deposits with original maturity of SR REEEBROR=1E
less than three months when acquired, R E Bk fERIER
pledged as security for bills payable SRER) 140,064 142,860
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RESRERAZEN 2
in the statement of cash flows ReERBESEFED 1,342,487 823,065




ZF—tFEFR PRERXAHERMERER AR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R AR Y

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 24 October 2003. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located
at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Center,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the design,
manufacture, supply and installation of conventional curtain walls
and building integrated solar photovoltaic systems, as well as the
manufacture and sale of solar power products. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Strong Eagle Holdings Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

1.

A REEAR

B 3 K IS e AT R AR B BR A F ([ 7R
RAINRZZEZ=F+A=+WARE
RETMK T AERRERETAA -
2R X A) ) FE AT 9% 35 BZ 3t 31k 7% Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda ° AR Al E B4 iy
MBS T 8P 168-20057 (21 0 FF
ERAE31#3108F °

FA - ARBNREMREAR (B[R
SE)IEREERERRABGEN.
REEE-BEROR & HER
2 ARAGREEMBENEE - F
A ARBETEXBNEEYBEAE

#=4

= °

BEFRAB AARWE QA REKZE
RABI RN ERBE XS T M
Strong Eagle Holdings Limited °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFEERAR MY RE

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. ABRKEEH (E)

AEHMBATZEH

RRAREBMBRRZFHEWAT :

Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation/ Nominal interests
registration and value of attributable to
business paid-up the Company  Principal
Name E 3 AT share capital AATIME(E  activities
& BAREEME HERAEE BEENtt BB
%
Directly held:
HERR:
Singyes Engineering Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Design,
(H.K.) Co., Ltd. EB5 18T supply and
(“Singyes Engineering”) installation of
BAEETREBRAR curtain walls
(THETRE]) Rt HE
REEERE
Indirectly held:
BT
Singyes MRW Joint Venture Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Design,
(“MRW") B 10,0008 7T supply and
(TMRW]) installation of
curtain walls
Rt e
REEERE
Macao Singyes Renewable Energy Macao - 100%  Design,
Technology Co., Ltd. ] supply and
(“Macao Singyes”) installation of
BPIEEF R REHEERAF] curtain walls

(MARFIEE |)

Rt - HhAE
e



ZF—tFEFR PRERXAHERMERER AR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MIaE

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)

AT REKEEH (B)

AEAMBATZEH ()

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AREEEZMBARZFBWT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)
Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation/ Nominal interests
registration and value of attributable to
business paid-up the Company  Principal
Name AL, share capital KATIEME  activities
&% B REEME HERFEE EnEstt IEEB
%

Indirectly held: (Continued)

EERE  (8)

China Singyes New Materials Bermuda Us$ 67.6%  Investment
Holdings. Co., Ltd.® BRE 4,800,000 holding
(“Singyes New Materials”) 4,800,000%7C BEER

B E A RHE IR BRR AR ©
(TR

Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Mainland China Us$ 100%  Design,
Technology Co., Ltd.@ AR RRE 49,000,000 manufacture,
(“Zhuhai Singyes”) 49,000,000 3T supply and

WEEEZCRENTBRAR. installation of
([BREEE]) curtain walls and

solar photovoltaic
power stations

Rt BuE e
REEEERAB
BERIRE

Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Mainland China Us$ 100%  Design,

Energy Co., Ltd.@ AR RRE 47 868,500 manufacture,
(“Singyes Renewable Energy”) 47,868,500 37T supply and

WEEEHRERAR.®

installation of

(MEEEFTREIR]) solar photovoltaic
power stations
Rat - BGE - e
PEEINGES

HikEsh
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFEERAR MY RE

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AT REKEEH (F)

AEAMBATZEH ()

AREEEMBRARZFBENT : (B)

(Continued)
Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation/ Nominal interests
registration and value of attributable to
business paid-up the Company  Principal
Name MR share capital KATIEM  activities
&% BEREEME HERAEE EnEstt BB
%

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BN (8)

Zhuhai Singyes Xinye Electricity Mainland China RMB 100%  Development of
Technology Co., Ltd.® R B AR 20,000,000 new energy
(“Singyes Xinye") AR 20,000,000 7T materials, and

WEEXENREARARO development of
(TEEEN)) marine biology

technology

BN B R
FEGFEY
i

Zhuhai Singyes New Mainland China RMB 67.6%  Research,
Materials Co., Ltd.®@ AR A fE 62,500,000 manufacture
(“Zhuhai Singyes New Materials”) AE# 62,500,000 7T and sale of

HKEEEMME R B R A F 0O photovoltaic film
(IBRBEEERH]) MR - HERH

ERRER

Yan'an Singyes New Mainland China RMB 50.7%  Research,
Materials. Co., Ltd.@®© BN 20,000,000 manufacture
(“Yan’an New Materials”) AR 20,000,000 7T and sale of

TELEEHVERARAR @@ new materials
(M) MR - BUEREE

R

Hunan Singyes Solar Mainland China RMB 100%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd. LN 3 410,143,000 development,
(“Hunan Singyes”) AR 410,143,000 7T manufacture and

i EE AR AR AR
(MHrEx])

sale of solar
products

7 - FE - RER
SHEANGEER
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BAFE ¥R Y RE

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

109

AT REKEEH (B)

AEAMBATZEH ()

AREEEZMBARZFBWT : (8)

BB ARG ERBEERAR O
(TERBRAED

(Continued)
Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation/ Nominal interests
registration and value of attributable to
business paid-up the Company  Principal
Name AL, share capital AATIEM  activities
&% B REEME HERFEE EnEstt IEEB
%

Indirectly held: (Continued)

EiEER  (8)

Singyes Energy-saving Mainland China Uus$ 100%  Research and
Technologies Co., Ltd.® AR RRE 65,000,000 development of
(“Singyes Energy-saving”) 65,000,000 37T energy-saving

WEEEREERHEBR AT products
([EZEERRE]) MERAEEEER

Xinjiang Singyes Renewable Energy Mainland China RMB 97.45%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd.©@ AR KRE 438,270,000 design and
(“Xinjiang Singyes”) AR#438,270,0007T investment of

MBEENERERAF OO solar power projects
([shmdZ]) ME - Rt RIRE

NG

Hunan Singyes Green Mainland China RMB 97.45%  Research
Energy Co., Ltd.@ AREIA fE 912,000,000 and development
(“Hunan Green Energy”) AR #912,000,000 7T of electricity and

HEEEZERRROAR AT new energy
(MAmseaeRl) MERFRZEENR

FeEIR

Gansu Singyes Green Energy Mainland China RMB 97.45%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd. AR R RE 74,000,000 construction and
(“Gansu Singyes”) AR¥74,000,0007C operation of solar

HEBREEZGEREEERAR power stations
(THa@Ez]) MR R RgE

AIZ8EE

Wuwei Dongrun Solar Energy Mainland China RMB 97.45%  Research,
Development Co., Ltd.© ey 5,000,000 construction and
(“Wuwei Dongrun”) AR# 5,000,000 7T operation of solar

power stations
W BRRAE
AIZaEE I,
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AT REKEEH (F)

AEAMBATZEH ()

AREEEMBRARZFBENT : (B)

(Continued)
Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation/ Nominal interests
registration and value of attributable to
business paid-up the Company  Principal
Name AL, share capital AATIEM  activities
&% B REEME HERFEE EnEstt IEEB
%

Indirectly held: (Continued)

miEER  (8)

Gansu Singyes Solar Mainland China RMB 100%  Research,
Technologies Co., Ltd. FREKRE 20,000,000 development,
(“Gansu Technologies”) AE# 20,000,000 7T manufacture

HEEELGEREERAT and sale of
(TH&ERHR) solar products

7 - FE - RS
KHERGEER

Yangjiang Singyes Green Energy Mainland China RMB 97.45%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd.© AR K RE 184,080,000 design and
(“Yangjiang Singyes”) AR¥184,080,0007T investment of

IS EGEEREHEARAR© solar power projects
(F1&]) MR - Rt RiRE

RGREEm

Yangjiang Huazhi Green Energy Mainland China RMB 99.49%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd.@© ey 184,829,619 design and
(“Yangjiang Huazhi") AR 184,829,6197T investment of

BIES G EEREHER AR @@ solar power projects
(M1ER]) ME - Rt RIRE

RFSEEEm

Yangjiang Huayu Green Energy Mainland China RMB 99.49%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd. @© AR A fE 66,581,500 design and
(“Yangjiang Huayu”) AR¥66,581,50070 investment of

BIEFHEERREERAR @O solar power projects
(BIEF]) % - Rt RigE

AF58e1E B

Suixi Xinye Photovoltaic Mainland China - 97.45%  Research,

Electricity Co., Ltd.© AR BE design and

(“Suixi Xinye")
FRBEMEANRENARAT
(TZREED)

investment of

solar power projects
i - Rt iR &

NGEDELE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) These subsidiaries were registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprises under PRC law.

(b) These subsidiaries were registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under PRC law.

(c) As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s equity interests in these
companies were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank loans of
RMB1,440,639,000.

(d) The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement in 2016 and
a supplemental agreement in 2017 (together as the “Agreements”)
with Excel Deal Investment Limited (the “Purchaser”) to sell 81%
equity interests in Xinjiang Singyes and Wuwei Dongrun (together as
the “Target Subsidiaries”). As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
received deposits in relation to the sale of equity interests in the Target
Subsidiaries aggregated to RMB26,934,000 while the transaction has
not been fulfilled. Pursuant to the Agreements, the long stop date of the
transaction is 31 December 2017 or a later date as the parties agree in
writing, the written agreement has not been reached up to 31 December
2017 as the Group and the Purchaser is in negotiation.

(e) On 21 July 2017, the Group completed the spin-off of Singyes New
Materials and its subsidiaries through a separate listing on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Spin-
Off"), the Group’s equity interest in Singyes New Materials was diluted
from 90.1% to 67.6%. The details are set out in note 37 to the financial

statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries has material non-controlling interests.

AT REKEEH (B)

AEMBARZEH (F)

AAREEMBARZFBOT © (B0

GEX

(@) EHEMEARRESEEEER AR
SMEBLE -

(b)  ZEMBRFREHBEDERTMAI
EEEDE -

() MIE—+F+-A=+—B F&
ERZER R MR DD ER -
RAEE AR 1,440,639,000 TTHYER
TERNERG -

d) AEEAEEREFRAGDTES]D
RZT—A"FIIVEERERR=-F
—tFIVHARBZ(RBZER
) AL EFEEE KRS (5B
[EEMBAR]) H81%KE - R
T—tF+-A=+—8 K&EEH
HE B IEHE QA 2 REREES &
T AR®26,934,0007T © R 5 iEARE
B - IREZEWZ  XHZHEELL
HEA-T—+HF+-A=+—H%X
RS AERBECRERE AR
EEEESIEERER  HBE-T+
F+—A=+—AREKESE M -

() MZZE—+FtA=+—8 ~&£E
FERK 5 B B B AR I EL B B A AR
ERHERZHAERARGEMB Y
M 5] - REBREEFMEE
fRHER90.1% HEE67.6%  FI1FH
BTSRRI 7E 37

ERINFEEMRAREIBFEREEF
EREMEBRAKEEEFESERED
MARBIMBRR - EFRA @ Rt
B REcHFBRERFRERT
£ o

BRI B D R EE EAIFE R o
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31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 IREEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee that
remain in effect and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments, conversion
rights of convertible bonds, and certain available-for-sale investments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2017. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for

the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:

included in Annual Clarification of
Improvements to IFRSs the Scope of IFRS 12
2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to IFRSs has had a significant financial
effect on these financial statements. Disclosure has been made in note
43 to the financial statements upon the adoption of amendments to
IAS 7, which require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users
of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and

non-cash changes.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.3 EfE#1E s R E N EPREL

BHR&EA|

AEBAYRRARBHRERDEATIE
PEARAE 15 R AR R AT AR B AT B R B

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 15
Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16
IFRS 17
Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40
IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23
Annual Improvements

2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions!

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensatior?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers!

Leases®

Insurance Contracts®

Employee Benefits?

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration*

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28!

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and

2015-2017 Cycle IAS 232
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

N No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs
(Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below. Of those standards, IFRS 9
and IFRS 15 will be applicable for the Group’s financial year ending 31
December 2018 and are expected to have no significant impact upon
adoption. Whilst management has performed an assessment of the
estimated impacts of these standards, that assessment is based on the
information currently available to the Group. The actual impacts upon
adoption could be different to those below, depending on additional
reasonable and supportable information being made available to the

Group at the time of applying the standards.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace IAS
39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. The Group will adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018.
The Group will not restate comparative information and will recognise
any transition adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2018. During 2017, the Group has performed an assessment
of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9. This expected impacts relate to

the classification and measurement and the impairment requirements

are summarised as follows:
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.3 EfRfR{BIEREFRBEPRES
(Continued) i EL (&)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) BRI EERAEOREMT
B(&)

(a)  Classification and measurement (a) PHRiE
The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have 7 2 B 30 S 7B HB B A0 B RS B 7S 1R
a significant impact on the classification and measurement of its HEBEIRKEAEEeRME
financial assets. It expects to continue measuring at fair value all ENDBERTEELEERTE -
financial assets currently held at fair value. TR EER AT EFEREFR

RFEFAZAEEREE -

The Group’s debt instruments that are currently classified as AEBZRESBAIHEEZ
available for sale will be designated and measured at fair value B TAKEEERATEFEA
through profit or loss. The accumulative revaluation reserve BEABEZ RZT—tF
of these available for sale debt instruments amounted to +ZA=+—8 " ZSHEE
RMB2,405,000 as at 31 December 2017. BERTAZZFEHREBSER

AR 2,405,0007T °
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs
(Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)  Classification and measurement (Continued)

Equity investments currently held as available for sale will be
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) as the investments are intended to be held for the
foreseeable future and the Group expects to apply the option
to present fair value changes in other comprehensive income.
Gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive income for
the equity investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss when
the investments are derecognised. The Group considered the
cost is the best estimation of fair value for these available-for-sale
equity investments.

It expects to continue measuring at amortised cost all financial
assets currently measured at amortised cost.

(b)  Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost or lease receivables, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair
value through profit or loss under IFRS 9, to be recorded based
on an expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis
or a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach
and record lifetime expected losses that are estimated based on
the present values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life
of all of its trade receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply
the general approach and record twelve-month expected credit
losses that are estimated based on the possible default events
on its other receivables within the next twelve months. The
Group has determined that no material further impairment will
be provided upon the initial adoption of the standard.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor’s interest in that associate. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the
IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for

associates. However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

ZF—tFEFR PRERXAHERMERER AR

2.3 EMEMIE R ERBIEFREA

BaE®EA (8)

B PR A4 #5540 & 2 A1 58 10 5% R ERR
BT R 28 57 185T

RIS ERIE 105 R ERE A
RIS 28 5% 2 {ERT AR B 15 #R 5 4
AIF 1058 R EIFR &5 E RIS 285k 2 [
HNEEREERABERAZENE
EHERRANRENT—HE - ZF
ERTARERNIRE F REEZ N R 2
MEEHERRABK - BRI - #
AU EE - BRI ERH
BERS  RPMELNPARNEEREZ
NERENREENZE S AR
BE - RREENBETER - Z5E
IR AR ER - EER &Rt 2ER
BEGER _Z—HFT+_-_AFKRTH
BREI TSRS 1058 R B & 5t £
28 28 5% L AS AT ANH) LATE 5 fhll A= A H B -
i #7769 58 11 AE 2 B BRSO B 2 R R
ST RETKERBZHRRETE - R
i BREFHERT AR RIS ERA

119



120 cChina Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB MY et

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.3 EAM1E R E NI EIEREL
(Continued) BHEER (B)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers BRI RS & RIS 1557 R B
EREHHWA

IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, establishes a new five-step model to R-Z—WF R AR BRI ERE
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS ERFISHREL —EFNRPESR

15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration UZERBRFANEENIE - 1BIE
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring BUBR B 75 3 5 AN 2 1598 - s ikae
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a RMEEEERIRARFEES YK
more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. R M ERESHRESTERER - BE
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative P RELENEISHRNRNABTER
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue, BRI EEEE MRS T E - ZE
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset BITRBI ABZHEIERTERERT

and liability account balances between periods and key judgements BRESFRELSRE  BRBTEE T
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue R EaNEERBERE &%8
recognition requirements under IFRSs. Either a full retrospective FEAR T ZHE RETTHER - %%
application or a modified retrospective adoption is required on the B AR BB B TS 2R 5 RITE NPT B IR
initial application of the standard. In April 2016, the IASB issued Rl =R MRE - FEERIPER
amendments of IFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on B 2 B IR LR 23S E
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on principal BWE - RZT—R"FMNA - BEEE

versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The ERIZ B2 RMHERVEREERSE 15
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more consistent SRZIBEIAN » LIFRAETEBAER - *
application when entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and EARREMERES - MEEREDT]
complexity of applying the standard. The Group plans to adopt the BLARERZEHEE - ZF BRI
transitional provisions in IFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect of BEEPERA RN KA BRE
initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained LRIE I RRFAEFE SR ER T -

earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the WK FE % E R B A FIE R o K
new requirements only to contracts that are not completed before 1 SEHER=_ZE—N\F—A—BEHEAR
January 2018. The Group expects that the transitional adjustment to BREATS SRS 2ERISE 15 5 A BB 163K

be made on 1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of IFRS 15 will not WRUTHANRBEZEHRENR =
be material. Also, the expected changes in accounting policies will not —\F— B —BHREB & EBYREFT
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements from 2018 EZ AT - BHN  REEGEEHE=
onwards. T—N\F—HA—BARTEOE LERA
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The Group’s principal activities consist of design, manufacture, supply
and installation of conventional curtain walls and building integrated
solar photovoltaic systems, as well as the manufacture and sale of solar
power products. During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed
assessment on the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 and concluded
that no material financial impact exists.

The presentation and disclosure requirements in IFRS 15 are more
detailed than those under the current IAS 18. The presentation
requirements represent a significant change from current practice and
will significantly increase the volume of disclosures required in the
Group’s financial statements. Many of the disclosure requirements in
IFRS 15 are new and the Group has assessed that the impact of some
of these disclosure requirements will be significant. In addition, as
required by IFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate revenue recognised
from contracts with customers into categories that depict how the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are

affected by economic factors.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs
(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16, issued in January 2016, replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15
Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition
of investment property in IAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to

make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon adoption and is
considering whether it will choose to take advantage of the practical
expedients available and which transition approach and reliefs will
be adopted. As disclosed in note 39(b) to the financial statements, at
31 December 2017, the Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of approximately
RMB10,701,000. Upon adoption of IFRS 16, certain amounts included
therein may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine
the amount of new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to be
recognised, including, but not limited to, any amounts relating to leases
of low-value assets and short term leases, other practical expedients
and reliefs chosen, and new leases entered into before the date of
adoption.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)
Others

Amendments to IAS 40, issued in December 2016, clarify when an
entity should transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The amendments
state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence
of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
The amendments should be applied prospectively to the changes
in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendments. An entity
should reassess the classification of property held at the date that it
first applies the amendments and, if applicable, reclassify property to
reflect the conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective application is
only permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2018.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)
Others (Continued)

IFRIC 22, issued in December 2016, provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when applying IAS 21 to the
situation where an entity receives or pays advance consideration in
a foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability.
The interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on
which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as
a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the entity must determine the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration. Entities may apply
the interpretation on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective basis,
either from the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first
applies the interpretation or the beginning of the prior reporting period
presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation. The
Group expects to adopt the interpretation prospectively from 1 January
2018. The interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact

on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs
(Continued)

Others (Continued)

IFRIC 23, issued in June 2017, addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(ii) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable
profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either
fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without the restatement of
comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation

disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments, certain
available-for-sale investments and conversion rights of convertible
bonds at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, construction
contract assets, financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined

for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is

credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TEEBERBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties FRER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: FEUATERT - — AR AEAESER
BEs
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family (@) BEFA—BALTHZALTZH
and that person BEYIRERKE - Mz AT :
() has control or joint control over the Group; (i)  FEHIk R AER
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (il HEAEBBEAFE: X
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) AErEENAEET QRN
Group or of a parent of the Group; FTEEBABMEP—FZK
=
or %
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) ZAREBEEMMGE TIEM—IA
applies: & -
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZERBEASEBR—%E
ZKERAT
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (il ZEBARS—REBHHZ
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the ARAEIKBELE(HS—K
other entity); EEMNTAR - HBAR
BREKMBAR)
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (i) ZEBEASEHAR—F
third party; =AREERE
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (iv) ZEBAF=-FEEMNEE
entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ MBE—REEAAZ
FE=FEBHEENR
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group

or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced as intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value (nil
to 5% of cost) over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Land and buildings 50 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment and furniture 3-5 years
Solar photovoltaic power stations 25 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for any
impairment in value. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off the cost of investment property to its residual value

over its estimated useful life of 50 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the costs of the item can be measured
reliably; otherwise, the expenditures are recognised in profit or loss in
the year in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, the transfer does not change
the carrying amount of the property transferred, nor does it change the
cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be
highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a
disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether
the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as held
for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

REME ()

»
ek
Xt
EE

1B R REZIRAR R RO F
HIRABERANEE - WA FZIER MK
AR SEFt ERFTABENRASHE
B XHEEBEEFRIERAME

WIREMERRELTER - MEHIE
BYME - BERRE - MLt Bmm
5 OREBEMOBEANREASB|AEMNK
Ao ¥ - B MR R (EE B B
HAGNBEMKAIRENSE it ExX
REME  ZEBLBRNEMBRYE
MARE(E - TNERE YRR o

FHEHEZERBEER HEHR

fHE B & E Rk EARINRAEET R
FREERZMIEFAEAYD - RIF
BRABELRE - BEUBERT  BEXH
SR BATIRERANE B E - AR
BHEZFEERLEARNIE RGN
RHEAAE+DIEE - BRA/HEAR
MNBARIMBEERBBEENORAR
FIEHE  MARHERAREELR
BB FTHS AP B X Rl M FEAE A AR AR ©

BEARKEHENFRBDEERLEM
AREMERSBEERIN) HEK
EeEEANFEREERA 2 BEERT
B - GEARFLENYE  BFE MR
BAREEEEN T ES#H -

137



138

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFEERAR MY RE

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at

each financial year end.

Software purchased is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five

years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria

is expensed when incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-

line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss
in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity investments and other financial investments.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Other financial investments in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other
expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments are

stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount
is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,

then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the assets. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,

recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME (8)

,[[I]

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and borrowings,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
Costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, derivative financial instruments, bank advances for
discounted bills, convertible bonds, senior notes and interest-bearing
bank and other loans.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings (including senior notes)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both a
liability and embedded derivatives are classified separately into these
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion rights that will
be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
other financial assets for a fixed number of the Company’s shares
are derivative financial liabilities, which are bifurcated from the
host contract and are accounted for separately. Redemption rights,
conditional call options and put options which are closely related to the
host contract are accounted for together with the host contract as a
liability component.

At the date of issue of the convertible bonds, the derivative component
of the convertible bonds is measured at fair value and presented as
part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component is recognised
as the liability component. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and derivative components of the convertible bonds based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative components
when the instruments are initially recognised. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component is recognised
initially as part of the liability. The portion relating to the derivative
component is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Conversion options accounted for as derivative financial liabilities are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TEEHBUEIE (8)
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued) LRERE(E)
Convertible bonds (Continued) AR (4E)
The liability component and the related embedded derivative of the M IER[ AR E A ¥ A R 3K+ — @ B 2 Hp
convertible bonds are presented as a separate line item on the face of KA S A AELR - DR BREESS
the statement of financial position under non-current liabilities, unless BESZSEBEERARSTETAENE
the convertible bonds become mature or redeemable by the holder in Rk IERBAETIEEY -

the next twelve months.

If the bonds are converted, the respective conversion options ESEER - EATES A ESE
accounted for as derivative financial liabilities, together with the R EmEER A E o R ERESREE
carrying value of the liability component at the time of conversion, are HEEEADBHTIRONABE ARKRA R
transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration for RR1555 (8 o

the shares issued.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate
swaps and cross-currency interest rate swap, to hedge its interest rate
risk and foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as

liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or

loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill on an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(a)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

from construction contracts, on the percentage of completion
basis, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Construction contracts” below;

from sales of electricity, is recognised in the accounting period
when electricity is generated and transmitted.

from tariff adjustment which represents subsidies received
and receivable from the government authorities in respect of
the Group’s solar power plant business. Tariff adjustment is
recognised at its fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the additional tariff will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions, if any.

from the rendering of services, when the services are rendered.

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the
costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of

variable and fixed construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management. Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
treated as an amount due from contract customers. Where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to

contract customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless
there are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local government. These subsidiaries and their employees are
required to make monthly contributions calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ wages and salaries, subject to certain ceilings and
local practices set by the relevant local governments, to the central
pension scheme. Other than the central pension scheme, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China have no legal obligation for retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. Contributions to these plans
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre are charged to profit or loss

as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB. The functional
currency of the Company is HK$. The Company’s presentation
currency is RMB because the Group’s principal operations are carried
out in Mainland China. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME (8)

,[[I]

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain companies within the Group are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their profits or losses are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected

in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased out on operating

leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or
leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Percentage of completion of construction contract work

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of individual contracts of construction work, which requires
estimation to be made by management. The stage of completion
is estimated by reference to the actual costs incurred over the total
budgeted costs, and the corresponding contract revenue is also
estimated by management. Due to the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the activity is entered
into and the date at which the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. Hence, the Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the budget
prepared for each contract as the contract progresses. Where the
actual contract revenue is less than expected or actual contract costs
are more than expected, an expected loss may arise. No expected loss
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are subject to
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) CIT. As a result of the
fact that certain matters relating to PRC CIT have not been confirmed
by the relevant local tax authorities, objective estimates based on
currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies are
required in determining the provision for PRC CIT to be made. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
originally recorded, the differences will impact the income tax and
tax provision in the period in which the final outcome is determined.
The carrying amount of PRC CIT payable at 31 December 2017 was

RMB38,579,000 (2016: RMB20,739,000).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. FES:HHETRMG&T(E)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of receivables

The provision policy for impairment of receivables of the Group is based
on ongoing assessment of the recoverability and the ageing analysis
of the outstanding receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of those receivables, including the creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of the customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances
might be required. At 31 December 2017, impairment provision for
trade receivables and other receivables amounted to approximately
RMB53,968,000 and RMB4,578,000 (2016: RMB48,817,000 and
RMB4,578,000), respectively. Further details are given in notes 22 and
23 to the financial statements, respectively.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant, equipment and
investment properties

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant, equipment and investment properties, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in production, or from a change in
the market demand for the product or service output of the asset,
expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the
care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based
on the experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. The depreciation amount will be adjusted if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each financial year end date taking into
account changes in circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets with definite lives are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of sell and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of sell is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of a
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customers’ interests or competitor actions. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting period. There was no
impairment provision for inventories as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets should be recognised when it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets at 31 December 2017 was RMB49,051,000 (2016:
RMB32,288,000). Further details are given in note 31 to the financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities should be recognised for all taxable differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates except
(a) when the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of
such temporary differences and it is probable that such temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Significant
management estimation is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax liabilities associated with the Company’s investments
in subsidiaries, based upon the likely timing of the reversal of such
temporary differences. The carrying value of deferred tax liabilities
associated with investments in subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 was
RMB8&6,860,000 (2016: RMB86,860,000). Further details are given in
note 31 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Where fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities cannot
be derived directly from active markets, they are determined using
valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of estimation is required in establishing fair values. The
estimations include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors

could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both a
liability and embedded derivatives are classified separately into
these respective items on initial recognition. The derivatives are
accounted for as fair value through profit or loss in initial recognition
and remeasured to fair value through profit or loss in subsequent
reporting periods. The Group engaged an independent professional
valuer to assist in determining the fair value of the conversion rights of
convertible bonds. The fair value of the conversion rights of convertible
bonds was estimated by the independent professional valuer using
the binomial option pricing model and the estimation included some
assumptions not supported by observable market prices or rates
such as the discount rate, volatility, credit risk, and expected future
cash flows, and hence they are subject to uncertainty. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in significant
changes in the fair value of conversion rights contained in the
convertible bonds and the corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss reported in profit or loss. The fair value of the conversion
rights of convertible bonds at 31 December 2017 was nil (2016:
RMB15,227,000). Further details are given in note 29 to the financial

statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EESHHET R (E)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate
swaps and cross-currency interest rate swap, to hedge its interest rate
risk and currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. The Group
engaged an independent professional valuer to assist in determining
the fair value of the interest rate swaps. The fair value of the interest
rate swaps was estimated by the independent professional valuer using
the discounted cash flow method and the estimation included some
assumptions not supported by observable market rates such as credit
risk, discount rate and expected future cash flows, and hence they are
subject to uncertainty. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in significant changes in the fair value of the
interest rate swaps. The fair value of the cross-currency interest rate
swaps at 31 December 2017 was liabilities of RMB34,005,000 (2016:
assets of RMB22,961,000). Further details are given in note 27 to the
financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE

Revenue represents an appropriate proportion of contract revenue
from construction contracts; net of government surcharges; and the
invoiced value of goods and electricity sold, and net of value-added tax
and government surcharges.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4. FEEFBEERMN (E)
REVENUE (Continued)
The Group’s revenue and contribution to profit for the year were mainly AEENRARFREMEREERS
derived from the construction and installation of curtain walls (including Bk (REAGEER) BRETE N
solar power products), as well as operation and management of solar ARG RBIBEE RERE - Wi
photovoltaic power stations, which is regarded as a single reportable BE—ME2RHI  ARAEBERE
segment in a manner consistent with the way in which information is BEMSIEEREERTHHNLEHR
reported internally to the Group’s senior management for the purpose AR5 o ARBEFEAL
of resource allocation and performance assessment. In addition, the FEEEMPRBIARRE - Bt - BRIAZE
principal assets employed by the Group are located in Mainland China. MARKMFRNEEN  BEZ|RH D
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented other than entity-wide #r o
disclosures.
Information about products and services FRAERRRBHEE
The following table sets forth the total revenue from external customers TRFILE B MIRTEE D KR B oM
by product and service and the percentage of total revenue by product B MBI AL R AT EIRE G &R
and service during the year: BDHBRIMAE A
2017 2016
—F—tE ZE—RF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETRT AREFIT
Construction contracts BEAR 4,263,938 75.1 3,849,519 73.4
Sale of goods EmiHE 1,273,592 22.4 1,308,550 25.0
Rendering of design services HRt R AR 13,268 0.2 13,174 03
Rendering of operation IR EE R ERT
and maintenance service 9,202 0.2 - -
Sale of electricity BHHE 115,386 2.1 68,321 1.3
Revenue WA 5,675,386 100.0 5,239,564 100.0
Tariff adjustment* EEREL 166,682 93,224

*

Tariff adjustment represents subsidies receivable from the government

authorities in respect of the Group’s solar photovoltaic power station

operation business.

i BEMUMERAEE 2 KGNS

BULRETS B BT BRI 2 R o
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4, BEDBEEIBWAN (E)
REVENUE (Continued)
Geographical information = & ¥
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a) KEIIEEFHYA
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETR ARET T
Domestic — Mainland China* B — pEAFE* 5,132,397 90.4 4,840,311 92.4
Hong Kong BE 302,890 5.3 187,850 3.5
Oceania ANEA 178,844 3.2 = =
Macao JRPFY 20,033 04 156,357 3.0
Africa e 21,987 0.4 = =
Malaysia 5P Wi 12,205 0.2 55,046 1.1
United States EE 7,030 0.1 = =
5,675,386 100.0 5,239,564 100.0
& The place of domicile of the Group’s principal operating * AEBFEEENBARIMAT

subsidiaries is Mainland China. The principal revenues of the
Group are generated in Mainland China.

Ei AP EARE - REENE
BRAELBHBEKLE -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4, BEDBEEFWAN (E)
REVENUE (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued) WEEE (&)
(b)  Non-current assets (b) HETEEE
2017 2016
—ET—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREFT ANR¥ETFIT
Mainland China FR B K B 4,573,938 99.6 4,639,545 99.5
Hong Kong &5 20,118 0.4 24,436 05
Others Hi 178 0.0 288 0.0
4,594,234 100.0 4,664,269 100.0
The non-current asset information above is based on the FHERESEEER IR EER
locations of the assets and excludes investments in associates, EiRE D - AW A EREE
deferred tax assets and available-for-sale investments. NEIEE  BREMIBE E KA #
HERE o
Information about major customers FRAXEEFRNER
Revenue of approximately RMB684,061,000 (2016: Nil) was derived #IANR#684,061,000 7T ( ZF— /N 4F -
from sales to a single customer, including sales to a group of entities EINWRERERAE-—RFPHHEE &
which are known to be under common control with that customer. EEEMEZEFE KREG N —AE S

HEHE -
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5. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

5. HAbUg A R iras

HWA RS RATT

2017 2016
—T—tf ZTE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTFT
Deferred income released to RABEETEARERAFHRE
profit or loss over the expected B ARz (H1RE32)
useful lives of the related
assets (note 32) 14,346 19,830
Bank interest income RITHEUA 16,599 10,989
Interest income on retention money — E 1R & F BULA 10,997 15,077
Interest income on other receivables  Efth fE UL R IE FI B I A 14,285 1,792
Government grants* BT EE) 12,230 7,467
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - WEMEEER
property, plant and equipment** HY U aS 59,309 146,002
Gain on disposal of a HE—FMB AR W
subsidiary (note 36) (Ffi5E36) 16,007 =
Fair value gains on derivative TESMTANAFERS
financial instruments - 22,961
Interest income from available-for-sale ] H & &7 T AT EUA
debt instruments 3,471 1,413
Foreign exchange gains, net AN L 2 S BB 24,110 12,371
Rental income el A 2,558 1,286
Others HA 4,975 3,888
178,887 243,076

There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these
grants.

i The gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment contained
the deferred income amounting to approximately RMB92,896,000 (2016:
RMB247,395,000) (note 32) released to profit or loss upon disposal of
the related assets.

* %

B TR SRR ER R
REHE -

BEW TSN EWE - BE REE
BHE RSN L EHEEEREEE
4 A R #92,896,0007T (= F — X
F: AR #247,395,0007% ) (Kt 5%
32) e
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6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BIERE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: RERRADHTT ¢

2017 2016

—F—tF —E—REF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BisE ARETR AREFTT

Interest on bank and other loans RITMEMERF S 43 162,185 158,195

Interest on discounted bills receivable BhIR &I ZE1E R & 42 13,667 12,256

Interest on convertible bonds AT AR E ST B 29 73,197 116,299
Loss on repurchase of BB AT AR E 5 2 518

convertible bonds 29 22,460 -
Loss on redemption of FE O AT IR B 5 E518

convertible bonds 29 137,920 -

Interest on senior notes BEREERE 30 221,572 71,819

Others Hih 8,073 9,459

Total interest expense T BBz 639,074 368,028

Less: interest capitalised B BAMEF R 43 (17,741) -

621,333 368,028
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

7. BR¥BiAERF

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

AN ERR B AR R &R, (BEA) A

T&IA -
2017 2016
—T—tf —ERF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETR AREFTT
Cost of construction contracts and BEA R KT RBA A
design services 3,390,423 3,015,663
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 1,042,159 1,020,301
Cost of electricity sold BEEHKA 99,920 68,890
Cost of operation and B8 I M FR TSR AR
maintenance service 4,027 -
Depreciation of property, M - BEREETE
plant and equipment 13 177,677 151,275
Depreciation of investment WEWHETE
properties 14 1,494 557
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR T A E PR SE
payments 15 3,896 2,133
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 16 964 936
Total depreciation and amortisation ~ #T8 R# 54278 184,031 154,901
Employee benefit expense EERMAZ (BEEER
(including directors’ and chief TERAEEFE) (FIzES)
executive’s remuneration (note 8):
Wages and salaries and IERF< REHEEN
relevant benefits 256,662 245,734
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHEF 10,777 10,546
Equity-settled share option expense i 4t S BERS ERA =2 34 14,140 11,773
281,579 268,053
Minimum lease payments under KERE THRERERNRK
operating leases 12,786 7,905
Research costs I A 15,271 11,312
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEM B & 10,410 8,590
Transaction costs related to listing BEAWB ARG
shares of a subsidiary 58 5,523 9,696
Provision for impairment of B 5 RWGRIE 2 REEE
trade receivables 22 5,151 21,390
Loss on settlement of derivative HEEITESmM T AMEIE
financial instruments 12,036 6,960
Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative $THS BT AEMNAFE
financial instruments &8, (W) 27 56,966 (22,961)
Interest income from available-for-sale 7] & &% T EF| S WA
debt instruments (3,471) (1,413)
Gains on disposal of items of HEME - BEKREER
property, plant and equipment Eoflires (59,309) (146,002)
Operating lease rental income wEeflEfe (2,558) (1,286)
Exchange gains, net &5 Wes - SR8 (24,110) (12,371)

175



176

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE R AR Y

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

EERIT

BENE

RIRE B 2 B FR G5 383(1)(@) ~ (b) »
O ROKEERAR(HKEEENEER)
ROVFE 2 G BN FNEE RITHRAR

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as BT
follows:
2017 2016
—F—t= —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREFT
Fees we 4,297 5,185
Other emoluments: EHihbie
Salaries, allowances e FEALREDA
and benefits in kind 3,374 2,222
Pension scheme contributions RIRSET B 76 111
7,747 7,518
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EBERITHAHNE (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries,

allowances Pension
and benefits scheme

in kind contributions Total

Fees ¥i& - i#f4 iB4K5TE| remuneration

we REYEN 5N HEEtEREN

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTRE ARETRT ARETR

2017 —F—+tE
Executive directors: WITEE -
Mr. Liu Hongwei® GFAR e ) 1,505 1,064 19 2,588
Mr. Sun Jinli® Regreo 697 760 19 1,476
Mr. Xiong Shi© BERILAE© 8 617 19 644
Mr. Xie Wen B 1,254 933 19 2,206
3,464 3,374 76 6,914
Non-executive directors: IEMITES :
Mr. Cao Zhirong BREEE 113 - - 113
Mr. Li Hong®© TREE© 86 - - 86
Mr. Li Huizhong® = 5t 49 - - 49
248 - - 248
Independent non-executive directors: JBI FFHITES ¢
Mr. Wang Ching TRk AE 167 - - 167
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SKEEI A 251 - - 251
Mr. Zhong Jishou® fRAESR 4 © 86 - - 86
Mr. Cheng Jinshu® BEHtE® 81 = = 81
585 - - 585

4,297 3,374 76 7,747
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERTHAEZMN: (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind  contributions Total
Fees & - #Bh BIREHE] remuneration
we  KEDEF R LRET BN
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFRT ARBTT ARETT
2016 —T—RF
Executive directors: WITEE -
Mr. Liu Hongwei® RaT s E@ 1,610 792 37 2,439
Mr. Sun Jinli Rers 1,342 669 37 2,048
Mr. Xie Wen st 1,342 761 37 2,140
4,294 2,222 111 6,627
Non-executive directors: IEHMITES :
Mr. Cao Zhirong BRESE 121 = = 121
Mr. Li Huizhong TEREE 121 = — 121
242 - - 242
Independent non-executive directors: B FEHITEE ¢
Mr. Wang Ching EREE 179 = = 179
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon GBS 268 = = 268
Mr. Cheng Jinshu Bewitt 202 = = 202
649 - - 649
5,185 2,222 111 7,518
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(@)  Mr. Liu Hongwei who acts as an executive director of the
Company is also the chief executive officer of the Company.

(b)  Mr. Sun Jinli resigned as the Company’s executive director
on 20 July 2017, Mr. Li Huizhong resigned as the Company’s
non-executive director on 5 June 2017, and Mr. Cheng Jinshu
resigned as the Company’s independent non-executive director
on 5 June 2017.

(c)  Mr. Xiong Shi was appointed as the Company’s executive
director on 1 December 2017, Mr. Li Hong was appointed as
the Company’s non-executive director on 5 June 2017, and Mr.
Zhong Jishou was appointed as the Company’s independent
non-executive director on 5 June 2017.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive officer waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2016: Nil).

EERITHARME (B)

(@ BIA#HEEEERARRNTE
= AR REATIRAEE,

by HEBEEAR-_ZE—LHFLA
ZTHRBMERARBARTES  F
ELEENR_ZE—tFRNARAH
BEARBEAITES - RiES
BEER_ZE—+FARBH
EARRBEILIFMTES -

RRREAR-_T—tF+_-_A—
REZERERRMITESE - F
BEER_ZE—tFXNALRE
RERARRFATEERIT#
BAER-_Z—tFARAE
REREKRBIBUIENTES -

—~

O

~
i}

FRAEEMEFRTRERNERF
ERETCAFM LB (ZF—RF:
) o
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one director
and the chief executive officer (2016: two directors and the chief
executive officer), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three
(2016: two) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor

AfimEHlES

FR AfuRSHFEETEELES
RITHRER(CZE—RF: MUEER
TTRAER) - RENFMFBTEN LX
MizE8 e R N =1 (=T — 7 F : W)
FARRAEENTHRARREHER

chief executive of the Company are as follows: FRMEFFBOT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REYAE
in kind 5,497 3,607
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHER 49 32
5,546 3,639

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

TIIFNEEAIFEE TR AR
SHEENHBLT

Number of employees

EEHE
2017 2016
—T—tF TN
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T Z 1,500,000 % 7T 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 % 7T Z 2,500,000 % 7T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000 2,500,001 7T E 3,500,000 /7T 1 =
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10. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the respective countries or jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, Samoa and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda, Samoa and the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Macao, Malaysia, Singapore and Nigeria profits tax
has been made as the Group had no assessable profits derived from or
earned in Macao, Malaysia, Singapore and Nigeria during the year.

Mainland China profits tax has been provided at the respective
corporate income tax (“CIT"”) rates applicable to the subsidiaries
located in Mainland China as determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC for the year.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the applicable CIT rate of
16.5% as determined in accordance with the Hong Kong income tax
rules for the year.

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as
follows:

10.

Frig®i

REBEREXERABIMENMNEZNE
B B 5k AR & P A A Sk IR X A
M REREEIMAEH -

REERE BEINMEBRELZESE
RER  AEEEABMNBRE  BE
DREBRIBESNEMMAENR -

REAREEWEAIRF - HFRAE -
¥hN3E K JE B F 55 B A SR BRERAE AT e AR
Bg ) - S IR - FHIRAE: - #
A3 B B BRI ZE RS BlaT R 8

S E NIRRT WEE=9i S alE N =N
FERANEHEEMBR(EEMS
B E - RFERAPEZBBRABEER
KAROIE B4 -

BERENERIRBEARFEEBMEHARD
BIRERMEREHHE 16.5% B -

REEMFHAXTIEAIMAT

2017 2016
—F—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT

Current — Charge for the year BHIPMEH - FRRX
~ Mainland China — PR 135,617 111,354
— Macao — 8P = 1,200
— Hong Kong - B8 1,118 =
Deferred (note 31) PEFE (FI5E31) (16,763) 1,819
Total tax charge for the year FATIERS 28 119,972 114,373
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FRiG# (/&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the applicable tax rates for the countries or jurisdictions in which
companies within the Group are domiciled to the tax expense at the
Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

AEERFADEN - REEAS AR
P 2 BIZR Bk RDAE 85 [ /08 R A R &
HREMAX  RREEERREAE
MIERS - & SRRIT ¢

2017 2016

—F—tF ZE—RF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P ARETR ARBFT

Profit before tax (G aNznpiawl 270,378 626,922

At the applicable tax rates RERAMREGTE (@) 31,574 113,382

Effect of tax holiday BB EETE (a) (18,521) (33,952)

Income not subject to tax BAERBIA (b) (3,345) (24,508)

Expenses not deductible for tax AR ERA (c) 115,655 54,486
Effect on deferred tax of change HEEHHRELHIBZFE

in tax rate (11,545) -

Tax losses utilised from previous years AR E RIERERH

which were not recognised before TRIEEERNER (4,389) (634)

Tax losses not recognised RIEERN T IEEE 10,543 5,599
Tax charge at the Group’s effective AEEBERHEMTRIBASZ

tax rate 119,972 11114} 5778}
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

(a)

The applicable CIT rate for Mainland China subsidiaries is
25% except for certain subsidiaries that would be entitled to
preferential tax rates as discussed below:

For Mainland China subsidiaries which are qualified as High
and New Technology Enterprises, they would be entitled to
a preferential tax rate of 15%. For subsidiaries engaging in
encouraged industries in Western China, they would be entitled
to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the period from 1 January
2011 to 31 December 2020. For subsidiaries engaging in the
approved projects of solar power station construction, they will
be exempted from CIT for the first three years and are entitled
to a 50% tax reduction for the subsequent three years (“= %
= 8 ¥) since their respective first revenue-generating years.
Thereafter, they will be subject to CIT at a rate of 25% or 15%.

Income not subject to tax mainly consists of unrealised foreign
exchange gain and the fair value gains on conversion rights of
convertible bonds, and the fair value gains on derivative financial
instruments (if any).

Expenses not deductible for tax mainly consist of equity-settled
share option expenses, finance costs incurred in offshore
companies and the fair value losses on derivative financial
instruments (if any). These expenses are not expected to be
deductible for tax.

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
RMB1,633,000 is included in “Share of losses of associates” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

10. T8 (/8)

(a)

hEAERB AR ZEREEMR
ERME[/25%  FXTINEER
W2 MR RIRRID -

BRihE g 2R B Rk
B ARG EZER 16% 2 BEB
Ko NP E RN FEEENITE
WHBAR BT ——F—A
—BEZZEZTF+A=+—
BHMENZZ1I5% 2 BEER
Ko MHEEBAIGEEB I RER
BERWEAR  BIEEREE—
ELEERKEWRAFBRATFE
B EEZF=FRETERD
EEH  EEZFREGRD
EMBHI=ZR=RED - 1t
% HEBER25% 5K 15% 2 F
KN ZEFTISHE o

BEARBWAZZBERERI
BEE W 2 A Ko AT 4R B (B S BB R AR Y
NPERE  WRRTESRIA
B RFEKES (NF)

FAIER AR T2 BREERA
EEBRERX  BFEQREL
ZRWERRARTESRTAZ
RNHEBR(ME) - ZERAXTE
HA AT R AR IR

DIEBMERARBAARKE
1,633,0007T o
[ 65 & R FIER
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11. DIVIDENDS 11. g2
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREFIT
Proposed final — HK3 cents BEAURE - EREBR
(2016: HK7 cents) 3B (=F—7RF - 780
per ordinary share 20,916 52,226
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval AEEEIR 2 RARBBERARRRE
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general RREER R F RE it -

meeting.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
834,073,195 (2016: 759,613,349) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, adjusted
to reflect the interest on the convertible bonds and fair value changes
on the conversion rights of the convertible bonds, where applicable (see
below). The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

ZF—tFEFR PRERXAHERMERER AR

12. XA BIERTAAE

i EF

BRERZFTDBEARR R ERRER
FEABLFNGRFRFANCETER
% 19 hn4E S 39 81843,073,195 %k (= F
—7NEF £ 759,613,349 f%) 51 E -

BEERNREHESRELRRT
BRAR AR B BARESE ARG
FRENAE - WIEHAR - URERA]
BERE RN B R AR AR E S B R
DPEEE(NER) (AT - 5 EE
RARE BB B ANFANET
VEBRINETFOEE (BRFEESR
EXRER)  URBRRAEHEERE
EBBREERTTERER S EBRIEE
EEITEEBAIE IR -
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

12.

KA BIERTAAE
iEEiRER ()

BRERNREERNNAERE

2017 2016
—F—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Earnings kil
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ~ sTEFREARBEFHARD
holders of the Company used in the — Ei@MREZS Hﬁ/\ﬁffﬁ/ﬁnﬂ
basic earnings per share calculation 143,797 501,961
Interest on convertible bonds* AR E S A - S
Less: fair value gains on the conversion & : RJHAAX(EAEAER
rights of the convertible bonds* N ERE - -
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ~ F0R IR P(E 57 8 K Al i
holders of the Company before fREHFEmEN A TFEK
interest on convertible bonds and AR R EBRER
fair value gains on the conversion BB AE(R T
rights of the convertible bonds 143,797 501,961
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

12. XA BIERTAAE
i EF ()

Number of shares

ke
2017 2016
—T—tE ZE—RF
Shares &5
Weighted average number of ordinary R T EBREREFINER
shares in issue during the year used 377 & BAXEY ANkE 19 81
in the basic earnings per share
calculation 834,073,195 759,613,349
Effect of dilution — weighted average #5832 — @R INETHE
number of ordinary shares:
Share options B AR A 1,167,298 1,772,823
Convertible bonds* AT AR (E S S =
835,240,493 761,386,172
& The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 * FEBEE T —+tFt+=-A=+—H

December 2017 does not assume the exercises of convertible bonds for
the year ended 31 December 2017 since assuming such exercises would
result in an increase in earnings per share.

IEFENTRE SR T EBRERITE
BE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HIF
ERaBiRES  BRRZTEEE
R AR -
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13. Y% - BERRE

Office Solar
equipment photovoltaic
Land and Plant and Motor and fumiture power stations Construction
buildings machinery vehicles #oE K5k in progress Total
1HREF el RE RERER ks ERIR it
31 December 2017 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“E-t§+-R=1-B NREFT NRBFT NRETT NRBFT NRETT ARETT  ARETR
Cost: k!
Mllanuay 2017 R-E—+F
-A-H 1,210,663 343,164 16,772 42,125 2,692,236 583,789 4,888,749
Additions AE 4,993 4,541 1,504 2,298 - 331,402 344,738
Transfers &7 313,710 1,662 - 2,49 456,562 (774,428) S
Disposal of a HE-FENBAR
subsidiary (note 36)  (Ff3E36) - - - 5 (111,982) - (111,982)
Disposals e - (517) (623) (150) (159,452) - (160,742)
Exchange realignment (B 33% (1,287) - (69) (569) - - (1,925)
At31 December 2017 H=F—+&
T-A=t-H 1,528,079 348,850 17,584 46,198 2,877,364 140,763 4,958,838
Accumulated BHTERE
depreciation
and impairment:
At 1 January 2017 R-E—tE-A-8B 114884 163,825 13,564 25,760 207,169 - 525,202
Depreciation provided ~ AFEERE
fortheyear (note 7).~ (H&7) 29,619 34,529 1,158 1,578 110,793 - 171,677
Disposal of a LE-HNBAR
subsidiary (note 36) (& 36) - - - - (4,781) - (4,781)
Disposals HE = (33) = (18) (22,771) - (22,822)
Exchange realignment B 33% (233) - (18) (164) - - (415)
At31 December 2017 R=F—+F
t-A=1-H 144,270 198,321 14,704 21,156 290,410 - 674,861
Net carying amount. SR 5(E :
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+E-A—H 1095779 179,339 3,208 16,365 2,485,067 583,789 4,363,547
At31 December 2017 R=Z—+F
+-A=t-H 1,383,809 150,529 2,880 19,042 2,586,954 140,763 4,283,977
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y12 - BERRE (&)
(Continued)
Office Solar
equipment photovoltaic
Land and Plant and Motor and furniture power stations Construction
buildings machinery vehicles HAZ K in progress Total
ThREF BRRE il FEREE KRB fEIR 5
31 December 2016 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“E-ET-A=1-A ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETRH
Cost: Rk
At 1 January 2016 RZE-—7E-A-B 1212372 335,182 17,047 36,564 2,274,108 312133 4 247 406
Additions AE 2,640 5824 386 3379 3214 1,030,609 1,046,052
Transfers E 994 5314 - 1,729 741,446 (758,953) =
Transferred to investment E% 2R E9%
properties (note 14) ~~ (Miz£14) (71,947) - - - - - (71947)
Disposal of a HE-RHEBAR
subsidiary - - - - (22.258) - (22.258)
Disposals e (3,616) (3,656) (741) (42) (304,274) = (312329
Exchange realignment (B 3% 1,250 - 80 4% - = 185
At31 December 2016 R =F—~F
t-A=t-H 1,210,663 343164 16,772 42125 2,692,236 583,789 4,888,749
Accumulated BHITERAE :
depreciation
and impairment:
At 1 January 2016 R=Z-F-A-A 93,762 136,934 11417 2298 147,070 - 412168
Depreciation provided ~ AEEHTEE(E
forthe year (note 7) ~ (Af3E7) 24,716 30,420 2801 2,103 90,635 - 151,275
Transferred to investment EHZRENE
properties (note 14)  (HfzE14) (3240 = - = = = (3,240)
Disposal of a HE-ENBAR
subsidiary - - - = (214) = (214)
Disposals & (555) (3,529) (656) (6) (30,322) = (35,068)
Exchange realignment B 33% 21 = 2 78 = = 281
At31 December 016 H=E—7E
t-A=t-H 114834 163,825 13,564 25,760 207,169 - 525,202
Net carying amount:  HRESHE :
At 1 January 2016 RZB—E-A-B 1178610 198 248 5630 13579 2,127,038 312,133 3,835,238

At31 December 2016 H=F—7~%
+-h=1-H 1,095,779 179,339 3,208 16,365 2,485,067 583,789 4363547
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB564,376,000 (2016: RMB583,090,000)
were pledged to secure bank and other loans granted to the Group (note
28(a)).

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s solar photovoltaic power
stations with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,388,492,000
(31 December 2016: RMB1,325,534,000) were pledged to secure bank
and other loans granted to the Group (note 28(b)).

As at 31 December 2017, the application for the property ownership
certificates of certain buildings with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB543,760,000 (2016: RMB271,458,000) was in
progress. Those buildings can only be sold, transferred or mortgaged
when their relevant ownership certificates have been obtained. In the
opinion of directors of the Company, there is no major barrier for the
Group to obtain these building ownership certificates.

As at 31 December 2017, the right on the annual return generated
from the solar photovoltaic power station (the “Relevant Asset”) with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB28,605,000 (2016:
RMB29,903,000) was assigned to an independent third party for twenty
years for a loan obtained by the Group (note 28(c)).

&
g
W
=
U
%
%II;
e

R-Z—+F+-A=1+—8 K&
E BREDFE L = A R 564,376,000
T(ZT—RF : AR¥ 583,090,000
) ZEFEEBEAR FAEEMNR
TREAE R Z HER (5 28(a)) -

RZZF—+tF+-_A=+—8 " k@l
FE D AR #1,388,492,000L( =
E—RE+_A=+—H: AR¥
1,325,534,000) 2 A& EE F K588
HRBUBERERE TAEENIER
FTREAE R Z HER (3£ 28(b)) ©

RZZF—+tF+-_A=+—8 " k@l
EEX A AR 543,760,000T (= F
—7NEE  ARM271,458,0007T) 25
TEFZYEERFEITRFRRE
HEH - ZERFERNNGEEENE
REERFHILE  EREAIREB K
RRIEERA  AEENEZZETFT
A RBEN mERER -

RZF—+tF+_A=+—8 ' KB
BEXRBIN((HALE ) REFELD
AR #28,605000L(=F — /< F :
AR #29,903,0007T ) 2 4 & [ 3k #
FMERAEERBZFHA-TFH
BEREET B E = (ME28(c) °
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. HEYE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T
Cost: B :
At 1 January n—A—H 71,947 =
Additions NE 8,527 -
Transferred from BHAEWE (MEE13)
owner-occupied
properties (note 13) - 71,947
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 80,474 71,947
Accumulated depreciation: SiHRE -
At 1 January n—A—H 3,797 =
Transferred from BHAEWE (MEE13)
owner-occupied
properties (note 13) - 3,240
Depreciation provided REEIERE (M)
for the year (note 7) 1,494 557
At 31 December w+=-—A=+—H 5,291 3,797
Net carrying amount: AREFE :
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 75,183 68,150
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. &M% (F)

As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of the investment properties RZZE—+tF+=—A=+—8 ' &&W
were estimated to be approximately RMB78,089,000 (2016: M AFEMFTALOARE 78,089,000
RMB70,970,000). The valuation was performed by Zhuhai Dewei T(ZZFE—RF: AR#70970,000
Real Estate and Land Appraisal Company Limited, an independent To) o HERBLEEASBERAERME
professionally qualified valuer. Selection criteria of the external valuer BEREMEN AR AT - INE
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether HEMNTEENBEMS NG &
professional standards are maintained. The valuation was estimated 2 BUMEEEAI MRS EREZE -
using discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of HETDRER KBS AN SEHTK
future rental income or market rents for similar properties in the same FEREME R AR REEN T ISES
location and condition, where appropriate. The fair value measurement (H@EA) - HABARRSRETEAG
hierarchy of the investment properties requires certain significant e REVEN AT ENEBATES
unobservable inputs (Level 3). FERTAIBRGAZE(E=E) -

The investment properties are leased to the third parties under REMERBECEHERTE=F -

operating leases.

As at 31 December 2017, the application for the property ownership RZZE—tF+ZA=+—1  KEF
certificates of certain buildings with a net carrying amount of B4 A ANR64,798000 T (ZF—X
approximately RMB64,798,000 (2016: RMB57,478,000) was in F: ANRWES74780007T) 2 & TIEF
progress. Those buildings can only be sold, transferred or mortgaged COHERFETITRFEARAREF - Z
when their relevant ownership certificates have been obtained. In the ERFERDNGHEEBNERESN
opinion of directors of the Company, there is no major barrier for the FAIHE - HELILE - ARREER
Group to obtain these building ownership certificates. B AEBERSZESEFTMAEESL

EEALSHE -
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. Faft L HERIE

2017 2016

—F—tF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFIT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEAE 203,001 96,136

Additions NE 5,632 108,998
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKBA R (ME36)

(note 36) (5,773) S

Amortisation charged ANEFEEE (M)
for the year (note 7) (3,896) (2,133)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—RHZEHEE 198,964 203,001

At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s prepaid land
lease payments with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB58,441,000 (2016: RMB59,791,000) were pledged to secure
bank loans granted to the Group (note 28(d)).

At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s prepaid land
lease payments with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB108,857,000 (2016: RMB108,998,000) were sub-leased from
certain grantees of the land use rights and therefore, the relevant land
use rights were not registered under the name of the Group which
cannot be sold, transferred or mortgaged.

R_ZB—+F+=-_A=+—08 ' £&£E
BREDFEHN ARMES8,441,000T(=F
—NFF 1 ARM59,791,000) 7T ) B BT
T ERECIEIFIEAE T AS@EE
RITEFZ IR (I 28(d)) °

R_ZB—+F+=-_A=+—08 ' £&£E
BRTHE A ARE 108,857,000 7T (=
T—/N4F - ARM108,998,0007T) 2 %
FHEMN LB ENFTRR RS T i
PREARAD T ERE  Fitt - &
B+ AR SE AR R B A BT
TAGEITHE - RIS -
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. ML & E
2017 2016
—ET—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF AREFTT
Software Bt
Cost: R
At 1 January Bn—A—H 5,722 5,178
Additions NE 682 593
Disposal HE - (63)
Exchange realignment PE H A% (10) 14
At 31 December BW+—-—A=+—H 6,394 5,722
Accumulated amortisation: FeHEes -
At 1 January Bn—A—H 2,617 1,692
Amortisation provided during FRE RS (HE7)
the year (note 7) 964 936
Disposal HE - (12)
Exchange realignment PE H A% (2) 1
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 3,579 2,617
Net carrying amount: ARERE :

At 31 December ®“+—RA=+—H 2,815 3,105
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17. PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE 17. TEIRIE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx AREFTT
Advance payments in respect of- KT IE B B FET 50
Land use rights THb AR - 1,547
Prepayments for patent BRI A FRIE 3,510 =
Purchase of machinery IR E SR 3,703 7,567
Purchase of office property BERAEYE 10,360 =
Others Eib 1,072 =
18,645 9,114
18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REFZEATIRE
2017 2016
—F—tE —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
Unlisted investments, at cost JELETIRE » LKA 40,820 40,330
Share of losses of associates DL E N R EE (42,263) (29,204)

Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBERBERRIREZ
Group's investments in RAEAE
the associates (1,443) 11,126
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18.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group’s trade receivable and other receivable balances with the
associates are disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, there were no material associates of the
Group during the year.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held through
subsidiaries of the Company.

The Group continued the recognition of its share of losses of
associates despite the share of losses of these associates exceeded
the Group’s interests in these associates because the Group has
capital contribution obligation to associates (note 40). Further losses
of RMB20,721,000 (2016: RMB19,915,000) were not recognised in
profit or loss during the year due to the share of losses of an associate
exceeded the Group’s capital contribution, for which the Group has no
obligation.

18.

REEATIRE ()

NEBEBPE AT 2 EREHRARE
fth FEUCRRIB A& 82 TR B S TR R T 5 41 38

B

EERB FAAEEYLEERBER
o

A RPERE R R IR E B AR A R
SYNEIESY I

ﬁ%%WE@T%EtLKEI
EARZ R NEBDRE
HEAohBE R ABE REAR
$Elﬂéﬁhéuﬁﬁﬁﬁf&mﬁ
FE40) - BRAEBE S HEE QRS
BREAEEMNIEETNBIETEE
% E—FEBEAR20,721,0007T
(ZF—R"F : AR¥19,915,0007T)
EAARFE 2 BRNHER -
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19. At ERE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFR AREFTT
Unlisted equity investments, FEEMRAIRE + R - (a)
at cost:
Weihai China Glass Solar Co., Ltd. BRI A ERR AT 12,581 13,468
Jiuhua New Energy Management NEFERERER AT
Co., Ltd. 380 380
Shanxi Singyes Solar Technology PR 2 K 5 8e BHE
Co., Ltd. BRAT] 7,600 7,600
Zhuhai Xinye Green Energy RBIREL B RERRHE
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAT] 9,500 9,500
Others i) 5 5
30,066 30,953
Debt investments, BBEE
at fair value: BATE -
Life insurance contracts ASRBEL (b) 22,382 22,316
Asset management plans BEEETE (c) 33,355 27,243
Wealth management products IR B EE (d) 180,000 =
235,737 49,559
Amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—Hz%% 265,803 80,512
Current portion included in BRENAIHREEREZ
available-for-sale investments RENER D (208,234) =
Non-current portion IEmBNERD 57,569 80,512
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)

19. ATt &7 E (48)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2017, the equity investments listed above were
stated at cost as the Group has no significant influence or control over
the entities. The unlisted equity investments represent the Group’s
investments in enterprises domiciled in Mainland China. They are stated
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their
fair value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to
dispose of them in the near future.

The life insurance contracts at fair value at 31 December 2017
represented the cash surrender value (“CSV”) of two life insurance
contracts (the “Insurance Contracts”) entered into between the Company
and an international insurance company in July 2015. The Company is

@ R-E—tF+-A=+—H" L7
R A TR ARSI - EASREE
ERYEBEATEIIEHIE - FLT
BAREEARERPE AN
RE - BERRERKAR ERET
R BEhHEREAFEMTZEES
R EEFRR HROFEEEERG

(b) R-E—tF+-_A=+—BRLQF
BIRASRBANERRRE—H
B RBARR _E—RAF+ AL
MIBABREE O (TRREK))

the policyholder and beneficiary of the Insurance Contracts.

The salient terms of the Insurance Contracts are disclosed as follows:

we((RAE]) - RRFARREREH
EERARZRA -

RERA KR BIRFIRENT ¢

Contract 2
a2

Contract 1

&1

Life insured ASRE Liu Hongwei*
P47 4t

Sum insured (US$'000) REz£ % (F=1) 10,000
Premium mode RIBERZN T Single premium
BHRE

Single premium (US$'000) BHIRE (F%T) 3,077
Effective date Ed=R: 20 August 2015

—E—RFNA=+H

A senior management member
—EEREREEKE

5,000

Single premium

BEHIRE

946

14 August 2015
—T-RFEN\A+TTA

BREREEH - NMEAREEHER

In accordance with the Insurance Contracts, upon giving a written
notice, at anytime, the Company has a right to surrender the Insurance
Contracts and receive a CSV for each insurance contract as quoted by
the insurance company.

* Mr. Liu Hongwei is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company.

BA ARBBERRRZRRB AR
EREFVHENRBEOUEROE -

& BT E R R R ERFRIT
BRABE,
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Total single premium sum of approximately US$4,023,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB26,129,000) has been fully paid by the Company
at the inception of each of the Insurance Contracts. During the year,
a gross gain in respect of the Insurance Contracts recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to RMB1,527,000 (31 December
2016: Nil) as the difference between the CSV at 31 December 2016 and
at 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Insurance Contracts were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 28(g)).

The asset management plans at fair value at 31 December 2017
represented the consideration paid by Hunan Singyes Green Energy Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary within the Group, to acquire specific asset management
plans issued by GF XINDE Investment Management Co., Ltd. (EZ {572
EHIEEEERAAF).

The specific asset management plans are used to provide loans for the
construction of a 100 MW solar photovoltaic power station of Huizhou
Yongjing Renewable Energy Technology Co., Ltd. with the interest rate
being non-guaranteed. The investments principals are RMB32,000,000
with an estimated annual target return rate of 11%, which will be due
in 24 months since the payment of consideration. The fair value of the
specific asset management plans has been calculated by discounting the
contractual cash flows over the remaining contractual term of the specific
asset management plans at the risk free interest rate plus credit spread.
During the year, the fair value differences of RMB1,355,000 (2016: Nil)
in respect of the specific asset management plans were recognised in
other comprehensive income.

The balances as at 31 December 2017 represented wealth management
products issued by a licensed bank in Mainland China with determinable
payments and fixed maturity dates which are within 6 months. The
investments have coupon rates ranging from 0% to 4.0% per annum,
determining based on the performance of the underlying investment
portfolio and capped interest rates attached. Pursuant to the underlying
contracts, these investments are principal guaranteed upon the maturity
date.

19. o[ ERE (BB)

ZF—tFEFR PRERXAHERMERER AR

Bt

7

BEHIR B 42 S 58 474,023,000 % 7T (16
ERHARY26,129,0007T) B B A
RRREMHRBELREEE I -
AEER - BREE QR EM2EIK
=AU A 48R A R 1,527,00070
(ZZ—XRF+=ZA=+—8:8)"
DAARZZ—R"F+=ZA=+—H
kR—_T—tE+-A=1t—H@HE
ZAERE -

RZZT—+F+=ZRA=+—8 " RR
BHEEREARTARENRITE
Rz PER (HRE28(g) »

RZE—+FE+=A=+—HERAF
EIRAEERABEASEANBR
AEEEEERRRODERATCE
NRE UWESEREREBREE
BERARBITZHEAEEHEE -

BFEEEEETEARARESIMNT
XEFEREHR AR QB Z 100K
HREHIBHER - WERFFE -
‘ER® A AR 32,000,0007T * &
ATEFEZEEEREALLS  AXAR
BREA24AEASNEH FEEEERE
SR ATERABKANBRSRER
ERBRANENEESERBTEEE
BHEIZFBRENBERNFTRTH -
RAFE  BEEEBRITEZAF
EEZHEAR1,355000C(=F—7~
F @) EHEMERS WP RER o

RZB—+F+ZA=+—BH2&H#
R BEAMSERITRTZEME
o HAH A REE (SR EE A E E E
BRAEAR - ZEREZBENT
BFEO%EL0%  RIBHBEREAS
MRBARMEZ ERMEEE - R
BEBEH  ZERERIHAMNA
BEERERD
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20. INVENTORIES 20. 786
2017 2016
—ET—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF ARETF T
Raw materials R 71,641 69,964
Finished goods Em 40,162 112,636
111,803 182,600
21. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 21. BEER
2017 2016
—F—tF —TE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREFTT
Contract costs incurred plus EEESRMKANEE#ERET
recognised profits less recognised Bie S B R LA k18
and expected losses to date 6,558,127 5,118,525
Less: progress billings B IREE AR (5,581,948) (4,407,982)
976,179 710,543
Gross amount due from contract ElA RIRFRFRIEERE
customers 976,179 713,945
Gross amount due to contract A RRFRFIEEEE
customers - (3,402)
976,179 710,543
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. WS 5 RIE R FEW SR i

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETx ARET T

Trade receivables EWE 5508 3,384,921 3,122,110

Bills receivable FEMZE & 420,902 299,772
Less: impairment B RE (53,968) (48,817)

3,751,855 3,373,065
As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables contained retention money RZE—+tF+_A=Z=+—8" '
receivables of RMB450,821,000 (2016: RMB355,523,000). Retention WESHRERERKREREARK
money receivables are normally collected within one to five years after 450,821,000 L (ZE—RF: AR
the completion of the relevant construction work. 355,523,0007T) ° FEWE R & — A48

FERETIRTRE — 2R FRUKER

Credit terms granted to the Group’s major customers are as follows: BTAEEFZXPHEERNOT :
Construction contracts BESE

The majority of the Group’s revenues are generated from construction AEEHNKBOWRARBEREER @ I
contracts and are settled in accordance with the terms specified in EREEHFEZETRENEGRPFIEEN
the contracts governing the relevant construction work. The Group G EE - AEBTERTHEEETR
does not have a standardised and universal credit period granted to ERPRERF—MEER - @ARIRZET
its construction contract customers. The credit periods for individual BEFHEESREEME - WIIBER
construction contract customers are considered on a case-by-case BESRFT (EE) - W—HEEEH
basis and set out in the construction contracts, as appropriate. In the RETPAEER - AIASKE/IED AT
event that a project contract does not specify the credit period, the NF30HZE180HMZEH -

usual practice of the Group is to allow a credit period of 30 to 180
days.
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. [EYG B S RIE R R EE

Sale of materials

For the sale of materials, the Group normally grants credit periods
ranging from three to six months to major customers. Trade receivables
from small and new customers are normally expected to be settled
shortly after delivery of goods. No credit period is set by the Group for
small and new customers.

Sale of electricity

The Group’s trade receivables from the sale of electricity are mainly
receivables from the State Grid Corporation of China (“State Grid”).
Generally, trade receivables are usually settled within one month from
the date of billing.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

During the year, trade receivables net of impairment, of
RMB142,500,000 (2016: Nil) (note 42) were factored to the bank
without recourse, where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
had been transferred in the opinion of the directors. Since the Group
does not have continuing involvement in the transferred assets, the trade
receivables were therefore derecognised.

(#&)

MEHE

AMEHEMS  AEE—RETIE
EEFNF=Z2XEANEER - Ka/)
BRI RN E 5B EES
EEBINERZRINEER - NEE
AN B RFIEEFREEED

ENHE

AEBRBENHENREEHKAE
EREKRBEREEAR(ERER])
HIE - —RME - BUEBESFE—RA
EEREE—EARDIES -

REE Y ELEWE ZFRE BRI E
IR R R E A E B IR - BKRE
DHBRRE

FN - HBRBEEHERESHEAEA
R % 142,500,000 7L ( ZF —NF : &)
(FTsE42) MIRTTIERBRIRE  BF
REEMBENBRI D AR RBHRE
B - HRASENEFEESATE T
BE  BAWZFEKESHHBEELIHRE
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the billing date and net of impairment,
is as follows:

22. FEWEE SRIE R FEW =48

(#)

REREHR - RIRARE B RN E
EEFENEWE Z AR ERERRE

BT

2017 2016

—T—tf ZTREF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT

Within 3 months =EARN 2,016,727 1,630,871
3 to 6 months =& fEA 789,072 372,652
6 to 12 months AE+ZEA 591,733 1,057,272
1 to 2 years —EME 293,350 172,676
2 to 3 years ME=F 24,515 128,829
Over 3 years =FAE 36,458 10,765
3,751,855 3,373,065

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

follows:

FEWE ZFIRRERE 2 EBIT -

2017 2016

—F—tE —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT AREFTT

At 1 January n—A—H 48,817 27,427
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) B #EZR(EEE (FisE7) 5,151 21,390
53,968 48,817
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. [EYG B S RIE R R EE

(&)
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables is a T ERESFIBERERERIERE
provision for individually impaired trade receivables of RMB53,968,000 (MR EE 2 71) ARME 462,957,000
(2016: RMB48,817,000) with a carrying amount before provision of T(ZZF—RF: AR¥ 589,523,000
RMB462,957,000 (2016: RMB589,523,000). 70) B E B B RV E U E 5 FRIB R A

R¥53,968,000L(ZF—RF: AR
48 817,0007T) °

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that BRI ERERE 5 5KIE T EE B
were in financial difficulties or were in default interest or principal R ERAESI ARSI REMERELN
payment or both and only a portion of the receivables is expected to EFBR  BTEAEIRE D ZEE
be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit WE SFRIE - AEBWERZEEHRE
enhancements over these balances. BEAEAREEMEEINEEE o
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables that are KEBARRARENEKE 8 ME
not considered to be impaired is as follows: WEBRIRITAOT
2017 2016
—F—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTFT
Neither past due nor impaired R ARRE 2,831,337 2,049,619
Past due but not impaired: BB RBE
Less than 6 months past due BEARENEA 370,202 724,005
6 to 12 months past due BHAAE+—EA 89,121 51,051
Over 12 months past due BHAT—E AL E 52,206 7,684

3,342,866 2,832,359
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. FEYG B S RIE R B EE

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no further provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

The Group’s trade receivables include amounts due from the Group’s
associates of RMB354,398,000 (2016: RMB371,270,000), which
are repayable on credit terms similar to those offered to the major
customers of the Group (note 41).

The Group has pledged trade receivables of approximately
RMB12,551,000 (2016: RMB5,598,000) to secure bank and other
loans granted to the Group (note 28(e)).

(#)
RN AR RO R UHOR T B R
L AR B BB B -

B8 BB R IR E R YR IR T 8 % 408
VEFERM - AaNMEEERYTELRE
REE - BAWERDBR AT 2K
@ - RRBEERRBARZFERIE
HiE—FRERE AREYERZF
EHRE A ER R EMERENRE

L

i

AEEZEKESFHERIERRAEER
B2 A B RUIE A R ¥ 354,398,000 7T (=
T—N4F - AR¥371,270,0007T) * 1t
REURHTAEEZZRTPEERK
ZFEUGRIE (BiE4L) »

AEEBE KL AR 12,551,000
(ZE—7"F : AR¥5,598,0007T)
BB SRIEEAR TASEMNIRITR
HMEZR R (FE28(e)) o
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

23. AR « sTE R E MR

RECEIVABLES NI

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—XF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFx AREFT

Prepayments to subcontractors T Bk HEEERIR
and suppliers 243,031 135,386
Deposits HIsA 182,320 55,745
Tariff adjustment receivables* FEN B EHHEL > 137,271 122,009
Deferred listing fees of a subsidiary ~ MIBARIELE ETHE = 3,084
Other receivables H b R W FRIE 394,607 559,437
957,229 875,661
Less: impairment B B (4,578) (4,578)
952,651 871,083

The Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables include
amounts due from the Group’s associates of RMB126,392,000 (2016:

RMB97,980,000) (note 41).

The Group has pledged tariff adjustment receivables of approximately
RMB108,633,000 (2016: RMB103,293,000) to secure bank loans

granted to the Group (note 28(f)).

The balances included in other receivables of approximately
RMB197,482,000 (2016: RMB275,311,000), which are secured by
the rights on the annual return of the 153.8MW solar photovoltaic
power stations, bear interest at rates ranging from 4.35% to 5% per

annum and will fall due in 2018.

%, The Group’s tariff adjustment receivables from the sale of electricity are
mainly receivables from the State Grid. Tariff adjustment receivables
represented the government subsidies on renewable energy for ground
projects to be received from the State Grid based on the prevailing

government policies.

REBMBNATIE - 7] RE M EYRK
BEEREAREEREQNTRIBARE
126,392,000 L( =T — X< F: AR¥
97,980,000 7T) (£ 41) ©

AREBESEM A AR 108,633,000 7T
—T—RF : AR¥103,293,0007T)
VEERBERFIRER R T AEER

RITEFRZ R (M 28()

AFAEMERFENEHROARE
197,482,000 (=T — X< F: AR¥
275,311,0007T) * LA 153.8 KR HARE
UEFERSREREER BENTE
F435% E5% MM EF B HR=F
—\FE|H -

i AKERAENHENRKEBHRS
TERBBERER/NEKRIEA - B
EEMI R RERTRATER S R B
RERUER 2 AT B A AR E IH B K
FiFERE -
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24, HeRREFEYLRER
PLEDGED DEPOSITS Ed
2017 2016
—FT—tE —ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETF T
Cash and bank balances Be MIBITHEE 1,075,016 328,205
Time deposits TE BT R 614,429 735,231
1,689,445 1,063,436
Less: pledged time deposits for: B AT IEE BT HER

Bidding guarantee AR 11,742 34,528

Long term performance REBAOER
guarantee 14,650 17,352

Short term performance RHAB AR
guarantee 9,824 7,520
Bills payable (note 25) FERT % (Fi3E 25) 345,774 323,831
Letter of credit (note 28(2)) ERA®E (FI3E28(2)) 37,500 =
2019 Senior Notes “E-NFEEEE 67,532 =
487,022 383,231

Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 1,202,423 680,205




208

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE R AR Y

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

The Group’s cash and bank balances and time deposits were

24. RERREEEYLIRIEH

=™ (E)

REBR S RIRTTEER AR BFRUA

denominated in the following currencies: THERESIE
2017 2016
—T—tE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT

RMB equivalent amount: ANREEEDH

RMB AREE 1,499,192 943,919
Us$ E 138,882 30,293
HK$ BT 31,421 76,577
SG$ i 189 1,617
MOP RPITT 4,301 10,170
AUD SRIT 12,663 =
TOP el 537 =
uzs S#BIm RS 36 =
MYR WE R 2,224 860
1,689,445 1,063,436

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ARBTAER LB REMER - A
i - AR BK R MY SN B IR (R D S i
- SENRMEERRTE  AEREE
BEEREREIINEXBNRITHAR

BRBREMER -

RITRERE B IRITIFARA R 2 FEF
KR - EHIERZEREMN TR
E=BA - \RAEE 2R EHFRKM
E - WIRBERREHE R KRR -
RITHEBMEREREFANELHRET
RARLE - FERIFHIIRITH ©
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25. FERTE SRR IE R B R 4R
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the RIFEHR - ERNEEA B ETAS
reporting period, based on the invoice date or issuance date, where (RFBERME) ;T ERENE S HRIBERE
appropriate, is as follows: NEBORRITAT -
2017 2016
—2—+tE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBEFTT
Within 3 months =EAR 503,275 834,118
3 to 6 months =Z=EA 643,064 366,059
6 to 12 months AN gt P! 65,534 89,032
1to 2 years —EWEF 52,066 33,496
2 1o 3 years e = 10,707 9,641
Over 3 years =FAE 19,427 13,606
1,294,073 1,345,952
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ZERNESREMENRE AR EL
settled within one to six months. BEE 2 \1I)El HR&E -
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bills payable were secured RZE—+F+ZA=+—8B ' K
by the pledged deposits amounting to RMB345,774,000 (2016: SENENEBRBTDNUNSBEARK
RMB323,831,000) (note 24). 345,774,000 (ZF — R F : AR

323,831,000 7T ) &I 317 SRAEFE LR (BT
5£24) -
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

26. HtFEFHFRIAR BT FRIR

2017 2016

—F—t= ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFIT

Advances from customers TR IR 131,857 209,232
Tax and surcharge payables FES R TE K & 180,743 76,106
Accrued expenses FEER Y 23,181 22,550
Interest payables (note 43) FEFIE (FI3E43) 82,986 36,173
Other payables H b e 08 130,744 166,561
549,511 510,622

Other payables and accruals are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has received deposits in relation
to the sale of equity interests in the Target Subsidiaries aggregated to
RMB26,934,000 (2016: RMB22,434,000), the transaction has not yet
been fulfilled. Pursuant to the Agreements, the long stop date of the
transaction is 31 December 2017 or a later date as the parties agree in
writing, the written agreement has not been reached as the Group and
the Purchaser is in negotiation.

Hib A FOR M ER FOAREER - &
BNEREEEES

RZZE—+F+ZA=+—H K%
B3 E B EWE R R 2 R EZ
& AR 26,934,0007C (ZF— K
F 0 AR¥22434,0007T) © RSB HE
ERK - BEZE R RHZHERIL
AfAE T —t+tF+=-A=+—HFJ
HNEFEAHREZREEH  BAEE
BB ETERER - Bt R ERET R

22
AR ©
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

7. THEEM IR

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
—T—tF —E-RF
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRE ARETR ARBTT ARETT

Notes Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

b &E =1 BE BE
Swaps at fair value: ~ AF(EETE 218 ¢
Cross-currency RN EHEF 24z B

interest rate swaps (a) - (7,840) 22,961 -

Interest rate swaps %4 B (b) - = = -

Currency swaps Bl (c) - (26,165) - -

= (34,005) 22,961 -

Derivative financial instruments are not held for trading purpose
and represent fair value losses on cross-currency interest rate swap
contracts and currency swap contracts as at 31 December 2017.

Notes:

(a) The Group uses cross-currency interest rate swaps to manage its
currency and interest risks. On 28 January 2016 and 2 November 2016,
the Group entered into cross-currency interest rate swap contracts with
banks, covering a period from 19 February 2016 to 13 August 2018. The
cross-currency interest rate swap contracts entitle the Group to receive
interest at floating rates on an aggregate notional principal of US$100
million and to pay interest at fixed rates on an aggregate notional principal
of RMB669 million simultaneously. The Group agreed with the banks to
swap the interest difference between fixed rate and floating rate, as well
as the currency difference between US$ and RMB, respectively, on the
respective deemed notional principal amounts on a three-month basis.
During the year, the notional principals of US$20 million and RMB135.6
million in cross-currency interest rate swap contracts have been expired.

RZE—+F+ZA=+—8 %%
RTAYHHFEEMREAREINEE
MEEMEHREERRA NN TE
BB -

BAE

(@) AEBEMAXNEEMNRIHERE
ERRAERAR R_F—XRF—H
—+NBRZZE-RE+—AZH"
AREBRIRITRI XX EHH K2 1)
BH) BHBMR-ZE—RFE_ATAN
FE_Z-N\FNAA+=A - REX
XEBMNERRHAH AEBEE#ER
FENHIE 345 3% AN £ 485H100,000,000
ETWEAME - B REE N XA A
F A& AR 669,000,000 7T X f
ME - MEBIEREASRIE=EA
S E - ANEEERITIHEIEE
TEN R EIZIF B AR B ZHE - A
RETEARBHEKERE - F1-
% & 78 ©£20,000,000 7T & A R #&
135,600,000 7T #) 22 X & ¥ F| & = Hi
BHERER °
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk. On
30 June 2015, the Group entered into interest rate swap contracts with
the bank, covering periods from 30 June 2015 to 29 June 2018. The
interest rate swap contracts entitle the Group to receive interest at floating
rate on an aggregate notional principal of US$5 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB33 million) and to pay interest at fixed rate on the
same notional principal amount simultaneously. The Group agreed with
the bank to swap the interest difference between fixed rate and floating
rate, on the deemed notional principal amount on a three-month basis.
As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the interest rate swaps was
estimated to be zero.

The Group uses currency swaps to manage its currency risks. On 10
March 2017 and 13 March 2017, the Group entered into currency swap
contracts with the banks, covering a period from 14 March 2017 to 15
February 2019. The currency swap contracts entitle the Group to receive
interest at fixed rates on an aggregate notional principal of US$60 million
and to pay interest at fixed rates on an aggregate notional principal of
RMB413.85 million simultaneously. The Group agreed with the banks to
swap the currency difference between US$ and RMB, on the respective
deemed notional principal amounts on a six-month basis.

27. THEEMTI AR (B)

AEBMNBA ERGERAFER
R R_T—AFXA=1H &%
EERITEI LM EBEBAEL - AHOH
B_ET—RAFERNAZFHE-_Z—N
FRAZTAB - REFRBEHE
4 REBERRIDFERERAN
#8565 5,000,000 % 7T (FEE R A
IR 33,000,000 7T ) Y BRAIS. + Rl B§
REEMEGRZR—EELSBEIM
FE - RZBEERAEEIR=HA
EEHE  AEERRITHERRE
ERMEEIRZEFEOFSEHE - B
ZE—+tF+ZA=1+—8 " MxE
HNAFEGSHAE -

AEBNBERRHERAERER
R R_ZE—+F=ZA+HK=ZF
—+tF=ZA+=H " AEEERT
AUEBKHEBAEH  AHBAZT
—tEF=ZA+HBE-_T—hF=
A+HEA - REEEEBHELH K
CEARZEATHNEREEASH
#60,000,000% 7T Y B #| B - [
RRETHEREERLASHEARE
413,850,000 7T % 13 ¥l & o Bt ax R 1F
EEACHERANEARZESE A%
EERITHERRETHEARBHE
BEEZEE o
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. M BERITREMER
LOANS
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
—F—tE+=A=1+-H AN e e =
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BEIRFIE (%) B HARS ARE  ERAE%) RS ARE
Current i)
Revolving loans ERER
— secured - BHH Hong Kong
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“HIBOR")
&E HIBOR
RITRE BRI
il On demand RERS On demand
+3~3.5 BEX 37,682 +3~3.5 REX 40,323
~ Unsecured g London
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“LIBOR")
LE! LIBOR
SRITRE TRBRT
il On demand RERS On demand
+3.25 REX 3,239 +3.25 REX 3,466

213
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

31 December 2017

28. Mt BERITRAMERR (B)

31 December 2016

—F—tE+ZA=1+-H —ERE+ZA=T-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BEBRFIE (%) I RARS ARE  BERAE%) RS ARE
Bank loans RITER
- secured -BER LIBOR+
LIBOR+1.5~3.75 2018 222,918 15~3.75 2017 314,150
fRBERIT GEGh
GESIY RERFE
+1.5~3.75 +1.5~3.75
HIBOR+0.95~4 2018 209,795 HIBOR+0.95~4 2017 50,109
FERTRERS BRRITAZRE
+0.95~4 +0.95~4
4.35~6.9 2018 486,109 435~6.9 2017 598,910
Bank loans RITER
- unsecured S Ziigid 2.60 2018 46,393 435 2017 70,000
Other loans EHER
- secured - BER 3.92 2018 30,000 392 2017 15,000
- secured - B - - = 941 2017 31,579
- secured - BiEA - - = 9.55 2017 24,235
— secured - BHEAD 7.48 2018 48,152 = = =
- secured? - BEH 3.69~3.74 2018 180,335 - - -
Other loans HiER
~ unsecured® - BERO 9.07 2018 565 9.07 2017 528

1,265,188

1,148,300
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. MIBMITRAMERR (E)
LOANS (Continued)
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
—F—tf+-A=1+-H —EE+ZA=T-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BEIRFIE (%) B HARS ARE  ERAE%) RS ARE
Non-current E ik ]
Bank loans RITER
—secured -BER LIBOR+
LIBOR+1.5~3.75 2019-2022 9,888 15~3.75 2018-2022 474,769
fRBERIT fRBRTT
FI%4R S RERS
+1.5~3.75 +1.5~3.75
HIBOR+0.95~3 2019-2020 84,930 HIBOR+0.95~3 2018-2020 269,925
ERRT BRRT
GEZ) BES:)
+0.95~3 +0.95~3
5.15~6.47 2019-2029 1,166,511 5.15~5.93 2018-2029 761,817
Other loans HER
- secured FHEHR 3.92 2019 15,000 392 2018-2019 45,000
- secured BHE - - = 941 2018 54,668
- secured B - - - 9.55 2018-2023 146,087
- secured™” BHEFO 7.48 2019-2023 145,365 - - -
Other loans HER
- unsecured® - EERO 9.07 2019-2034 17,228 9.07 2018-2034 17,704

1,438,922 1,769,970

2,704,110 2,918,270
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

(1) It represented the other loan borrowed from an independent
third party leasing company by Yangjiang Huayu, a subsidiary
of the Group, by way of photovoltaic equipments sale-leaseback
arrangement, with the principal of RMB200,000,000 in 2017,
which bears interest at an effective rate of 7.48% per annum
with quaterly instalment payments up to the maturity date on 15
July 2023. Yangjiang Huayu sets the right on the annual return
of its solar photovoltaic power station and itself equity interests

as the security to the other loan in substance.

(2) It represented the other loan borrowed from the Bank by
Hunan Singyes, a subsidiary of the Group, by way of forfeiting
the letter of credit which was secured by pledged deposits of
RMB37,500,000 (note 24). The aggregate carrying amount of
the bank loans recognised due to the factored letter of credit was

RMB180,355,000.

(3)  On 7 November 2014, Singyes Green Investment (HK) Company
Limited (“Singyes Green Investment”) entered into a revenue
distribution agreement regarding the Relevant Asset, which
is one of the assets held by Hunan Singyes, a subsidiary of
the Group, with a counterparty, whereby the counterparty
prepaid RMB19,000,000 to the Group to exchange the right
on annual return of the Relevant Asset for each fiscal year
(the “Annual Return”) for twenty years. The Annual Return
is the annual electricity revenue on the Relevant Asset minus
related PRC tax. If in any fiscal year the Annual Return is less
than RMB2,000,000 (the “Minimum Return”), the Group shall
pay the counterparty the Minimum Return. During the year,

RMB2,004,000 was paid to the counterparty.

28. MR RITREMBER (B)

HigAEERB ARG IETH
BB = HAERRIAN KRR
EREETHIARAEEZ At
ERR-T—tFE2REAA
R # 200,000,000 7T © & B F &
MEMRTA8% B - ZERE
PEEEFHANR  RZT==
FLATHEAIH - BIEFE
BAE KB R B2 FE R
WEREE HRERREMER -

HIEARE BN BB EER
SRITLAR IS AR 3 (LA IR A
% 37,500,000 7T (K 5E 24) 13K
RzAREEZHMER - AR
BiERABEERBRTERZERE
wFE A AR 180,355,000 7T °

R-T—WFE+—A+H @
HERE(EB)ARAR ([HE
BEREDBR—FREFHHRK
BEAB R E ([HEEEE]
ABAEENBARAREXESE
WEE) I — DA DE R
Bt ZEFHARAAEEBEMNA
R % 19,000,000 7T * BA 3 2 48
BEER =+ F M S @M BF
ERFERR(FERR]) 2%
e FERRAHEBEENTFE
BN AR EFIE -
1] B BUF 2 /9 F 2 B SRR A
FR#& 2,000,000 7T ([ K EIHR ]) -
AIREBAMEF A RED
3 - FR - AR 2,004,0007C02
SFHFR o
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

28. M BMITRAMBER ()

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
+=-A=+—H +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: AR TR EMERE 2 RITER

Within one year —FR 1,006,136 1,076,958
In the second year FF 202,617 786,936

In the third to fifth F=FEFNF
years, inclusive (BIEERMT) 380,651 184,144
Beyond five years HEL 678,061 535,431
2,267,465 2,583,469

Other loans repayable: RTPIREER 2 EMERK -

Within one year —FR 259,052 71,342
In the second year E_F 42,128 110,606

In the third to fifth F=FEERF
years, inclusive (BiEERMTE) 94,224 108,620
Beyond five years REL L 41,241 44,233
436,645 334,801
2,704,110 2,918,270

As at 31 December 2017, except for those bank loans with interest
rates linked with the HIBOR and LIBOR which are denominated in
HK$ and USS$, totalling RMB332,407,000 and RMB236,045,000,
respectively, all bank and other loans are denominated in RMB.

RZZ—+F+ZA=+—08 " BRH=E
HEBRITAXFKERBBHRITAE
HEHBHORITER (D AIEHLARKE
332,407,0007t K A E # 236,045,000
7C) ABTTRETTAHESN - FRARITR
HiEFIEIAAREHE -
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by:

(a)

mortgages over the Group’s buildings with an aggregate carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB564,376,000 (31 December 2016: RMB583,090,000) (note
13(a));

mortgages over the Group’s solar photovoltaic power stations and
their respective rights on the annual return thereof, which had
an aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting period
of approximately RMB1,388,492,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,325,534,000) (note 13(b));

the rights on the annual return of the Relevant Asset with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB28,605,000 at the end of
the reporting period (31 December 2016: RMB29,903,000) (note
13(d));

mortgages over the Group’s prepaid land lease payments,
which had a carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period of approximately RMB58,441,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB59,791,000) (note 15);

the pledge of certain of the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately RMB12,551,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB5,598,000) (note 22);

the pledge of certain of the Group’s tariff adjustment receivables
of approximately RMB108,633,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB103,293,000) (note 23);

28. MR RITREMBER (B)

REEETRITEEMERBATEIER
e

(a) AEEEFHIKRE RBREHKR
BREEA R K AR 564,376,000
T(ZE—R"F+=ZRA=+—8":
A E #583,090,0007t ) ( Mf 5
13(a))

(b) AEBEBRBGEXKEMRES
EEBZFERRENZIZS -
RBEEHAREDMEATOAR
#:1,388,492,0007t( = & — X
F+-_A=+—"H: AR¥
1,325,534,000 7T) (MI7E 13(b)) :

© RBEEHAREEEHNARE
28,605,000 T M & EFEE
HBiE(ZZ—RNF+ZA=1+—
B : A K% 29,903,000t (K&
13(d)) :

d) AEEBEMSTHAEFENE
B RRESAREAEOARE
58,441,000 t(ZE—~F+=A
=+—H: AR¥59,791,0007T)
(BtzE15)) :

() AEEEMMEKESRED
AR ¥12551,0007 (=& — 7~
E+-_A=+—"H: AR¥
5,598,000 7t ) (FI7E 22)

(h AEEEIREEE /L ERHRIE
# A R #108,633,0007t( = =
—NE+=-A=1+—H: ARE#
103,293,000 70 ) (K 23)
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. MBRITREMER (&)

LOANS (Continued)

(g) the pledge of the Insurance Contracts with fair value of (g)
approximately RMB22,382,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB22,316,000) (note 19); and

(h)  the pledge of equity interests in the following subsidiaries of the (h)
Group:
97.45% equity interests in Xinjiang Singyes;
ii. 97.45% equity interests in Wuwei Dongrun;

iii.  97.45% equity interests in Suixi Xinye;

iv. 99.5% equity interests in Yangjiang Huayu;

V. 99.5% equity interests in Yangjiang Huazhi;

R A FEH AR 22,382,000
T(ZE—R"F+ZA=+—8":
AR #22316,0007C) RK A
B (FEE19) &

REBAATHBRRNRESR
il

Fim 2R 97.45% WAE
i REGEA97.45% ARAE

i, BOEIREMI7.45% X HE ¢
P54

iv.  FRITETHY99.5% BHE o

V. P& T EEE #Y 99.5% A o

In addition, the Company’s directors have guaranteed certain of the oM RAREBHAEESR TRITR
Group’s bank and other loans for nil consideration, details of which are HEmEFEERBER  FHEOT (M
as follows (note 41(b)): F41(b)) :

() the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei, has guaranteed () ARRZEFBRNAHEEEERE

the Group’s bank and other loans of RMB530,965,000 (31
December 2016: RMB475,568,000);

(1) the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei and the Company’s (n
former director, Sun Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s
bank loans of RMB286,972,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB290,000,000);

SERERTREMBMERARE
530,965,000 C(ZFE—RF+=
B=+—8: AR# 475 568,000
JC)

RATBEFHA B LERARDT
AESRSB T ERARERAS
B R 17 B 5% A R % 286,972,000
et = = -— [ :
AR 290,000,0007T)
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

(I) the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Xie
Wen, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of
RMB323,517,000 (31 December 2016: RMB114,710,000);

(IV) the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Xie Wen
and the Company’s former director Mr. Sun Jinli have jointly
guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of RMB50,000,000 (31

December 2016: RMB50,000,000);

(V) the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei and his spouse,
Ms. Li Wei, the Company’s former director Mr. Sun Jinli and
his spouse, Ms. Wang Yanfang, have jointly guaranteed the
Group’s bank loans of RMB87,500,000 (31 December 2016:

RMB87,500,000);

(V) the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei and the Company’s
former director Mr. Sun Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s
bank loans of HK$377,579,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB315,622,000) (31 December 2016: HK$382,775,000,

equivalent to approximately RMB342,396,000); and

(VIl) the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei and the Company’s
former director Mr. Sun Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the
Group’s bank loans of US$994,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB6,495,000) (31 December 2016: US$2,909,000,

equivalent to approximately RMB20,177,000).

28. MR RITREMBER (B)

(1

(v

ARRERAMHELEERFX
FELRERAEBRBITER
A R #323517,00070( = &
—RNE+ZA=+—8: AR%
114,710,0007%) :

RRABERRAAMHEE - FE
REARRNEEFRERELER
FREREEEHRITERARE
50,000,000t (ZZE —RF+=
R=+—8: AR 50,000,000
JT)

RAREREA L ERERS
FBETUREARBNESZRS
BEERERBIT® S 2+ H#
RERAEERTERARE
87,500,000 TL( — T —NFE+ =
A=+—8: AR% 87,500,000

JT)

RARERFAHARERART
AMEFHESEAERERAEE
R 17 B 377,579,000 T ( 48
g M4 A R ¥315,622,0007T )
(SHENT - = H =l ==
382,775,000 T (HER AR
#342,396,00070) ¢ &

RATEFHA B LERARDT
AZEERSERERERAEH
$R1TE 7 994,000 % 7T (HAE R L
AER#E6,495,000 ) (ZT—7~ 45
+=-A=+—8 : 2,909,000t
(FHERHARE20,177,0007T) °
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29. TR EH

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ih=a AREFR ARETTT
Convertible bonds, AMRES - BEIHS

liability component: (a) 80,819 703,989

Fair value of embedded BRAXITETENATFE
derivatives (b) - 15,227
80,819 719,216

On 8 August 2014, the Company issued 930 units of 5% convertible
bonds in the denomination of RMB1,000,000 each due 8 August
2019 (the “2019 Convertible Bonds”) with a nominal value of
RMB930,000,000. The Company repurchased 6 units of these
convertible bonds during the year ended 31 December 2015 and 108
units during the year, respectively, and redeemed 720 units during the
year. As at 31 December 2017, 96 units of those convertible bonds

RZZ—HWENANB  ARBETR

—WFNANBEHEERARKE
930,000,000 7T #9307 B E A A R
1,000,000 7T5% Al R E 5 ([ =&
—NFAHRBIES]) - ARADRIRE
ET-RFT_A=T—RHIFER
Bl6 ) RN AFEHERE 1081 %% Al ik

remained. MREH - WARFEEE 7201 o
T—+F+ZA=+—8  ZETHRK
EHFIBRI6 1 ©

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the subscription agreement @TJ{“ HEA-T—MFE N\ A N\BRER

dated 8 August 2014, the conversion price of the 2019 Convertible
Bonds was adjusted from HK$15.72 to HK$15.41 during the year due
to the cash dividends paid.

The salient terms and conditions of the 2019 Convertible Bonds are as

follows:

(i) Interest rate

The Company shall pay interest on the 2019 Convertible Bonds
at 5.0% per annum.

R R AR ARRRREES
g*ti‘f’_ﬁ]:ﬂ'*ﬁﬂ:ﬁgiﬁfﬁ
SRE T NFABRRESFBR
B8 15.72 B TRE R 1541 87T °

ZE-NF AR ES A E B R R G
T

(i) #F=E

AR RBIEGF5.0% AR —
T-NEAMBREFINFE
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Conversion price

The 2019 Convertible Bonds will be convertible into the
Company’s ordinary shares at the initial conversion price
of HK$16.11 per share, subject to adjustments. Amongst
others, consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital distribution, rights
issues of shares or options over shares, rights issues of other
securities, issues at less than the current market price, other
issues at less than the current market price, modification of
rights of conversion, other offers to shareholders, change of
control and other usual adjustment events. The conversion price
may not be reduced so that the conversion shares would fall to
be issued at a discount to their par value.

Maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased and
cancelled, the Company will redeem each of the 2019
Convertible Bonds at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB
principal amount on 8 August 2019.

29. ikiRfES ()

(i)

(iii)

BiRfE

“E-NFUBREREFSAZED
HREREF 161187 (7] T3
BE)EMAERRNR LR - Hin
BAR (KPR Bhas I
AABFHOE  BNHFEHER
£ BADIK - D A
R - BITHMES - KK
RERMEZET  ERERHE
MEAETT - EETERE - Ak
RETHEMBE  ZEHEEHR
HMEHAEEMRETHE -
HRETSHREESERERN
S E{E TR ERIEST o

AR

BRIFERZAER - 8RB E
Rt BRIAQRAER -F
—NEFENANBERRAREERS
BNEEXTEESNH —T—N
FrABRES
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29. TR A ()
(iv) FAEEEZRED

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
(iv) Redemption at the option of the Company

The Company may: ARATA] :

(1)

Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’
notice to the bondholders, at any time after 8 August 2017
but not less than 14 days prior to the maturity date redeem
the bonds in whole but not in part at a redemption price
at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB principal amount
plus accrued and unpaid interest to such date; provided
that no such redemption may be made unless the closing
price of the shares (translated into RMB at the RMB:HK$
fixed rate as set out in the terms and conditions of the
2019 convertible bonds) for 20 out of 30 consecutive
trading days ending on a date which is no more than
three stock exchange business days immediately prior to
the date upon which notice of such redemption is given,
was at least 130% of the conversion price then in effect
(translated into RMB at the RMB:HK$ fixed rate as set
out in the terms and conditions of the 2019 convertible

bonds); or

Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 90 days’
notice to the bondholders and the Trustee (which notice
will be irrevocable), the Company may at any time redeem
all, but not some only, of the bonds for the time being
outstanding at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to
such date provided that prior to the date of such notice
at least 90% in RMB principal amount of the bonds
originally issued have already been converted, redeemed
or purchased and cancelled.

(1)

R-ZE—tFNANRKE
NERBIH A AT 14 B AR
BE - RESHEAZLT
LIR30 BETEBBE60 HEY
BA RARKEASENE
EETIN EBEZ A EAR
NHMEREEE - B 2H
BIEROES  ERIFEE
BRLBEEMNE B AT ={E
BREERAZBINES
30ME% % B 20 HH &kt
WHE (R T —hFrk
BB R MR AR
BRABETHEEEXBRER
ARB) 2L REHERSE
BEE-_ZT—HEFABRRE
TEFF GRS AR FTELELE A
RERBTMERAE S A
R¥)#130% - BRITE
HEITHEE ;2

AEFFEARZEARN
NAORI0BE BB
BB A (Rz B A SR )
% ARBRAREAS
HHEEXTINEEEZA
FESTARITEVFE - BERSRE M
2ER(EIFERD) ERKR
BRES - ERZBAE S
FIRETEFNAREARS
BELO%ACEH - &
LB E Mt
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Redemption at the option of the holders

The Company will, at the option of the holder of any 2019
Convertible Bonds, redeem all or some only of such holder’s
2019 Convertible Bonds on 8 August 2017 at the US Dollar
equivalent of the RMB principal amount.

Redemption of delisting or change of control

Following the occurrence of a change of control (means when
Mr. Liu Hongwei ceases for any reason to be the majority
shareholder of the Company or any other events lead to the
significant change of the ownership structure of the Company,
“Change of Control”) or delisting of the Company (including
suspension of trading of the Shares on the stock exchange for a
period equal to or more than 20 consecutive trading days) (the
“Relevant Event”), the holder will have the right to require the
Company to redeem all, or but not some only, of such holder’s
2019 Convertible Bonds at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date
fixed for redemption.

The fair value of the 2019 Convertible Bonds was determined by an

independent qualified valuer based on the binomial option pricing

model. The carrying amount of the liability component on initial

recognition was measured at the proceeds of the 2019 Convertible

Bonds (net of transaction cost) minus the fair value of the conversion
rights of the 2019 Convertible Bonds.

29. iR fES (8)

() FRAZEED

ARBHHRER B — N F A
REFBAEANER R-F
—tENANBRAREEEHE
MEEXTERZEEANEZE
HERD — T NFRBRRES

(vi) BRARSIEGIHEE SR AEE

NN R B A PR R B (45 BIAL
HEERTARATHARRAA]
FTERFAEBRRAIEA LR
BB BN EREME)
(H HlIRESB) |) BRI (B IEAR (D
RBEHZGAEEEEESNK
HBiREE20EZ5R) ([HBEE
"% FEAEEEZRAERD
BIRARBASENSEZITMN
FEEETED B SO ERT R
FE - EEZHBEANZE (BF
Bo) T NEFBmRES -

T NFRABRBEFNAFETIHE
TAERMGEMRE _AXEEER
BETE - TR HER R B B O MAREE
TR —F— hﬁ—f?ﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%@?x
(FRR R BRA) BE T~ NEF R
(EEaNiOER B L\SPTEEJFE °
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(a) Liability component

29. iR fES (8)

() BfaEs

—T—tEER PEAEABERITERERAR 225

2017 2016

—F—tF ZTE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBFT

Liability component at 1 January A— A —HB® & EZBD 703,989 634,017
Effective interest recognised FAERHERHNE (15Ee)

for the year (note 6) 73,197 116,299
Loss on repurchase of bonds  EBE{ESEE (M:E6)

(note 6) 22,460 =
Loss on redemption of bonds  BEEESEE (M 6)

(note 6) 137,920 -
Interest payable during the year F RFE LS (28,747) (46,327)
Repurchase of convertible bonds 8 Bl & % (108,000) -
Redemption of convertible bonds & [E]{& % (720,000) -
As at 31 December Bn+—-—A=+—H 80,819 703,989

(b) Conversion rights (b) HEIRME
2017 2016
—T—tF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Fair value of conversion rights 8 — B —HAAFE
at 1 January 15,227 63,552
Less: fair value changes of B IR A EE
conversion rights (15,227) (48,325)
Fair value of conversion rights R+ —-A=+—HMNQFE
at 31 December - 15,227
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
(b) Conversion rights (Continued)

The fair value change of the conversion rights for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was RMB15,227,000 (2016:
RMB48,325,000), which was recognised in profit or loss and
disclosed separately. The related interest expense of the liability
component of the 2019 Convertible Bonds for the year amounted
to RMB233,577,000 (2016: RMB116,299,000), including loss
on repurchase and redemption of bonds and effective interest
recognised which is calculated by using the effective interest
method with an effective interest rate of 17.79% per annum.

30. SENIOR NOTES

29. ikiRfES ()

(b) EiRE(E)

HE-T—tF+=-A=+—H
EFEERENRATFTEEZD R
AR 81522700075 ( = F — X
. ANR#483250007) ¢ #%
SRENEEPERARBEIKE -
RFEE-ZT—NFARRESFE
EEHBEAT SR AARK
233,577,0007c (ZF—R4F : A
FR#116,299,0007T) * B & D
RELEHFHEBUREERL
BERFE 2B HERERF
FENEBRERE1779% 51 HE -

30. BEER

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BT ARETR ARBTFT

2017 Senior Notes Tt FEBEER (a) = 554,211
2018 HKD Senior Notes —E-N\FETELRE (b) 208,221 216,792
2018 USD Senior Notes —E-N\FETELRE (c) 1,030,807 —
2019 Senior Notes “E-NFEEEE (d) 1,677,498 =

2,916,526 771,003
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)
(@) 2017 Senior Notes

On 21 November 2014, the Company issued 7.875% senior
notes with an aggregate nominal value of RMB560,000,000
(the “2017 Senior Notes”) at face value. The net proceeds,
after deducting the issuance costs, amounted to approximately
RMBb542,327,000, the effective interest rate is approximately
9.33% per annum after the adjustment for transaction costs.
The 2017 Senior Notes matured on 21 November 2017 and was
listed on the HKSE before maturity (stock code: 85704).

The 2017 Senior Notes recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position are calculated as follows:

(a)

30. BEERE (E)

“EB—tEFEEERRE

RZE—mMFE+—A=+—H"
RAREEESHTAAEARE
560,000,0007C #)7.875% & 4
ZR(ZT—+FEBEERE] -
HBRABRE TR AR - FTE R
HF N A AR 542,327,000
T MR GMAEL AREER
FERRAEMHI33% c —TE—+HF
BREEN _ZEZ—+E+—A8
—+—HB3H8 wEEEZ A
EREBE AT L (BHRR
85704) °

REABBRARTRERH =T
— L ERBBIEA TR

=)

2017 2016
—T—tE —E—XF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEREE 554,211 548,200
Effective interest recognised FRERHERFE
during the year (note 6) (f37E6) 45,056 50,111
Interest payable during the year 4F R ERHFIE (39,267) (44,100)
Principal repaid during the year FR{EEA S (560,000) -
Carrying amount W+ A=+—BZKaEE
at 31 December - 554,211
Fair value of the 2017 —E+FEERBNATFE
Senior Notes* - 536,833
2 The fair value of the 2017 Senior Notes was determined based on 3 T tFEEEENATE

the price quoted on the HKSE on 31 December 2016.

TERBEBHIAN _—F X
FHZA=+—BHHREETE -
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(b) 2018 HKD Senior Notes

On 30 January 2015, the Company issued 7.75% senior notes
with an aggregate nominal value of HK$250,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB197,150,000) at face value, which will
mature in February 2018 (the “2018 HKD Senior Notes”). The
2018 HKD Senior Notes will only be offered outside the United
States in compliance with Regulation S under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. None of the 2018 HKD
Senior Notes will be offered to the public in Hong Kong and none
of the 2018 HKD Senior Notes will be placed to any connected
persons of the Company. The net proceeds, after deducting the
issuance costs, amounted to approximately RMB182,492,000.

The major terms and conditions of the 2018 HKD Senior Notes

are as follows:

(i) Redemption at the option of the Company

Upon giving not less than 30 days’ nor more than 60 days’
notice to the holder, at any time, the Company may at
its option redeem the notes at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the principal amount plus the applicable
premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to the redemption date. The applicable premium is the
greater of (1) 1.0% of the principal amount and (2) the
excess of (A) the present value at such redemption date of
100% of the principal amount, plus all required remaining
scheduled interest payments due on the 2018 HKD Senior
Notes through the maturity date (but excluding accrued
and unpaid interest to the redemption date), computed
using a discount rate equal to 2%, over (B) the principal
amount on the redemption date.

30. BRERE (E)

(b)

“E-\FERTEARR

RZZ—HAFE—A=1+A AR
REEEBERITR _ZE—N\F_A
B H 7K € 48 58 /5 250,000,000 7
JL(FE R # AR # 197,150,000
LM 7.75% BREER(T=ZT—N
FHETBEZR]) - —T—N\F
BLTEAZEEEER-—N==
FEEBHETSHEMI(EERT)
NEBIBINEE - —T— \F38
TEAZEHTERAETEIRA
T#E BT \FETEL
ZRHTERAQRBEEATER
& BRBEAEITR AR - 715
SIBFFE ALK AR 182,492,000
ik

“E-N\FATBERBENIE
RSB AR -

() FAFEEEE

ARABAIRARFEAZELED
LP30 B kA iEE60 B H)
BAR - BERERFRERA
©EA100% i EE =T H
HE AR B B EZ B Rt
AMFE(0E) O EEE
BORE - @RRERAT
BEFHESE  (DAE
FE1.0% : K (2)(A)100%
AEBERZERRNR
B iE—ZT—\FETE
SERBENEIH B ARG 2R
EXHPAA DA S (B
NEERED BRI
R (RER 2% KR =X
FHE)HBEB) ER A A
TEOED
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(b) 2018 HKD Senior Notes (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Redemption at the option of the Company (Continued)

Upon giving not less than 30 days’ nor more than 60
days’ notice to the holder, at any time, the Company may
at its option redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2018 HKD Senior Notes with the net cash
proceeds of one or more sales of common stock of the
Company in one or more equity offerings at a redemption
price of 107.75% of the principal amount of the 2018
HKD Senior Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, to (but not including) the redemption date; provided
that at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the
Notes remains outstanding after each such redemption
and any such redemption takes place within 60 days after
the closing of the related equity offering.

Repurchase of the 2018 HKD Senior Notes upon a
Change of Control

Not later than 30 days following a Change of Control, the
Company will make an offer to purchase all outstanding
2018 HKD Senior Notes (“2018 HKD Senior Notes
Change of Control Offer”) at a purchase price equal to
101% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the 2018
HKD Senior Notes Change of Control Offer payment date.

30. BEERE (E)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

“E-N\FETBERR

(%)

AR AR (F)

ARBAIRARFEAZELT
D30 B KB 60 B
BAEK BBREBEER_F
—NFETEERENAS
B 107.75% 10 L& = &
BEH(ETBEZBE)N
JEEt R AMB(IE) 2
B8 - A—RZ RIS
ER—REZRBEEERR
AEBRNAEFARS
PR BE T \EB
TTERAEZBEASRENR
%35% : R EXIEREK
BAZBASHBAELE
65% 1 REE - BEMIE
AR L ANE R E
TERK 18 60 B NH#ETT o

TR BB =/
EETELEL

RN RERE G E R
BAMEEEHN(=F
—N\FRETBERBRIESE
BEEL )  RENEALE
101% M L& E= g g
EXNHRA (T REZA)
FEETARNMF B (a0F) HiE
BfE BEMEREERE=ZT
—NFETBERE -



230

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R iR

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(b) 2018 HKD Senior Notes (Continued)

As the estimated fair value of the early redemption right is
insignificant at initial recognition, the embedded derivative
is not separately accounted for. The effective interest rate is
approximately 11.06% per annum after the adjustment for
transaction costs.

The 2018 HKD Senior Notes recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are calculated as follows:

30. BRERE (E)

(b)

“E-N\FETBERR

(%)

FR A 12 U (2] 4 72 ) 46 B SR Iy Y
DN EMFRS - WIRARITE
TAWEEBAR - ERHZFHK
REHARERE  BRANENHAE
F11.06% °

REAMBRARRTERN -F
—NFETBEZBZUATHA

| A

2017 2016
—F—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Carrying amount at 1 January R —A—HZBRHEE 216,792 198,492
Effective interest recognised FRERHERFE
during the year (note 6) (fI7E6) 22,623 21,708
Interest payable during the year =R ELHF & (16,787) (16,581)
Exchange realignment PE 3% (14,407) 13,173
Carrying amount at W+ A=+—BZKHEE
31 December 208,221 216,792
Fair value of the 2018 HKD —E- N\FELEEEEN
Senior Notes * NEE* 213,656 226,383
& The fair value of the 2018 HKD Senior Notes has been calculated & —E-N\FBTELEENA

by discounting the contractual cash flows over the remaining
contractual term of the 2018 HKD Senior Notes at the risk-free
interest rate plus credit spread and liquidity spread.

FEABHENRERERE
REBFEMEEREZ RSN
BER_FT-N\FELTELR
EANFISRE NBRANRAE -
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(c)

2018 USD Senior Notes

On 11 October 2017, the Company issued 6.75% senior notes
with an aggregate nominal value of US$160,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,053,070,000) at face value, which will
mature in October 2018 (the “2018 USD Senior Notes”). The
2018 USD Senior Notes will only be offered outside the United
States in compliance with Regulation S under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Regulation S”). The
2018 USD Senior Notes initially were sold to a small number of
financial institutions, none of which was offered to the public
in Hong Kong or to any connected persons of the Company,
and they have been listed on the HKSE (stock code:5292). The
net proceeds, after deducting the issuance costs, amounted to
approximately RMB1,039,118,000.

The major terms and conditions of the 2018 USD Senior Notes

are as follows:

Not later than 30 days following a change of control (means
when Mr. Liu Hongwei ceases for any reason to be the majority
shareholder of the Company or any other events lead to the
significant change of the ownership structure of the Company,
“Change of Control”), the Company will make an offer to
purchase all outstanding 2018 USD Senior Notes (“2018 USD
Senior Notes Change of Control Offer”) at a purchase price
equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued
and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the 2018 USD
Senior Notes Change of Control Offer payment date.

The effective interest rate is approximately 8.32% per annum
after the adjustment for transaction costs.

30. BEERE (E)

(c)

ZB-N\EXREAFER

RZZ—+t&F+A+—H AR
BREERTR_E—N\E+A
B HIZN 4 48584 160,000,000 7T
(HH& R4 AR % 1,053,070,000
TL)H6.75% BREER(=ZT—N
FETBEER]D - ZT—N\F
ETEBLEERGEER—
FEEBHETSHEHIEERT)
(ISHPI ) REBFEIEE - =
- N\FETELAZESVEE
FLHECHERE  SRTENE
BRBATHANBMTABEA
TRE WERESBIA LM
(R RS% : 5292) - HBREEITE
REHEREFENAARE
1,039,118,0007T °

“E\FEXNBEARBENIE
R R AR AN T

RN B 0 1 I i 2 B (45 B AT
HEEREAERTBEELRR
MR R KA A EIRE
HARBGBEREBRLEERE
BEiER TR |)1£30
BRIBLEN( =T —\FET
BERBEEGREFHEN]) %
ERASEIOLNMEHE-T
—N\EXTEERBREHIEE D
ZHUNRBR (T EEZA) Bat
ANFB(MB)WBEE BE
FEREBE-_Z—N\FETE%
BE -

RUXHRAELFEE - BE
MEHREFB32% °



232

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R iR

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued) 30. BRER(B)
(c) 2018 USD Senior Notes (Continued) () ZF—N\EXZREBERR
(5)
The 2018 USD Senior Notes recognised in the consolidated R BRARPEROH -
statement of financial position are calculated as follows: —NEFETEBEEBREUTHR
RMB’000
AREETIT
Nominal value of 2018 —E-N\FETELEENEE
USD Senior Notes 1,053,070
Issuance costs HITER (13,952)
Fair value at date of issuance 27T HHEIHYAFE 1,039,118
Effective interest recognised FADERNEERF B
for the year (note 6) (FF5E6) 17,657
Interest payable during the year F RETF S (14,702)
Exchange realignment M AR (11,266)
Carrying amount at RZZE—tF+-A=+—HHEREE
31 December 2017 1,030,807
Fair value of the 2018 TE-N\FETELEENAFE"
USD Senior Notes * 1,041,029
2 The fair values of the 2018 USD Senior Notes are determined * —E - N\FETELZENA
based on the price quoted on the HKSE on 31 December 2017. TFEDEREBBRIMAN_-E

—tF+ZA=+—BHRE

BE -
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued) 30. BRERE(E)

(d) 2019 Senior Notes (d) =F—hEEBEEE

On 15 February 2017, the Company issued 7.95% senior
notes with an aggregate nominal value of US$260,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,785,350,000) at face
value, which will mature in February 2019 (the “2019 Senior
Notes”). The 2019 Senior Notes will only be offered outside the
United States in compliance with Regulation S under the United
States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Regulation S”).
The 2019 Senior Notes initially were sold to a small number of
financial institutions, none of which was offered to the public in
Hong Kong or to any connected persons of the Company, and
they have been listed on the HKSE (stock code: 5372). The
net proceeds, after deducting the issuance costs, amounted to
approximately RMB1,749,691,000.

The major terms and conditions of the 2019 Senior Notes are as

follows:

Not later than 30 days following a change of control (means
when Mr. Liu Hongwei ceases for any reason to be the majority
shareholder of the Company or any other events lead to the
significant change of the ownership structure of the Company,
“Change of Control”), the Company will make an offer to
purchase all outstanding 2019 Senior Notes (“2019 Senior Notes
Change of Control Offer”) at a purchase price equal to 101% of
the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest,
if any, to (but not including) the 2019 Senior Notes Change of
Control Offer payment date.

The effective interest rate is approximately 9.27% per annum
after the adjustment for transaction costs.

RZE—+tF-_A+HB AR
A)EE7THE{E A2 FE260,000,000% 7T
(HBE R4 AR % 1,785,350,000
T)ZE-NFZAZBEFER
795%HBAZR(I=ZZE—NF
BEEE]) - —E—HEBEE
BEEER—N==—FEXHES
SETSHIRAI(AAEET) ([SIREI L) 7
EBRFEINEE - —T—NFEEL
EEEVHEET LS RMKE -
BT ERATBSARLANABE
IEALTHE  WEEEEE
R B (IRH RS : 5372) o 41
BREITEREO S RIBEFELY
A AR 1,749,691,0007T °

“E-NEFEARBNEIZRHRK
R

ARRHRIEFIEZS) (R4
REREMERTBEEARA
B A B 3 B AT EL A TR B
RABIEEREBELEEAED
BB [EHIEEE ) R30R
ARHEN(ZT—NFEEE
BEGIEEBELN ) RERAE
SHEIOI%MEHE—_T—NF
BAEBEFEESHEANKA
H(TBEZA) BEHRFIE (0
BINEEE BEMAAREE—
BEFEERE

LR BB FARE  BR
FERLBEHFFI27% °
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(d) 2019 Senior Notes (Continued)

The 2019 Senior Notes recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position are calculated as follows:

30. BRERE (E)

(d)

- EBERR(E)

REEFBRRKRPBERN_-F
—NEFEERERBEUT I A

i
RMB’000
AREFT
Nominal value of TE-NFEEZRBNEE
2019 Senior Notes 1,785,350
Issuance costs BTER (35,659)
Fair value at date of issuance 277 HERHY A (A 1,749,691
Effective interest recognised FEARERNERFE
for the year (note 6) (FizE6) 136,236
Interest payable during the year & R & F| & (119,305)
Exchange realignment HE R (89,124)
Carrying amount at RZB—tF+A=+—HMEEE
31 December 2017 1,677,498
Fair value of the 2019 —E-NFREEBNATE"
Senior Notes * 1,693,608
& The fair values of the 2019 Senior Notes are determined based on * —E-NFEEEENATFE

the price quoted on the HKSE on 31 December 2017.

DENBABMRAR _F—t
FH_A=+—BHHREET -
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31. DEFERRED TAX 31. iBEHIE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FEFREEEHBERT AN EE W
are as follows: T
Deferred tax assets IREHRIEEE
Discount in
Govern- retention
ment receivables
Tax losses grants Pl Others Total
BIERE BB ERERR Hit @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—~"E—A—H 2,336 23,606 2,343 5,822 34,107
Deferred tax credited/ FEREA/ (NBRA)
(charged) to profit or loss BaRETERE
during the year (note 10) (M3 10) (2,191) (2,259) (558) 3,189 (1,819
At 31 December 2016 and R-E—"E+-A=+—H
at 1 January 2017 n—B—H 145 21,347 1,785 9,011 32,288
Deferred tax credited/ FRFEA/ (NKRA)
(charged) to profit or loss BRMEERE (P 10)
during the year (note 10) (145) 10,424 161 6,323 16,763
At 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+F+-A=+—H - 31,771 1,946 15,334 49,051
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31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax assets (Continued)

The Group has total tax losses arising in Malaysia, Singapore, Macao
and Hong Kong of RMB22,217,000 (2016: RMB38,983,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses
arising in Mainland China of RMB91,044,000 (2016: RMB25,600,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these tax losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss making and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities

31. EEBIE (4H)
BEHRIEEE (H)

RNEBAESDRAD - N - R
EREBEENTEBEBLEEARYK
22217,000L( ZZF —RNF: AR
38,983,000 7T, ) AT A A PR AR K S 2= A
182 ARIMARRERTRF] o REE
NEEFEANEEENREEBBAR
#91,044,0007C(ZF—/RF : ARME
25,600,0007T) AIAREIEEEEE 2
REIMRRIERT R - BR—ZERF
BEER - B EBIEB BT EERIEL
REEEREN —EBENNERRE
& BRARBERFURT AT LKA
BMIEBEZHETAK -

BEHIEAR

Withholding taxes

fEng
RMB’000
ARETT
At 1 January 2017 and RZZF—tF—A—HK
31 December 2017 —T—+F+-_A=+—H 86,860
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31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Under the CIT Law of the PRC, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China effective from 1 January
2008. Under the Arrangement between Mainland China and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double
Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes
on Income, the withholding tax rate for dividends paid by a Mainland
resident enterprise to a Hong Kong resident enterprise is 5% if the
Hong Kong enterprise owns at least 25% of the Mainland enterprise.

Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
statement of financial position in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits of the PRC subsidiaries during the year, as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB2,033,306,000 as at 31 December 2017
(2016: RMB1,407,503,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

31. EEBIIE ()

EERESR(E)

RBFECEMRERZE A-_FTN\EF
—A—Rig EPBEAREKRIZIZINE
EEARIIEREETIREE - BRUYK
10% FLe - RIBHBEAELEF BRI
TTIR S B 88 e S B AT LR
BH L WEBEEKIHEAARED
EB%MB AR AAEEREE
NTEARREENREMNBEMHERS
5% °

AR AREE A G RO R EE R
e BEREENETEEHRTER
B MAEERFANEEGTEMEA
Alm A MR ERBLAE PBHRAR
NEHRECERE - RZE—+tF+=
A=+—8  B%EMRH K
BARABBENEREZEAEZNAA
R #2,033,306,0007¢ I £ 5t it i
BEEBEAEBE(ZTE—XRF: AR¥
1,407,503,000 7T) °

A R R AR (388 8 T i 2
RSB E -
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32. DEFERRED INCOME 32. iBEWER
2017 2016
—F—t= ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREFIT
Government grants BT )
At 1 January n—AH—H 271,470 537,807
Government grants related to assets G U ER & ZE B REAY
received during the year BT BN = 888
Released to profit or loss (note 5): EEEE (ML) ¢
Over the expected useful lives of A ETE AN AFH
the related assets (14,346) (19,830)
Upon disposal of the related assets ~ HERBHEER (92,896) (247,395)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 164,228 271,470
Deferred income represented government grants received by the Group BEWEEANEBFRNEH € XBR
in respect of the construction of roof top solar power stations under the HIR| TEZRMETEAIZEELL - U
“Golden Sun Demonstration Project”, and other items of property, plant REAMYIZ - BB KEEER mis 8
and equipment. TRTHEBY o
The deferred income is released to profit or loss by equal annual BERGEFFEEy BEEEER - )
instalments to match with the expected useful lives of the relevant BeE B ENTEEEAEE -

assets.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. &
Shares 30
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FER FEr
Authorised: VERE ¢
1,200,000,000 ordinary shares 1,200,000,000 M &A% EE
of US$0.01 each 0.01 ETHE @K 12,000 12,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREHT
834,073,195 (2016: 834,073,195) 834,073,195 % (= ZF— /"4 -
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each 834,073,195 %) & EI{E0.01
ETLHE B 8,341 8,341
Equivalent to RMB’000 e ARETT 55,785 55,785

There was no movement in the Company’s
the year.

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

issued share capital during

34.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the

purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants

who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible

participants of the Scheme include directors and employees of the

Group. The Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders on

19 December 2008 and, unless otherwise
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

cancelled or amended, will

FA - ARENSBETRAALEZE -

FRRsHEST &

ARBRIBEAEAE ([ZFHED RA
TREAEENKINE L MEEROA
R EERHEE IR - ZFTENA
ERSEEQRESENAKEES - %
HERZZENFTZATHEEERR
BIRCRHLE - BRIEBGGESHHIER] - DAY
et BIEZ B REREFRR -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject

to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive officer or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in

advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
RMBI1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a
vesting period of 0.5 to 3 years and ends on a date which is a period of

10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the HKSE closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average HKSE closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the

nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to

vote at shareholders’ meetings.

34. BERHERTEI (4

mEk

)

B A FFRIEZET B B RTTRIB IR
REHEREEN (FEETERR)A
RAEIPMEAE S #ETRN Z210% °
PMER -+ —{ELA B A AT AR IR BB B A 1)
BRABRSEERTNRSBRNEAE
TRRARBRERBREEETRN Z
1% - (EfBH I RENE - TR LB
BB RN BRAE LA ©

7

BYARARRIEE  THEHKEZER
R SRR EAEMBEA T ZERE 15
BELRESEBIIIERTES 2L - 1t
AN - IMER+ =@ A B AR T AR A
TERRABIIFNTES  HEFE
BB AT 2 A MERE - LBBAA
BRI E B TR Z20.1% K E
BEGRBEARRREL A B ZRES
) 885,000,000 7T + ¥HERREREKR
e L HEMBRKREZBE -

RiBhEz BT HARABENR
HEF Z T \BEARIARBAKES
HARME L TRER - IR EBREZ
THRHRESET  UNFFE=F2
mEHRRHAEB R REEFIR T 5
ZBABILE-

BREZITFEEHESEET  ETAE
RUAT&EEE () AR R ERE
BL) A EIE BB R AT 2 AT ¢ (i) A
AEIRMHREZZLH AN AERS B
BB 2 FHWRTE Rk
D2ZEME -

BRI T TR A ER B B SR
RARE LIRERER -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. MERRtEstE ()
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during FRZETE T HARITHE ZBRENAT -
the year:
2017 2016
—ET—tEF ZERF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
I Number IntE Number
TEE of options TE(E of options
HK$ BxiEREEE HK$  BBRCHEEE
per share '000 per share ‘000
BRET T3 BRAT T
At 1 January wn—A—H 5.29 24,521 531 24,414
Granted during the year FAFRE 3.55 12,000 = =
Adjusted during the year FRFHE - - 5.26 107
Forfeited during the year FRRM 3.56 (21) = =

At 31 December Wt+Z—A=+—H 4.72 36,500 5.29 24,521
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

34.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Number of share

Bt El (48)

RBEIHREARITEBREZITEER
TTEHMT

BBEE

2017 2016 Exercise price Exercise period
—T—tf ZT—RF 1TE(E 1T/

000 '000 HK$ per share

T T BRET
2,763 2,784 3.56 23/01/10-22/07/19
3,336 3,336 3.56 23/07/10-22/07/19
5,143 5,143 3.56 23/07/11-22/07/19
1,447 1,447 2.67 11/10/12-10/10/21
1,447 1,447 2.67 11/10/13-10/10/21
1,446 1,446 2.67 11/10/14-10/10/21
1,446 1,446 2.67 11/10/15-10/10/21
1,446 1,446 2.67 11/10/16-10/10/21
2,008 2,008 11.65 22/5/16-21/5/25
2,009 2,009 11.65 22/5/17-21/5/25
2,009 2,009 11.65 22/5/18-21/5/25
4,000 - 3.55 05/4/18-21/5/27
4,000 - 3.55 05/4/19-21/5/27
4,000 - k) 05/4/20-21/5/27

36,500 24,521

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$22,956,760 (equivalent to approximately RMB20,287,000) or
HK$1.9131 each (equivalent to approximately RMB1.6905 each).
The Group recognised a share option expense of HK$16,320,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB14,140,000) during the year (2016:

HK$13,756,883, equivalent to approximately RMB11,773,000).

RAFEERENEREATEA
22,956,760% (H & R H AR
20,287,0007T ) sk & 19 1.9131 % 7T (48
EREBMNHARE1.69057T) - AEH
AN S TR B AR 7 2 16,320,000 4
TC(FEE R # AR 14,140,0007T) (=
T — N4 13,756,883 T (MER L
AER#11,773,0007T)) °
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
as at the date of grant, using the binomial model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Volatility (%) 57.16
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2.26
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 19131

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 36,500,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 36,500,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of US$365,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,853,184) and share premium of
approximately HK$ 169,272,000 (before issue expenses and after the
amount to be transferred from share option reserve to share premium
upon the exercise of the related share options).

As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the Company
had 36,500,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 4.38% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

34. BBt (8)

RAFER N EEBRERE D
HEW AP RERR BRIV ERE
Bt RIR DB R RIS - TR
B H P A VAR EL o s A BUR -

T IE (%) 57.16
[R B F (%) 2.26
D RE (BB ) 1.9131

RFEBRR ARAIRIEZAES
36,500,000 17 i RITERE AR I © 3%
RITEBRIE WD BUEITE - EAQA]
ZHRBEAREET  SSEBEINET
36,500,000 B 745 2 =) 38 Bk K 2= A FE O
& 7 365,000 2 7T (1B E 7 492,853,184
YT ) MR 19 75 (8 49 169,272,000 % 7T
(RN ETH AT R AR G R A8
BREETEREBREREEEER
MRERSRERE) o

WA BRZAER - RRAFREZR
217 36,500,000 {7 rRI AT T BB BciE - 48
ERARAINZ BB BITRNA4.38% -
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35. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for

the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity on pages 100 to 101 of the annual report.

(a)

(b)

Statutory reserves of the PRC subsidiaries

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using
Chinese and Foreign Investment” and the respective articles
of association of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China,
appropriations from net profit, as determined in accordance
with PRC generally accepted accounting principles (“PRC
GAAP”) and after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years,
should be made to the statutory reserve fund and the enterprise
expansion fund, and before profit distributions to the investors.
The reserve fund can be used to offset accumulated losses or to
increase capital.

Enterprise expansion fund

The enterprise expansion fund can be used for business
development or to increase capital. The percentages to be
appropriated to the reserve fund and the enterprise expansion
fund in the foreign investment subsidiaries are determined by
the board of directors. In addition, the wholly-foreign-owned
subsidiaries are not required to appropriate the enterprise
expansion fund, and the percentages to be appropriated to the
reserve fund shall be no less than 10%. When the cumulative
reserve fund reaches one-half of the registered capital, the
appropriation is no longer mandatory.

35. fi#E

AEBRFERBEFEZMFHBTR
RARAZHHENFERSESF I00BE

£

101 B iRaEREERA -

(a)

(b)

PEIM B ASIMETE A

RIBCPEARLMBEFINEGEL
BRFOR) R ANER B B AFEM
BRARMARER  AltRRS
BARGTEN(HHEARES
A ]) EE AR (REHEFR
FHEERR RAKREED KGN
A BWEERHBES NEERER
Ee ZHEEESTRAREHER
FHEEZUEINE AR o

EEERES

CERERESTAREBERSL
BINER o SR E B D F B
NERBEESREERERESH
BAOLLABEESETE © I S
BREECEBARENBENED
ERRETS MENERFRGES
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HESRAZEIEMER—F
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35. RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire or be forfeited.

Safety fund surplus reserve

Pursuant to a Notice regarding Safety Production Expenditure
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Work Safety of the PRC in February 2012, the
Group is required to establish a safety fund surplus reserve. The
safety fund can only be transferred to retained profits to offset
safety related expenses as and when they are incurred, including
expenses related to safety protection facilities and equipment
improvement and maintenance as well as safety production
inspection, appraisal, consultation and training.

35. fi#fE ()

(c)

(d)

RRRz R

BRERERFCRHBBRKRTT
R EREN N TE  E—2H
it B RSRR ML 2.4 B B AR
RERO TG K - %K
BRI ERERE
Bt (B Rk - SRR A E
MUY - RIS S RERA

REEERRHHA

REFPRET BRI RERE 2 EE
EBERBRN_E—=-F=A
BEaBEmn—RIAREEEER
HEA AEEARVELEESR
BHRFEE T2 ESRUREL
RERZRE BT AKEZE2E
AR - BIEE R E R
RARKEURZZEERS
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36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

36. HE—FEMEAE

2017
—ET—tF
RMB’000
ARETRT
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETE :
Property, plant and equipment Y - B KRB 107,201
Cash and bank balances e RRITHET 343
Trade payables 8 S 508 (14,355)
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - 5] REARIEIER
other receivables 8,689
Payment in advance SEUNENE] 3,880
Prepaid land lease FER A EROE (M 15)
payment (note 15) 5,773
Interest payable (note 43) FERSFE (BI7E43) (1,215)
Other payables and accruals HAth AT FRIE S FERTRUE (126,323)
(16,007)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MB AR W 16,007

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

HRHE—HHNBARNEE MNREEE
WMFREANET

2017

—E—tF

RMB’000

ARSETT

Cash and bank balances disposed of B H&ERE MIRITHETF (343)

Net outflow of cash and cash P& — KB A FA

equivalents in respect of the ReERBRESEBWFRL

disposal of a subsidiary (343)
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37.

38.

59,

DEEMED PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN
A SUBSIDIARY

In July 2017, the Group spun off Singyes New Materials and its
subsidiaries through a separate listing on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Spin-Off”). The Spin-
Off involved the offering of 120,000,000 shares of US$0.01 each
by Singyes New Materials at an offer price of HK$1 per share (the
“Singyes New Materials Offering”), which raised total cash proceeds
of HK$120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB103,580,000),
before deducting transaction expenses.

Immediately following the completion of the Singyes New Materials
Offering, the Group’s equity interest in Singyes New Materials was
diluted from 90.1% to 67.6% and thus the Spin-Off is considered as a
deemed partial disposal of Singyes New Materials by the Group. Since
the deemed partial disposal of Singyes New Materials did not result in
any loss of control, such transaction was accounted for as an equity
transaction and the difference between the proceeds from the Singyes
New Materials Offering and the 22.5% carrying value of the Singyes
New Materials and its subsidiaries amounting to RMB47,511,000 was
recognised in reserve of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

(a)

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from three to four years.

37.

38.

HREBSHER—EMBL
Sl

RIB—+F+LH AEEDHEEN
PR B F R R 32 P GEM S8 L £
(TDH7 1) - DHE REEHM AR
1T B EERE 120,000,000 i EK
0.01 ety ([ EEFRMEIEE]D) -
L15R LIS HRIAHFR /120,000,000
BT (FHE R4 A K% 103,580,0007T )
(BB

TN EETMREER  AEE
RELZEF MR IR BR0.1%EEE
67.6% @ AL FHWRAREBE 5 H
BT o« ARREID HEEE
PRI AR B R A Rl - Bt
ZRPERERZ IR - AREEH
MRV & 2 FT1S 3E BB ST AR R H
B ARz 22.5%REE 2 BHEBEA
R¥ 47,511,000 LB R AL B RN

s ©

HARMRE

RZZE—+F+A=+—H &&EE
WEEANAAE -

39. FEWRHRH

(@) fEBHAA

AEBREKLEHEOLTH LB
REWHE (M 14) - ZEBOW
EHBR=ZENEF -
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(Continued)

(@) As lessor (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

39. EEMHORH(E)

(a)

fERHBEAN (E)

R=F—tE+-A=t+-8
A BRI T3 B ) T
REET DR S E YT
GETE TN

2017 2016
—F—tF ZTE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Within one year —FA 2,483 2,483
In the second to fifth years, E_EERF(BEEREWE)
inclusive 2,397 4,880
4,880 7,363
(b) As lessee (b) fEBRHEA

The Group leases certain of its office premises and land from
certain grantees of the land use rights under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of
one to twenty-five years. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

AEBRBLLHEOLE R i
ERENE TR ARRAE T
REWER LW - ZEMERY
BEBRPR/—H T HF - R
FHIR - AEBERBER T 5 FH
B HR R T R BUEH R 2 H AR R K
RIEEMNESEENT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFIT

Within one year —FR 2,488 2,532
In the second to fifth years, FEERF (BEEEMST)

inclusive 2,038 3,279

After five years AFE 6,175 4,281

10,701 10,092
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40. COMMITMENTS 40. HkiE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 39 B £ SCP5E 39 Pt 2 48 & TR A AIESD -
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of RERERR « AEEB T ERNEE

the reporting period:

2017 2016
—F—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: DET4B R B -

Construction of buildings and BREF R AL IRE A
solar photovoltaic power stations 345,898 205,533
Purchase of office property EERAYE 20,759 =
Purchase of machinery BB 325 788
Purchase of patent BEEF 14,400 =

Capital contributions to MEE AREE

be injected into associates 12,000 12,000

393,382 218,321
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 41. BAEF X S R 4GER

BALANCES
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) RRZEMEHREEM T FRRZ
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions S8 FRAEB S T 5 2R
with related parties during the year: HEHNRS
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
Associates: lil/N=I I
Sales of products HEEMR 281,306 635,237
Rendering operation and RS IE R EERY
maintenance service 5,658 -
Construction contracts FEEAR 71,176 169,038
358,140 804,275
Interest-free advances FEIATN 25,177 23,660
Interest from loans FF 3,235 -
Loan* B - 68,110

AR A QR HE MZERT - TY
N T AREERZEF 2C AMER
KR R IRIE -

The sales and construction services provided to associates were
made according to the published prices and conditions offered
to the major customers of the Group.

¢ M E A FIREH B RAR E F 7

KAT75% R RN T —N\FE|
rights on the annual return of a 100MW solar photovoltaic power B - 30 LA 100 JK U KB RE (R | uh
station. JE B SRR R VLR

* The loan to an associate is interest-bearing at a fixed rate of 4.75%
per annum and will fall due in 2018, which is secured by the
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

41. FAEFX SRR ()

(b)  Other transactions with related parties (b) EEEFESHEHMZS
As at 31 December 2017, details of bank and other loans RZZE—+tF+=-A=+—8"
guarantees provided by related parties of the Group for nil AEBBESBREREZRITR

consideration are as follows: HEMERERAT :

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

the Group’s bank and other loans of RMB530,965,000
were guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei;

the Group’s bank loans of RMB286,972,000 were
guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun Jinli;

the Group’s bank loans of RMB323,517,000 were
guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Xie Wen;

the Group’s bank loans of RMB50,000,000 were
guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei, Sun Jinli and
Xie Wen;

the Group’s bank loans of RMB87,500,000 were jointly
guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei and his spouse, Ms. Li
Wei, and Mr. Sun Jinli and his spouse, Ms. Wang Yanfang;

the Group’s bank loans with a principal of
HK$377,579,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB315,622,000) were guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu
Hongwei and Sun Jinli; and

the Group’s bank loans with a principal of US$994,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB6,495,000) were
guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun Jinli.

—~
=

(i)

iii)

(iv)

(vii)

AEEZRITREMERA
E # 530,965,000 7t i 24T
M AR

AEEZBITERARE
286,972,000 7 M BIAT # 5E
ERFESBEERRER

AEEZBITERARE
323,517,000 7 F BIAT # 5E
RS AR

AEBZBITERARE
50,000,000 7t F 2 4T # 5
£ BB RERINEE
HREER

AEBEZBTERARE
87,500,0007T 75 £ 2 4T #
REMAEBERLT - &
SRAEMHAEBTISHS X
THRER

REBZRITERNEE
377,579,000/ 7t (12 & R
4 A R #315,622,0007T )
BRI ERFSBEE
HREER &

REBZBITERA SR
994,000 7T (HEE R KA
R #6,495,0007T ) M 241
R RGBSR E KRR
R o
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (Continued)

(c)  Outstanding balances with related parties

41. FER R R4 ()

2017 2016
e —EAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT

Due from associates: Jildisd/NCIIE
Trade receivables (note 22) FEUE 5508 (MisE22) 354,398 371,270
Other receivables (note 23) H e M kI8 (M5 23) 126,392 97,980
480,790 469,250

Due to an associate: JEAT — B E AR
Other payables HAb R FRIE = 3,892
Trade receivables are unsecured and interest-free. The credit ERESHIEAERBLES -

terms granted to the associates are consistent with the terms

offered to the major customers of the Group.

Except for the balances of approximately RMB68,110,000 (2016:
RMB68,110,000) due from an associate that are secured by
the rights on the annual return of the 100MW solar photovoltaic

power station, bear interest at 4.75% per annum and will fall

due in 2018, other balances included in other receivables due

from the associates are unsecured, interest-free and have no

fixed terms of repayment.

By Mg RmnEERE
RETFTAEEIZEP ZHIR —
B o

BRIEUES S N B RIBEBROAR
#68,110,000L( =& — X F -
AFR#68,110,0007T) A 100 JK L
KB 85 ¢ AR T uh 4[] 3R 40 4 )
TEE R - REEFFELT5% 5T
ERERZZE—N\FRHZIN
Hith fE W& A RIRIBR B EH
HihAr REER 2B RIE
Bl EE AR o
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

41. FAEFX SRR ()

RAEETZEEASNHH

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT

Salaries, allowances and e RUREYR S
benefits in kind 9,774 8,629
Pension scheme contributions R4S &HEI % 169 181
9,943 8,810

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’'s emoluments
are included in note 8 to the financial statements.

42. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

BHRAEENITRESMESHE—
FHBENH B HRRMFES

42. EHEEEZR

AEERIEANCEESRHEE

2017 2016
—F—tF —ZE—REF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitEE AREBTRT ARBETFTT
Gross amounts of assets that BEWRNEERTE

continued to be recognised:
Discounted Bills LR (a) 13,749 146,935
Endorsed Bills BHEZE (b) 4,662 106,666
18,411 253,601

LIEER PHBEEABERINERERAT 253
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42. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

(a)

Discounted Bills

At 31 December 2017, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable (the “Discounted Bills”) with a total carrying amount
of RMB13,749,000 (2016: RMB146,935,000) to certain
local banks in the PRC. The Discounted Bills have a maturity
of one month at 31 December 2017. In accordance with the
law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Discounted Bills have a right of resource against the Group
if the PRC banks default. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to the Discounted Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the carrying amounts of
the Discounted Bills and the respective bank loans (the carrying
amounts of the Discounted Bills deduct the discount interest).
Subsequent to the discounting, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Discounted Bills, including sale, transfer
or pledge of the Discounted Bills to any other third parties.
The aggregate carrying amount of the bank loans recognised
due to the Discounted Bills was RMB13,722,000 (2016:
RMB144,949,000) as at 31 December 2017.

42. EREEER ()

(a)

RGIR IR

RZE—tF+=ZA=+—
B AEEBEETREARE
13,749,000 L(ZE—RF : AR
% 146,935,000 7T) HE T REWE
BMEZEEDMETHEET
EHiRITc RZZE—+EF+ = A
=+—H - WREEAT ERR
AB—EA - RIBEPBEEEE W
PEISRITIEL  MREBIFEA
BREAAEFEER - EFRA
REBRBARID R K B3R (£
FANRERENER) - BUt#ES
RUREERBARITERD
EAE(HAZENREENR
BRIRFIR) - BRIRME - AEEWE
REBE BB
BREATHEME=FHE &
FYERBER - AMRER
MAERMIRITERRN =T —+F
TZA=+—HMBEEEAA
RH#& 13,722,000 L (ZF— R ¢
AR 144,949,0007T) °
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42. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

(b)

Endorsed Bills

At 31 December 2017, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain local banks in the PRC (the
“Endorsed Bills”) with a total carrying amount of RMB4,662,000
(2016: RMB106,666,000) to certain of its suppliers in order to
settle the trade payables due to those suppliers. The Endorsed
Bills had a maturity of one to six months at 31 December 2017.
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC, the holders of the Endorsed Bills have a right of recourse
against the Group if the PRC banks default. In the opinion of
the directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks and
rewards, which include default risks relating to the Endorsed
Bills, and accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables
settled. Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group did not
retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including sale,
transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties.
The aggregate carrying amount of the trade and other payables
settled by the Endorsed Bills during the year to which the
suppliers have recourse was RMB4,662,000 as at 31 December
2017 (2016: RMB106,666,000).

42. EREEER(E)

(b)

HERR

RZE—tF+=ZA=+—
B AEEBFEETE#
BRTEXNBEEEARE
4,662,000 L(ZF—XF: AR
# 106,666,000 70 ) B9 T fE U =
BIEEEBR)EETETHE
7 AEEENZSHERNE
NESHE - RZE—tF+=
A=+—R BEZBENDHE
ME—ZXMEA RBEFEEE
B IR EERITIEN  BERR
HEANERAAEEER - EF
RAE AEBERBRBHE
B kE®R(BESEZERENR
&) - A BERREERERAE
BEAEEERNESHRENZHE
HE - &% AEETERSB
FERESZENTWERN 88
EEMEBE=HHE - EEsk
EREERE - FANMHERH
ERENBSEZREENEIR
HiEARER=ZZ—tF+=
B=+—BM@EAEAARE
4,662,000 (=T —7R4F: AR
# 106,666,000 7T) °
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42. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 42. RS EEZR (B)

(Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their
entirety

As at 31 December 2017, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC, with
a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB136,771,000 (referred
to as the “Derecognised Bills”, 2016: RMB58,118,000). The
Derecognised Bills had a maturity from one to nine months at the
end of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amount of the Derecognised Bills. The maximum exposure to loss from
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is
equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
are not significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expense of
RMB13,667,000 (2016: RMB12,256,000) (note 6) on discounted bills
receivable. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.

During the year, trade receivables net of impairment, of
RMB142,500,000 (2016:Nil) (note 22) were factored to the
bank without recourse. In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
derecognised trade receivables. Accordingly, it has derecognised the
full carrying amount of these trade receivables.

EX2ZXIL#EIHNCERSME
-3

R-_ZB—+FE+=-_A=+—0 K&
ERIFPEE FTANRRITEZNERR
B4k AR ¥ 136,771,000 7T H) FE W Z 48
([RIEBERERE ] ZF—RF: AR
#58,118,0007T) » & HIR » 421k
HEREEOIAREA—ZENGEA - R
BPREEEE - hBERITELD - &1
HREBERAEAGRAFRERER ([
B2H])  BFERA AEECEEA
RIFEREREENBRE D AR RE
e At - NEBB R IR IETER
ZENEBEAE - AEERBELHER
IHEREE KRB EZ SR I ERERN
*ﬁﬁﬁfﬁiumgﬁﬁuumﬁfmﬁgiﬂ s
RERHEE - E2RA - AEERER
BRI ERZIEOATEL FEK °

FA - AEBEREREREIREENF S
FIX AR#13,667,0007T(=ZF— /<4 -
AR 12,256,000t ) (FizE6) o I 4
EiF B2 MR F Ak R TR
oA o

F7R - AR 142,500,000 7T (=ZF—7~
F ) (M 22) YRR GARRRE)
MIRITIERERRE - EFERR - AL
B ERERILEREKE S HRBRH
EB AR D BB R B - Fit - NEE
ERIFER R I ER RN E S FIAN 2
ERBRMEIE ©
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43. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  43. A& B RMaE
CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities RERSEEZEEZEE

Bankand  Bank advances for

other loans  discounted bills Convertible Senior Interest
RITR RRER bonds notes payable Total
HEH RITER TkRES BERS FEfHHIE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTTL ARBTIL ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2017 RIT—tF
—-A-H 2,918,270 144,949 719,216 771,003 36,173 4,589,611

Changes from BERSTE

financing cash flows (207,880) (131,227) (828,000) 2,228 309 (283,043) 778,659
Interest payable ERFIE (98,596) (13,667) (28,747) (190,061) 331,071 =
Interest expense (note 6) ~ FISHEX (MizE6) 144,444 13,667 233577 221572 = 613,260
Fair value change of ERENTES

conversion right (MzE29)

(note 29) S - (15,227) = = (15,227)
Disposal of HEHBAR

a subsidiary (note 36) (Fi3E36) = - - - (1,215) (1,215)
Foreign exchange EREEES

oss, net 3,287 - - - - 3,287
Exchange realignment [ 5 5% (55,415) - - (114,797) - (170,212)

At 31 December 2017 RZB—+F
+ZR=1t—H 2704110 13,722 80,819 2,916,526 82986 5,798,163
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44. HEREI £ TR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments ZHESMTANKEHRNOEAEEND
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: S €
2017 —F—tE
Financial assets THEE

Loans and Available-for-sale

receivables  financial assets
ERR ot E Total
FEWERIE SRIEE “ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AREBTR
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE = 265,803 265,803
Trade and bills receivables FE W B 5 7R8I R R B 3,751,855 - 3,751,855
Financial assets included in ETAERRIE - Rek
prepayments, deposits and Hib W RTE 2 & R EE
other receivables 709,620 - 709,620
Pledged deposits HRFR 487,022 - 487,022
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIReEEY 1,202,423 = 1,202,423
6,150,920 265,803 6,416,723
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

44. FEFEHE P HEMTI A (/F)

(Continued)
2017 (Continued) —T—tE(BE)
Financial liabilities THEEE
Financial liabilities
at fair value Financial
through profit or liabilities at
loss upon initial amortised
recognition cost
AR FRIBSHAR
BAEE AR
stAEER SREE Total
ot =R B “ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETRT AREBTR
Trade and bills payables EE S FE N RN R = 1,294,073 1,294,073
Financial liabilities included FTAE AR FRIA K
in other payables and [ErTRENERAE
accruals (note 26) (B3 26) = 213,730 213,730
Convertible bonds (note 29) Al E S (MFE29) - 80,819 80,819
Senior notes (note 30) Bz (MEE30) - 2,916,526 2,916,526
Bank advances for AR RIRIRITE R
discounted bills (note 42(a)) (BiaE42(a)) - 13,722 13,722
Derivative financial instruments 74 & @ T A 34,005 = 34,005
Interest-bearing bank and M EIRITER
other loans HEMER = 2,704,110 2,704,110
34,005 7,222,980 7,256,985
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44, REREIDMERIT R (/8)
(Continued)
2016 —E—RF
Financial assets TEEE

Loans and  Available-for-sale
receivables financial assets

Bk A E Total
U R IA CREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBETTT AREET T

Available-for-sale investments AHEERE = 80,512 80,512
Trade and bills receivables e E 5 5008 I e = AR 3,373,065 - 3,373,065
Financial assets included in FFATENFUE - B2 Rk

prepayments, deposits and Hit W RIEN S B E

other receivables 702,507 - 702,507
Derivative financial instruments #7448 T A 22,961 = 22,961
Pledged deposits HIRTFIR 383,231 = 383,231
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 680,205 = 680,205

5,161,969 80,512 5,242,481
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44. HEMEISHEM T AR (&)
(Continued)
2016 (Continued) —E—XF(E)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities

at fair value
through profit or Financial
loss upon initial liabilities at
recognition amortised
A TER S cost
BATE R
FTAIEEA B AR AR Total
THEeE TRBE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT AREFT
Trade and bills payables FESE 58 RN IR = 1,345,952 1,345,952
Financial liabilities included FT AEL MR FRIE K
in other payables and ErrERANERAas
accruals (note 26) (K3 26) = 202,734 202,734
Convertible bonds (note 29) AIAR E S (MR 29) 15,227 703,989 719,216
Senior notes (note 30) BFEER (FFE30) - 771,003 771,003
Bank advances for MIRERRITER
discounted bills (note 42(a)) (Pt T 42(a)) - 144,949 144,949
Interest-bearing bank and M BIRTTE R
other loans HER = 2,918,270 2,918,270
15,227 6,086,897 6,102,124
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 45. €M T AN AFEERAFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS &R
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial AEECR T A(RRDHFRERE -
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably FEHEEAFESEESEERIN K
approximate to fair values due to short term to maturity, are as follows: HERATFERT :
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREFE AFEE
2017 2016 2017 2016

ZF—tE —TF ZF—tfE —TF
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFRE ARETT AR®TRT ARETT

Financial assets SHEE
Pledged deposits, HEIRTF R
non-current portion JEmBNZR D 14,650 17,352 12,473 14,408
Derivative financial PTHEEMIA
instruments - 22,961 - 22,961
Available-for-sale debt investments 7]t H & EEIRE 235,737 49,559 235,737 49,559
250,387 89,872 248,210 86,928
Financial liabilities ERMBE
Convertible bonds Al AR ES 80,819 719,216 95,700 860,509
2017 Senior notes B ERERR - 554,211 - 537,948
2018 HKD Senior notes —E-N\FHETEL
Zig 208,221 216,792 213,656 226,383
2018 USD Senior notes —E—- \FETEL
g 1,030,807 - 1,041,029 -
2019 Senior Notes —E-NFEEEE 1,677,498 - 1,693,608 -
Derivative financial PTESHMIA
instruments 34,005 - 34,005 -
Interest-bearing bank and MW ESRITERK
other loans, HEMEK
non-current portion: IERBNE
Bank loans RITER 1,261,329 1,506,511 1,238,987 1,488,583
Other loans HMER 177,593 263,459 167,643 232,767

4,470,272 3,260,189 4,484,628 3,346,190
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 45. €M T AN AFEEAFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, short term pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The Group has entered into derivative financial instruments, such as
interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps, with the
banks. The fair value of the interest rate swaps and cross-currency
interest rate swaps was estimated by the independent professional
valuer using the discounted cash flow method and the estimation
included some assumptions not supported by observable market rates
such as credit risk, discount rate and expected future cash flows. The
carrying amounts of interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest
rate swaps are the same as their fair values.

The fair value of the 2019 Convertible Bonds was valued by estimating
the value of the whole bond with and without the embedded derivatives
using the binomial option pricing model. The model incorporates inputs
including market price, discount rates and share price volatility. The
value used for significant unobservable input is: volatility at 38.28%.

KERETE  ReRkBEL5EYW -
M RER - ERE S HRERERE
B BNESFEREMNEE ;T AR
RRIE - ST REMERFENSRE
EELA RRET AE b A 3R I8 R FE ST RUIA )
SHABEHREREEES  TELHRN
BHETAMEIMRFRRE -

TRMEENBENAFERERESZ
RE AR5 (S8 H 2B HERRIN) %
TARAZMAERIIER

TITDERBRR ARG AFE

AREBDHERITAIOTESRTA - M
MR INEEH Rz - FlRim
HIR XX EBHN Em R A EHEL
BXLEMERMRBSIEMGE -
AERTEABEMSERLBEERX
OB BRR(MEERR - BRER
BHARKRESRE) Rt FENHEE
1 o s B N X N B R R B e B
EEERENAFEER -

“E-NFAHBBESN QP EEBE
PR 1R B T B AR AL fh AT B D (B 5P
RS RARITE TARSEED
AHh o ZBRE ATE - BIRERAR(E
KBEBABUR - MEATHERHA
BUREMEVBUE K18 38.28% °
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the 2018 HKD Senior Notes have been calculated by
discounting the contractual cash flows over the remaining contractual
term of the 2018 HKD Senior Notes at the risk free interest rate plus

credit spread and liquidity spread.

The fair values of the 2018 USD Senior Notes and 2019 Senior Notes

are based on quoted market price (unadjusted) in active markets.

The fair values of the non-current portion of the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other loans have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities,
adjusted by the Group’s own non-performance risk where appropriate.
Values used for significant unobservable inputs are: discount rates

from 1.54% to 9.07% based on individual loans.

The fair value of the available-for-sale investments relating to the life
insurance contracts is based on the quoted price in a non-active
market obtained from HSBC Life at the end of each reporting period.

The fair value of the available-for-sale investments relating to the
specific asset management plans and wealth management products
are calculated by discounting the contractual cash flows over the
remaining contractual term of the specific asset management plans at

the risk-free interest rate plus credit spread.

45. £ TAMNAFERAFE

FH(E)

—T\FELBERBNATHERB
BENRSREZERARNENEES
ERRBERER _ZE—N\FEERE
MRS IR AR E -

T\ FEXNBEZBER-_Z-NF
BAERBN D FENRBERTISNT
5IRE CRERE) -

REEM BRTT R EMEFERE B
MRFETEBERFEY  FERRR
HTRHRBBRLUN SR TARK A&
SoMNE(RARERER2OARER
FHE(ER)) BRBHARKRRERE
MEtHE « REATAEREABEER
MEE : ERNEABERNIEIRE1.54%
29.07% °

BRASRRANAIHEERENDF
ENRENSREHREEZASREG
MBS RETH

FRREEAEEEINENERZA
HHERENRFERBBBENHEDR
ERERBAEMEERE  RNEEE
ETEASINEMERZRHRA MR
MATRETE o
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 45. €M T AN AFEEAFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) E4h(B)

Fair value hierarchy AFEHER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRFEPEAEBSRTIENAFENE
the Group’s financial instruments: EH

Assets measured at fair value: BN FEST A EE -

Fair value measurement using
FEFALTEEFTEATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

EE  EXUHE EXTOHE

TiSHRE LD ¢ BB Total
(B5—8) (%5=@) (B=RE) st

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT

As at 31 December 2017 N-F—+tE
+=HA=+—H
Available-for-sale investments: AMHEERE
Life insurance contracts ASREBEL = 22,382 = 22,382
Wealth management products BB EE MR - - 180,000 180,000
Asset management plan BEEETE - = 33,355 33,355
- 22,382 213,355 235,737
As at 31 December 2016 NIZT—RE
+=A=+-—H2
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmITA = 22,961 = 22,961
Available-for-sale investments: AMHEERE
Life insurance contracts ASREBEL = 22,316 = 22,316
Asset management plan BEEETE = L 27,243 27,243

= 45,277 27,243 72,520
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 45. €M T AN AFEERAFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) EF4h(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEEFR (FE)
Liabilities measured at fair value: BATEENEE

Fair value measurement using
FEFALTEETEATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

EE  EXUHE EXTOHE

TiSHRE LIPN ¢ BB Total
(B5—8) (%5=@) (=) st

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRE ARETT AREBTE

As at 31 December 2017 N-F—+tE
+=ZRA=+—H
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA = 34,005 = 34,005
As at 31 December 2016 NZT—RE
+=A=+-—H
Convertible bonds: ATMARES ¢
Conversion rights (note 29) B (M35 29) = = 15,227 15,227
During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no transfers of HE-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—HLHF
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers E cREENSRABENE—EHE
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities. ZEZEYEATEFEER - TS

BANEHE=E -
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

45. £ TAMNAFERAFE
Fah(E)

AFEEFR ()
BEATEHELE -

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTEEFEATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EE BEXUHE EXTUHZE
TiGR{E LD g LNk Total
(B—B) (=) (E=E) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREBTRT ARBTRT ARBTT
As at 31 December 2017 NZT—tF
+=HA=+—H
Pledged deposits, IR FRIER BB MR
non-current portion - - 12,473 12,473
As at 31 December 2016 NZF—RE
+=A=+-8
Pledged deposits, IR FRIER B0
non-current portion - - 14,408 14,408
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 45. €M T AN AFEERAFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) EF4h(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEEFR (FE)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: HENFENEE -

Fair value measurement using
FERAULTEETEATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EE BEXUHE EXTUHZE
TiGR{E LD ¢ LN b Total
(5—/E) (E=@) (B=E) “ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETR ARETR ARETR

As at 31 December 2017 R-T—t%F
+=A=+—-H
Convertible bonds AR ES
— Liability component (note 29) -BEHD
(B7E29) - - 95,700 95,700
2018 HKD Senior notes (note 30) —E-N\FHETE
S (FFFE30) - - 213,656 213,656
2018 USD Senior notes (note 30) —E-N\FETE
SR (I 30) 1,041,029 - - 1,041,029
2019 Senior notes (note 30) —E-NFEL
Z& (F17E30) 1,693,608 - - 1,693,608
Interest-bearing bank and M BRITREME
other loans, non-current portion K IEREE D - - 1,406,630 1,406,630

2,734,637 - 1,715,986 4,450,623
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

45. £ TAMNAFERAFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) = (E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEEFR (FE)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (Continued) WENFEMEE - (1)
Fair value measurement using
FRNTSEFE2ATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
| ER EAUEER EATAEE
Ti5HE 8 A B i A SR Total
(B—E) (B5=E) (=) feh
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’00
ARETIT AREBTRT ARBTRT ARBTE
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+t=A=+-~
Convertible bonds AR ES
— Liability component (note 29) -BED
(fF3E29) - = 845,282 845,282
2017 Senior notes (note 29) —T—tFEE
ZI5 (FsE29) 537,948 - - 537,948
2018 HKD Senior notes (note 30) 2 \FHTE
FER (M15E30) - - 226,383 226,383
Interest-bearing bank and SHERTEREME
other loans, non-current portion R IEREE D = = 1,721,350 1,721,350
537,948 - 2,793,015 3,330,963
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. B EPEETE BB R B

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other loans, derivative financial instruments, convertible
bonds, senior notes and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals,
and bank advances for discounted bills, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing bank and
other loans are disclosed in note 28.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in the market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and variable rate debts. At 31 December 2017, approximately 79.0%
(2016: 60.5%) of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other loans
bore interest at fixed rates.

FEENTEZSMTABREMERTR
EMER TEERIT A JHRkE
% BARBULRSNREEFEY -
ZETMTANTIEZRRR/ANEEN
REBEED - ARBERSEEME
BEERAE PIEERETEEE
EREIRE 53R MERER - FBIR
B AlE REMEKFR - BNESK
BRENRE - B ENRIE R ER K
FARERERRITER

Zli‘ilimﬂlﬂﬁﬁFEZI%ﬂﬁ =Rl
% g‘\%ﬂ g EERRRAEE

%J—L SEZLEEEESER

REVECR ﬁ%ﬁﬂ( RELMIAT o

T ERR

M EERT R ML E FRAF R R (EE HARR
R TE 28 i EE -

AEEEEREEEASET SN ERER
BB TSN R SRR

$E@H’JIEAZ”*E’%EHIE&/¥JU$%
BHEEEHEMBKAE RZT—
¢+:H:+—E'$§l#§ﬁﬁ
M EMERNHT.0% (T —FEF -
60.5% ) 1R EEFEET L °
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. B EPEETE BB REBUER

AND POLICIES (Continued) &)
Interest rate risk (Continued) Fl=mbE (&)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRETEMBEHEMESRFTEE)
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, T AEBERBANER(BEEERL
of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate FE)NF RS EEEHHAE -
loans).
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in

basis points profit before tax

B i enpaedl
s, (R s, ()
RMB’000
ARBTFT
2017 —ET—tHF
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (3,324)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 3,324
US dollar ET 100 (2,360)
US dollar e (100) 2,360
2016 T —RF
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (3,604)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 3,604
US dollar ETT 100 (7,924)

US dollar eI (100) 7,924
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s principal businesses are located in Mainland China and
most of the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for those of the
overseas subsidiaries which functional currencies are currencies other
than RMB and certain items of cash and cash equivalents that are

denominated in HK$, US$ and other currencies.

If RMB strengthens/weakens against HK$ as a reasonable possible
change of 5%, the profit before tax of the Group will increase/decrease
by approximately RMB65,034,000 (2016: decrease/increase by
approximately RMB8&,468,000), due to changes in fair values of
monetary assets and liabilities. The Group does not consider that it
has any significant exposure to the risk of fluctuation in the exchange
rate between US$ and RMB as a reasonable possible change of 5%
in RMB against US$ would have no significant financial impact on the

Group’s profit.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade and other receivables, and other financial assets represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
held in major financial institutions located in Mainland China, which

management believes are of high credit quality.

46. B EREE BN RBIR

(%)
e LR

REBE T EEBRNPEALE - KEfo
RHUAAREHET - REBAIDEE
REFEAARKEE - HERIHERR
MR EBWIFARBERETRERA
EEEMAET I REMEEE
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i AR R B TR e A B E B) 5% Ff
B/ B8 BIRNEENREANEFIEE
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. aﬁ%mrm;ﬁmw&%

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties
and its associates. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 7.47% and 19.48% (2016: 8.29% and 26.37%) of the
Group’s trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers, respectively. All of these customers
have good credit quality by taking into account of their credit history,
and a long-term business relationship has been established by both
parties. The Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and monitoring procedures to ensure that there will be
follow-up action to recover overdue debts.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the settlement from customers and the payment to vendors.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

is as follows:

&)
B (4)

AEBERERIRZFAFEENE =S
AL REBBARS - NREBHBE
= BERRERERARZNEFP AL
BIERREFERRF - WO BRFRRER
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B AEAX o
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mZER BAANEEE S ERKIE
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. B EPEETE BB R B

AND POLICIES (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mENE S ()
3toless
than 12
Less than months 1to5 Beyond
On demand 3 months =EDR years 5 years Total
BEX  OR=EA +={@R —EhE AENE @zt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR

2017 -t
Convertible bonds * ARkES = 2,400 2,400 100,800 = 105,600
Senior notes BrER - 278,217 102,816 2,847,180 - 3,228,213
Interest-bearing W1 BRI R EMER
bank and other loans 40,921 326,305 1,015,954 995,794 859,585 3,238,559
Trade and bills payables &S E HFHER
ERES:S 147,734 364,544 781,795 - - 1,294,073
Financial liabilities STAEMEHE
included in other RIEF B
payables and accruals ~ £EIBE 229,106 = = = = 229,106
417,761 971,466 1,902,965 3,943,774 859,585 8,095,551
2016 -y
Convertible bonds * RRES* 18,353 4,936 22910 1,016,400 - 1,062,599
Senior notes BAER 11,670 1,828 614,770 225,456 - 853,724
Interest-bearing R RITREMER
bank and other loans 43,790 581,144 597,972 1,338,113 625,931 3,186,950
Trade and bills payables FEfHE S AR
ANES 145,211 366,624 834,117 = = 1,345,952
Financial liabilities STAE M TR
included in other REETE AR
payables and accruals ~ £RIEE 202,734 = = = = 202,734
421,758 954,532 2,069,769 2,579,969 625,931 6,051,959
# Conversion rights of the convertible bonds are not included in the table " AR E S SRR BT A LK -

above as they will be settled through issuance of own shares. RAREFEERETEZRMOMAES
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. B EPEETE BB REBUER

AND POLICIES (Continued) =)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives of its capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by
pricing services and products commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprises trade and
bills payables, bank advances for discounted bills, interest-bearing
bank and other loans, other payables and accruals, senior notes and
tax payable, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.
Adjusted capital includes the liability component of convertible bonds
and equity attributable to owners of the Company.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted
by the Group include, but are not limited to, reviewing future cash
flow requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if
necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of capital to
support its business. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

ne=

HEXER

AEBENEAEEBBRREAEERF
BIEEE N ABEATEE RICREE
HE R S E AL M SRR E R AR -
3 3838 SRR SR 7K AR B AR TS B EE Am
FEBRBEREH SR -

REBZRBLOIGTERSHE - A%
EEEEENEELRFEERNE
MEEEEMRBRERINARE - BT
BRRPBENER  AEEFRED
NEROBRE SR  MBREEER
BTSN E B EARE

REBUERLRERER  ZUHER
THEBI A RS INFET - FEBE
RENESRARENRE  MARE
RITER - MERITREMER - Hfts
RN FIA R ERT IR - BAERBREN
BB - BEREMREFEMRERE
Ko KABEABREARBRESEE
DRAREEE NEGEREE

A& B SKRS RRIFER L R R R
BAKE - ASTRFE R - AREIRR
HEERBERIBETRNEHAKER
MEBERMZNBIREBHREES - REF
ARRITREEREKRF AR ER
BIMBEA B (WFE) - UBRRREE
BAEREKFHEAFFEER - RN
SERHIEARLL R GAT ¢



276

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R iR

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—8H

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

46. B EREE BN RBIR

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with

current year’s presentation.

AND POLICIES (Continued) (&)
Capital management (Continued) BEXEE(E)
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Trade and bills payables B E S5 R RN IR 1,294,073 1,345,952
Bank advances for discounted bills  BAiIRZEIR 7 $RITE 13,722 144,949
Interest-bearing bank and other loans [ff 28877 & H & K 2,704,110 2,918,270
Other payables and accruals E b e SR IE R FE T 5E 549,511 510,622
Senior notes BEEE 2,916,526 771,003
Tax payable FERTFTASHL 40,741 21,939
Less: cash and cash equivalents B ReRIReEEY (1,202,423) (680,205)
Less: pledged deposits B EIRTER (487,022) (383,231)
Net debt (A) FE (A) 5,829,238 4,649,299
Convertible bonds, the MR ES - BEHD
liability component 80,819 703,989
Equity attributable to owners of NARER AEGER
the Company 4,401,538 4,141,822
Adjusted capital KRBER 4,482,357 4,845,811
Capital and net debt (B) BARFER (B) 10,311,595 9,495,110
Gearing ratio (A/B) B2 E (A/B) 57% 49%
47. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 47. LEEE S

ETHREECDENDR - UFEARF

225 -
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

48. XATMMFFIRR R

RBEHR - BEARRBANMBIRRE

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BRI

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R KRB 17,819 21,602
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE BB B8 A R FRIB 3,464,241 3,264,541
Investments in subsidiaries RETB R RIRE 34,898 22,594
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 34,968 35,784
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 3,551,926 3,344,521
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepayments, deposits and ERNRE T2k
other receivables Eo e sk IE 650 =
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMmIT A - 22,961
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 154,176 72,308
Total current assets mEEERE 154,826 95,269
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables and accruals HoAth FE A 5RE K FER TR 82,207 63,419
Interest-bearing bank loans B BERITE R 390,918 364,259
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A EIFRIA 44,325 10,588
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMTA 34,005 =
Senior notes BERER 1,239,028 554,211
Total current liabilities mENAERRE 1,790,483 992,477
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEEFE (1,635,657) (897,208)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEGERREER
LIABILITIES 1,916,269 2,447 313
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERENEE
Convertible bonds ARk E S 80,819 719,216
Interest-bearing bank loans M BERITE R 94,817 744,694
Senior notes BERRE 1,677,498 216,792
Total non-current liabilities EMB BB 1,853,134 1,680,702
Net assets BEFE 63,135 766,611
EQUITY xR
Issued capital BEITRA 55,785 55,785
Reserves (note) e (BfaE) 7,350 710,826
Total equity G e 63,135 766,611
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  48. A SN RAER (B)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: FisE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AREIMERERERAT -
Available-
for-sale
investment
Share  revaluation Exchange
premium reserve Share  fluctuation
account T Contributed option reserve  Accumulated
[ HERE surplus reserve R losses Total
mER EftkE BAEE  BIREGE W E 2itbE @t

RMBOOO ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMB(0OO
ARBTT  ARBTT ARBTL ARETL ARBTL ARETL ARETR

At 1 January 2016 RZE—~EF
—A—H 580,564 (5,228) 21,057 34,055 3,040 (132,050) 501,438
Loss for the year FEEEE - - - - - (124921)  (124,921)
Other comprehensive Hti2Eks
income - - - - 43,751 - 43,751

Total comprehensive AEERE

income for the year hgayit] - - = = 43,751 (124,921) (81,170)
Issue of shares BT D 302,071 = = = = = 302,071
Share issue expenses BIREY (5,817) - - - - - (5817)
Equity-settled share BRAEEER

option arrangements L = = = 11,773 = = 11,773
2015 final dividend BER=Z—1F

declared REMRE - - (17,469) - - - (17,469)

At31 December 2016 ~ RZZ—REF
+-A=t—H 876818 (5,228) 3,588 45,828 46,791 (256,971) 710,826
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  48. AQASINMBIRE ()
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: (Continued) MieE - (88)
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: (Continued) ARBMFBEHEELT « (8)
Available-
for-sale
investment
Share  revaluation Exchange
premium reserve Share  fluctuation
account T Contributed option reserve  Accumulated
[ HERE surplus reserve ER losses Total
i B e BAEE  BIREGE EE RitER @t

RMBOO0O ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMB(0OO
ARBTT  ARBTT ARBTL ARBTL ARBTL ARETL ARETR

At 1 January 2017 RZE—t&
—A—H 876,818 (5,228) 3,588 45,828 46,791 (256,971) 710,826

Loss for the year TEREE - - - - - (643370)  (643370)
Change in fair value of ~ HHERER

available-for-sale TEE

investments, netoftax ~ HBRFIE = 1,527 = = = = 1,527
Other comprehensive Ht2Eks

income - - - - (25,098) - (25,098)
Total comprehensive AEERAE

income for the year hgayits - 1,527 = - (25,098) (643,370) (666,941)
Transfer to BREHA

contributed surplus Bk (80,000) - 80,000 = = =
Equity-settled share BRALER

option arrangements FRREZ = = = 14,140 = = 14,140
2016 final dividend BER=Z—F

declared REMRE - - (50,675) - - - (50,675)

At31 December 2017  RZZ—+%&
+ZA=1t—H 79218 (3,701) 32,913 59,968 21,693 (900,341) 7,350
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

49.

COMPANY (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the related options expire
or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 28 March 2018.

48.

49.

RABMBPABHRRR ()

BiaE - (8%)

ERERBEEES KB EMARITENEE
WRTE - E— Mt R BHRERNE 245
RAARR D REREM TV FEHER - ZFIA
A AR R T R BB S R S B
S fini 16 B R SR fE R s o8 M - BB (R

LA o
AT E®RER

BBHREN_E-N\F=A=_+N\BE
EEgUERIRETIH -
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